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CORPORATE INFORMATION

~NAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin®@

Mr. Wu Zhihua®

Ms. Jin Keli®

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Weilun
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Weilun (Chairman)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Siu Kai Chun, FCA, FCCA, FCPA(HK)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Chen Zhuo
Mr. Siu Kai Chun

Notes:

©) Mr. Wei Zhe has tendered his resignation with effect from 29 June

2020.

2) Ms. Wu Qimin has tendered her resignation with effect from 17 July

2020.

(3) Mr. Wu Zhihua has been appointed on 29 June 2020.

4) Ms. Jin Keli has been appointed on 17 July 2020.
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Suite Nos. 5 and 6

9th Floor, Tower 2

China Hong Kong City

33 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE

PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
1601 Block 1
Pacific Dingwang Commercial Center,
2 Baichen Lu, Chihua She Qu,
Chencun Town, Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.gdzawy.com

HKEX STOCK CODE
1538

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@zahomegroup.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Communication Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
RS

Liu Jian
Chairman and chief executive officer

2z
FERATHAEE,

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, EWHRE :

For and on behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the AHXAZEREXRFTBIREBEARAR([EAQT] &
"Directors”, each a "Director”) of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited REMNBAR [AEE|)EE([EXE] SHW[E
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), lam ZE|) @ ([EEg|) RAREARQAa]EHZ 2020F 12
pleased to present the annual report of the Company for the year A 31 HIEFERFFR o

ended 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s 2020 audited profit attributable to owners of the
parent amounted to RMB131.5 million (2019: RMB108.6 million), an
increase of 21.1% as compared to 2019. This was mainly due to (i)
the growth in property management business revenue from
approximately RMB1,138.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB1,242.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing an increase of approximately
RMB103.6 million, or 9.1%; (ii) increase in revenue generated from
cleaning and greening business of approximately RMB52.0 million;
(iii) increase in revenue generated from real estate agency business
of approximately RMB52.0 million; and (iv) increase in revenue
generated from other businesses of approximately RMB25.4 million
especially for revenue generated from new business lines brought
from newly acquired subsidiaries during the year.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.00 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: 2.75 cents) to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 8 June
2021, making the total dividend payment of approximately HK$25.6
million.

OPERATION REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management
company in China. In 2020, the Group has the following recognition
and awards.

In January 2020, the Group has received 2020 E/NEIR B Z2YHE
B EFEHTEELEES (the honorary title of Year 2020
Guangzhou International Intelligent Property Exhibition Excellent
 EBNTHEERTEBER L ThEFEY
1% (Guangzhou City Property Management Industry Association

Organization Prize*)

Establishment of 25 years anniversary Excellent Enterprise*) and &
FRIE RE{I (Excellent Assistant President Unit*) by BN M ¥ZEE
BT ¥ 12 (Guangzhou City Property Management Industry
Association®).

*  For identification purpose only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR E

In March 2020, the Group has received "HUZ % i8¥%IEE (Anti-
epidemic pioneer property projects*)” for the two buildings located
in Hangzhou under the Group’s management by TN EEILEETE
AN AR ER

and City Municipal Construction Bureau®).

= (Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Residential Houses

In April 2020, the Group has received 2020 F ¥ £ BB EFH/NE
(Year 2020 Property Management Excellent Small District*) by J#/1
ME21Z B (Huzhou City Renhuang Shan Committee*).

In May 2020, the Group has received 2020 F B F ¥ REIHEE
BEEFH % (2020 China Excellent Listed Property Management
), 20207 B ¥ 2 AR 7% B s (b % (2020
China Top 100 Property Management Companies in China*) and
2020 FEIMERBITEMH(LEER TR (2020 China Property
Management Industry Marketing Operation Leading Company*) by
FR BB B FERT (China Index Academy*). The Group has received
BIEHIERE LB ZE (Labour Services Coordination Loving
Company*) by 8T AN ERMELERER (Ningbo City Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau™).

Company by Investment Value*

In August 2020, the Group has received 2020EE & Hoa b %
(2020 Blue Chip Property Top 100 Company*) and £ iBi& & EE D
% (Excellent Company by Investment Value*) by & /B ER 2 (The
Economic Observer*). The Group has also recelved 20204F EGh
HIEEEDERI (Year 2020 Commitment to Integrity
Management Enterprise Title*) by {# 1L TT/H &% Z B (Foshan City
Consumers Council*®).

In October 2020, the Group has received 2020 E /8% E IR
BEREIHE (FEYZ)EIR (Year 2020 Shanghai City Property
Management Excellent Demonstrated Project (Residential Property)
Title*) on a residential unit in Shanghai under the Group's
management by FBTYIEBERITERE (

Management Industry Association®).

Shanghai City Property

In November 2020, the Group has received 2020 Asia Pacific
Enterprise Award Master Entrepreneur Category in Property
Development Industry trophy by Enterprise Asia.
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In December 2020, the Group has received 2020/& 3 & ¥ % AR 4w
AEEE N1 (2020 Guangdong Province Property Service
Comprehensive Development Strength Enterprise*) and 2020.K/€
(@RS mERZE (Well-known Property Management Enterprise
in Great Bay Area in 2020*) by EREMEEETEWS
(Guangdong Province Property Management Industry
Association*). The Group has also received 20205 E#i5t s 8L
(Year 2020 Statistical Leading Unit*) by E/B8THRFTES B
(Shanghai City Pudong New District Statistics Bureau®). In addition,
the Group has received 2020E Fa#hEE & ARG A 7] (2020 Guangxi
Real Estate Gold Shield Services Company*) by FAZEE R (Nanning
Evening Post*). The Group has received 2020/& 7o ith Z= 522 /1 fh AR
TEHRE R 82 (2020 Guangxi Real Estate Influencing Brand Services
Institution Grand Prize*) by E&7H H #{H &5 & (Guangxi Daily Media
Group?*).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had maintained its presence in
45 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 613
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
Gross Floor Area (“GFA") of 72.0 million square meters (“sq.m.”).
That remained the same compared to the aggregate contracted
GFA of 72.0 million sg.m. as of 31 December 2019. In relation to the
delivered GFA of 65.6 million sgq.m. in 2020, the increase
represented a growth of 0.3% compared to the delivered GFA of
65.4 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement entered
between the Group and the vendors in July 2016, the Group will
acquire the remaining interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng Property
Management Company Limited (“Yongcheng”) in four tranches of
7.5% each at a price of RMB22.5 million for each of the subsequent
acquisition if the adjusted net profit of Yongcheng for each of the
four financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019
will not be less than RMB32.0 million. Since the net profit of
Yongcheng for the financial year of 2019 has met the profit
guarantee provision provided to the Group, the Group entered into
acquisition agreements with the vendors on 22 June 2020, to
purchase the last tranche of 7.5% of the registered capital of
Yongcheng at a consideration of RMB22.5 million.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR E

Upon completion of the above acquisition, the Group holds 100.0%
of the registered capital of Yongcheng. Yongcheng becomes a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its financial results
will be fully consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. The Directors are of the view that the Group's
increase in shareholding in Yongcheng will further consolidate the
profit base and provide a stable return of investments to the
shareholders.

In January 2020, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in EEHR &
BIEZRZRE AR A A (Guangdong Jindun Zhengan Security
Services Company Limited*) (“Jindun Zhengan”), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, for an aggregate
consideration of RMB68.0 million. Jindun Zhengan is principally
engaged in provision of security services and variety of outsourcing
security services in the PRC.

In January 2020, the Group entered into the property transfer
agreement with 1L TTIE{EE R AR AT E EEEMR A A (Foshan
City Shunde District Chencun Town Kangying Investment
Management Company Limited*), to acquire a three-storey office
building situated at @ L 77 IB72 [& PR AT #E A F ¥ S AR 3001501
5% - 16015% 2170158 (Number 1501, 1601 and 1701, Pacific
Dingwang Commercial Center, Chencun Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, the PRC*) with a total gross floor area of approximately
3,672.72 square metres at a total consideration of RMB46.1 million.

In June 2020, the Group acquired 51% equity interests in R E i
IRIETIEER A F] (Guangdong Huarui Environmental Engineering
Company Limited*) ("Guangdong Huarui”), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability, for an aggregate consideration of
RMB40.0 million. Guangdong Huarui is principally engaged in
provision of cleaning services, greening services and maintenance,
and outdoor wall cleaning in the PRC.

In June 2020, the Group entered into a cooperation agreement (the
"Cooperation Agreement”) with Greentown Service Group Co.
Ltd. ("Greentown Service”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2869), pursuant to
which the Group and Greentown Service agreed to cooperate
comprehensively in areas such as life services and property services
business. Greentown Service is a leading high-end residential
property management service provider in the PRC with a diversified
portfolio comprising property service, consulting service and
community living service.

8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Company and
Greentown Service agreed to jointly establish a life service
company (the "JV Company”) with registered capital of RMB5.0
million, which shall be owned as to 30% by the Company and 70%
by Greentown Service. The Company will inject RMB1.5 million and
Greentown Service will inject RMB3.5 million into the JV Company
and Greentown Service undertook to provide living services
products, technology, service systems and professional resources
to the JV Company.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, it was further agreed
between the parties that (i) for any property services businesses
that Greentown Service decides not to undertake by reasons of,
among others, its service position and cost structure, Greentown
Service agreed to give priority to recommend such businesses to
the Company; (i) within 6 years from the date of the Cooperation
Agreement, Greentown Service agreed to give priority to consider
the Company and its affiliates for undertaking Greentown Service's
outsourcing businesses, such as the provision of cleaning, security,
maintenance and elevator maintenance services, on the basis that
the terms offered by the Company and its affiliates shall not be less
favorable than those offered by independent third parties to
Greentown Service and provided that the Company and its affiliates
possess the requisite professional qualifications, the quality of
services to be provided shall reach the quality standard required by
Greentown Service and the service fees to be charged shall be in
line with the prevailing market prices; and (iii) commencing from 1
July 2021 and subject to fulfilment of the foregoing requirements
and the relevant requirements under all applicable laws and
regulations and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange, Greentown Service and the Company and/or its
affiliates shall enter into the relevant property services agreements
for engaging the Company and/or its affiliates to provide the above
property services with turnover of the relevant business services of
not less than RMB300.0 million per year and with an increment of
RMB200.0 million every year since the third year of cooperation.

In July 2020, the Group acquired 70% equity interests in JERiLES
R AR AT (Guangdong Xunhua Electrical Engineering
Technology Company Limited*) ("Guangdong Xunhua”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability, for an
aggregate consideration of RMB40.0 million. Guangdong Xunhua is
principally engaged in provision of intelligent system solutions
engineering services in the PRC.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR E

In August 2020, the Group purchased 100% of equity interests in &
MIRE RSB MR A A (Jinan Express Service Company Limited*)
("Jinan Express Service"”) at a total consideration of RMB39.7
million. Upon completion, Jinan Express Service will become a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Jinan Express Service is
principally engaged in indoor cleaning, outdoor cleaning and
greening services, shuttle bus, catering, security guard and
maintenance services in the PRC.

In December 2020, the Group purchased 100% of equity interests
in EM#HEEEBRBE AR AT (Guangzhou Nuodeng Elevator
Services Company Limited*)("Guangzhou Nuodeng”) at a total
consideration of RMB5.1 million in full settlement by 49% equity
interest in Rk EBERE TE B2 A (Ningbo Yongdu Elevator
Engineering Company Limited)("Ningbo Yongdu"”). Upon
completion, Guangzhou Nuodeng will become a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Guangzhou Nuodeng is principally
engaged in installation, repair and maintenance of elevator in the
PRC. This acquisition is subsequently completed in January 2021.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to maintain its own
advantage as an independent property management company,
competing with counterparts in the market by its high quality
service and operation efficiency, actively establishing stable
partnership with leading property developers in all regions,
exploring potential new development projects and pursuing
properties which have established owners’ associations. When right
opportunities arise, the Group will accelerate its expansion of
business scope and coverage in China through acquisition of
property management companies and other value adding service
companies which provide services related to communities.

Greentown Service became our strategic alliance partner after the
Group entered into a cooperative agreement with Greentown
Service in June 2020. Our Group will work out extensively with
Greentown Service to accelerate our business scale and extend our
variety of living value adding services in the coming years.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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In addition, we will closely persist in the philosophy of stable
development by gradually expanding the upstream and
downstream industry chain, as well as strategically realigning our
industry foothold. On the one hand, we expect to penetrate into
the first-hand and second-hand agency services, while further
advancing the downstream sector of the industry chain by acquiring
firms specialized in living value adding services. In the next few
years, we will gradually ride on our strength to extend our reach
along the upstream and downstream of the industry chain with a
focus on property management. In doing so, the Group will
ultimately evolve into an integrated operator offering the whole-
industry community services.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks to
every shareholder, especially Greentown Service, our new strategic
partner, and business partner for their constant support and trust of
the Group, and also to every employee for their hard work and
contribution to the Group over last year. In the coming year, the
Group will continue its active expansion of business and enhance
its property management service quality, so as to bring a better,
more enjoyable and more satisfying experience for home life to
residents. With the continuous efforts of the Group, | believe that
the Group will bring good returns to its shareholders in the long
term.

Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2021

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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FINANCIAL HIGHLI
BT 2

GHTS

For the year ended

31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 4
RMB’'000 RMB'000 Change

AR¥T ARBFT 2
Revenue Uz 1,752,317 1,519,482 15.3%
Gross profit EF 441,641 403,441 9.5%
Profit for the year F R F 150,780 133,920 12.6%
Profit attributable to owners ISYNSIE YNyl

of the parent 131,509 108,568 21.1%
Gross profit margin (%) EFIER (%) 25.2% 26.6% -1.4 pp
-1.41E B 7 B
Net profit margin (%) A TR (%) 8.6% 8.8% 0.2 pp
0.21E " 7 B
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FBIREREBF (AREIT) 0.157 0.133 18.0%
Final dividend per share (HK$) SR AREREE (Bo) 0.0300 0.0275 9.1%

1 2 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 54 &

Revenue Gross profit and gross profit margin
Wz EMRERZR
(RMB million) (RMB million/%)
(ARERET) (ARBEET %)
2,000
1,752.3
148.3 27.6 et
1,600 s .\.\25.2
185.9
83.4
40.4
1,200 ‘3192 500
10230 441.6
332 403.4
400
800
300 282.1
11387 1,242.3
948.3 200
400
100
0
0 2018 2019 2020
2018 2019 2020
[ Property [l Cleaning and greening business
management services BRI AL
o
MBI [l Real estate agency
1 Sale Assistance business
services B EE IR 275
[GFEESE

Other business

HibR

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the company

RATEE AELFE(FE)
(RMB million)
(ANREEET)

140
131.5

120
108.6

100 96.1

60

40

2018 2019 2020

TREIEBMAERAE 1 3
2020 3]



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B4 2

Total assets Total equity
BEERE et
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ANR¥BEET) (AR®EBET)
2,500 1,000
891.4
2,069.5
2,000 18946 800
737.9
1,500 600 f_
' 1,341.2
1,000 400
500 200
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
Total Contracted GFA Average price of property management service
BMENEERERE MEEEREFIER
(million sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m./month)
(B&EFTK) (AR /FT5KIA)
80 2.0
720 72.0 1.80 1.81 1.81
70.5
70 66 . 6.4
13.6
60 15
50
40 1.0
65.6
654
30 56.9
20 0.5
10
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
M Undelivered GFA M Delivered GFA
ARNRERE ERREEERE
Note: M

1. Itis calculated as a weighted average of all the prices and fees specifiedon 1. ZREZHBFEERDEERZMNELTHENTEER
P53

the contracts that are generating revenue as of the end of each relevant BRAMNMETHENE  BETREEFESNERE -
year, excludes management fees for parking lots.

1 4 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property management
company in China. In 2020, the Group has the following recognition
and awards.

In January 2020, the Group has received 2020 E/MNEIR B Z2Y%E
EgBEASHEBRELENEG (the honorary title of Year 2020
Guangzhou International Intelligent Property Exhibition Excellent
Organization Prize*), BMNTYMEERITERB SN L - THAFEH
12 (Guangzhou City Property Management Industry Association
Establishment of 25 years anniversary Excellent Enterprise) and &
FEIE R E{L (Excellent Assistant President Unit*) by BN ¥WEE
BIT¥1%E (Guangzhou City Property Management Industry
Association®).

In March 2020, the Group has received “HUZ &Y% TEHE (Anti-
epidemic pioneer property projects*)” for the two buildings located
in Hangzhou under the Group’s management by T/ &R LR ETE
TR 2 2%

and City Municipal Construction Bureau®).

® (Hangzhou City Xiaoshan District Residential Houses

In April 2020, the Group has received 2020 F ¥ ¥ BB EFH /@
(Year 2020 Property Management Excellent Small District*) by 4\
M{Z21Z B2 (Huzhou City Renhuang Shan Committee*).

In May 2020, the Group has received 2020 F & _FM¥EREKEE
BEFH 3 (2020 China Excellent Listed Property Management
*), 2020 F B R B 8% (2020
China Top 100 Property Management Companies in China*) and
2020 R EIMERBITEMH(LE BRI (2020 China Property
Management Industry Marketing Operation Leading Company*) by
R BIFE SR FERT (China Index Academy*). The Group has received
BIWIEE L% (Labour Services Coordination Loving
Company?*) by BT ANERIMEERER (Ningbo City Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau™).

Company by Investment Value

In August 2020, the Group has received 20208 &Y ¥ Hoa b
(2020 Blue Chip Property Top 100 Company*) and £ iBi& & EED
% (Excellent Company by Investment Value*) by & /BERZH (The
Economic Observer*). The Group has also recelved 20204 [E &R
HIEEEDERI (Year 2020 Commitment to Integrity
Management Enterprise Title*) by LT/ &#Z 8 (Foshan City
Consumers Council™).

B I [ & A EE 0 AT

£ E)

AEBEREELBIYWESIERNA > 12020
T REBELENTRA K IEIE -

MR202041 A - ANEEEJE 2020 B I BB E ) 2
EE B FAEL LB - EM m%%afiﬂ
E¥peR Y T HAFEHOEREMNTYES
BITEBeNESIgREN -

R2020% 3 A » NEE G EEIEA RN A MR E
BEEMMNTHELREESMEBERBDT A
KRR ETER | -

R202044 A - REBE] ,t)i}llm{— Z8aF
B2020FYEEREF /G

R20205F58  AEBETBEEHMERF D
2020 B E R RGIREBEEF X - 2020
EP%%HE%E%@@%&ZOZOEPl%%ﬂlﬁ%ﬁ%
MG EEREDLE - AEBERBERTANE
RN G RERFTREBEHEELLE -

R2020% 8 A+ NEEEL EB R R 520208
EMEORPERIBIREBEDLE - NEE TN
EHILTHEEZ BT A2020F EAHRELEL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R am B AT

In October 2020, the Group has received 20205 & /8T EE
BEREEE (FEEWE)TEI (Year 2020 Shanghai City Property
Management Excellent Demonstrated Project (Residential Property)
Title*) on a residential unit in Shanghai under the Group's
management by F/EMYEETEITEW & (Shanghai City Property
Management Industry Association®).

In November 2020, the Group has received 2020 Asia Pacific
Enterprise Award Master Entrepreneur Category in Property
Development Industry trophy by Enterprise Asia.

In December 2020, the Group has received 2020/ & & ¥ % R I% 4R
G RENMPE (2020 Guangdong Province Property Service
Comprehensive Development Strength Enterprise*) and 2020 K&
@ YRS Mm% (Well-known Property Management Enterprise
in Great Bay Area in 2020%) by ERAMEETETERS
(Guangdong Province Property Management Industry
Association*). The Group has also received 20205 E #ist foiE BT
(Year 2020 Statistical Leading Unit*) by /B TERINESF P
(Shanghai City Pudong New District Statistics Bureau™*). In addition,
the Group has received 2020/ZPE i E & RF5 A 7] (2020 Guangxi
Real Estate Gold Shield Services Company*) by FIZEME R (Nanning
Evening Post*). The Group has received 2020/& FE I 522 /1 fn & Ak
TEHERE K 82 (2020 Guangxi Real Estate Influencing Brand Services
Institution Grand Prize*) by 78 H #{H % & E (Guangxi Daily Media
Group*).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total contracted GFA of
approximately 72.0 million sq.m. where it was contracted to
manage 613 properties across 45 cities in China.

The Group’s main business line is property management business.
Under the property management business line, the Group is
engaged in the provision of property management services,
provision of sales assistance services, provision of cleaning and
greening services, provision of real estate agency services and
other services.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Group primarily provides property developers and property
owners with a broad range of property management services to
mainly residential properties, commercial and government
buildings. Services provided by the Group include standard
property management services and also ancillary services such as
cleaning, gardening, security, repair and maintenance and butler
services. Through its butler services, the Group provides
personalised and premium property management services to
residents with its trained butlers onsite. While its primary and long-
term business focus is on the residential property market, the
Group also provides services to non-residential properties,
including both stand-alone non-residential properties and
properties associated with residential properties, such as schools
and commercial buildings.

The Group believes that service quality is fundamental to establish
a solid foundation to support the growth of the Group’s business.
The Group holds various qualifications and licenses in respect of
property management services, namely CMS31950, IEC27001,
ISO50001, ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001 and level one
property management qualification certificate.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had maintained its presence in
45 cities in China where it was contracted to manage a total of 613
residential properties and non-residential premises such as
commercial or government buildings with an aggregate contracted
GFA of approximately 72.0 million sgq.m. That remained the same
compared to the aggregate contracted GFA of approximately 72.0
million sq.m. as at 31 December 2019. In relation to the delivered
contracted GFA of approximately 65.6 million sg.m. as at 31
December 2020, it represented a growth of approximately 0.3%
compared to the delivered contracted GFA of approximately 65.4
million sg.m. as at 31 December 2019.

The Group strives to develop new business relationships from its
existing customer base and own network in order to provide strong
organic growth to the Group. In addition to organic growth, the
Group continues to identify the right acquisition targets to
strengthen its portfolio and increase geographic presence across
China.

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

The Group will continue to strategically select markets to enter into,
focus on those with more developed economies and comparatively
high per capita GDP. Once the Group has established presence in
a new city, it seeks to expand its business within the same city or
neighboring cities with a view to maximising its economies of scale.

BB R am B AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREH BRI

The map below illustrates the cities in which properties the Group T ERBBFR20205F 12 A3 B A E BT E B H
was contracted to manage were located and the number of ¥EFREHT REHMHIIEEEE -
projects in each city as of 31 December 2020.

M Eastern and Central China

ERRIEH

I Southern China

R
% Northern China
b,
" Western China
HEPY
Eastern and Central China ZERKEFErH
1. Changde (1) &E#E(1) 10. Jiaxing (1) Z=E(1) 19. Suzhou (42) &N (42)
2. Chongging 3) E[E(3) 11.  Kaifeng (2) FA%f(2) 20.  Taizhou (1) &N
3. Chuzhou (3) BN (3) 12.  Nanchang (1) FE&(1) 21.  Wenzhou (8) BJN(8)
4. Fuyang (1) BB (1) 13.  Nantong (14) FEiB(14) 22, Wuxi (8) #E5(8)
5. Hangzhou (60) #7/M (60) 14. Nanyang (1) EF5(1) 23. Xuancheng (3) E#(3)
6. Heze (4) SEZE(4) 15. Ningbo (298) 228 (298) 24, Yanan (2) EZ(2)
7. Huaian (2) 7% (2) 16.  Quzhou (8) M (8) 25.  Yueyang (1) &EHF(1)
8. Huanggang (1) & (1) 17.  Shanghai (18) _LE/&(18) 26.  Zhenjiang (3) #EI(3)
9. Huzhou (19) 81 (19) 18.  Shaoxing (9) #AE(9) 27.  Zhoukou (1) AEO(1)
Southern China #i&
28. Cenxi (7) 29&(7) 33. Guilin 3) EEM(3) 38. Wenchang (1) X &(1)
29.  Chongzuo (2) =7 (2) 34.  Jiangmen (1) JIP9(1) 39.  Wuzhou (8) #BM(8)
30. Foshan (18) f#LL(18) 35.  Nanning (19) % (19) 40.  Zhaoging (4) EZEEE(4)
31.  Guangzhou (11) EM(11) 36.  Qingyuan (4) JB&R4)
32.  Guigang (1) &&(1) 37. Sanya(7) =5:(7)
41.  Baotou (6) F2LZE (6) 43, Tianjin (1) R3E(1)
42, Beijing (1) dEE(1) 44.  Zhangjiakou (3) 5RZKHA (3)

Western China #Ef
45.  Lhasa (1) HIFE(1)

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of contracted  KfiT : SN E FEIRFTLHEB &8 -
projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R am B AT

The table below sets forth the delivered contracted GFA and the
number of properties under management as of the dates indicated.

As of 31 December 2020

TREBVRARARZERNENEERELE
BHMEHE -

720205128311

As of 31 December 2019
R2019F12 A 31 H

Sg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FE 5K 2 H FFEHK EgS

Residential properties FEY

Eastern and Central China® ERLGFEHO 43,020 326 41,890 317
Southern China® @ 13,649 63 13,339 61
Northern China® FEILO 1,979 7 2,415 7
Subtotal N5 58,648 396 57,644 385
Non-residential properties FEHEEY % 6,913 153 7,709 143
Total et 65,561 549 65,353 528

As of 31 December 2020, the Group's contracted GFA of
undelivered properties amounted to approximately 6.4 million
sg.m. (31 December 2019: 6.6 million sg.m.).

Notes:

(1) Including Changde, Chongging, Chuzhou, Fuyang, Hangzhou, Heze,
Huaian, Huanggang, Huzhou, Jiaxing, Kaifeng, Nanchang, Nantong,
Ningbo, Quzhou, Shanghai, Shaoxing, Suzhou, Taizhou, Wuxi,
Xuancheng, Yueyang and Zhenjiang.

(2) Including Cenxi, Foshan, Guangzhou, Guilin, Jiangmen, Nanning,
Qingyuan, Sanya, Wenchang, Wuzhou and Zhaogjing.

(3)  Including Baotou, Beijing and Zhangjiakou.

MR2020F12A31 8 AEBEBRINYWEESNE
HEBLZE6ABEFHAK(019F12A31H : 6.6
BEFEHK) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB R am B AT

The Group will continue to expand its business through obtaining ~ AN&EE S48 :F BB EFRES 4 L IREE 1Y)
new service engagements and acquisition of other property H¥EEQAARIMBEES - TR ENAELNE
management companies. The table below indicates the movement  SEEERAEETHEENYESE OED -

of the total contracted GFA and the number of properties the

Group was contracted to manage during the year.

As of 31 December 2020 As of 31 December 2019

R 2020%F12A31H 2019412 A31H
Sg.m. in Sg.m. in
thousands No. thousands No.
FEFK 2H FEHAK EgE
As at beginning of year F5]) 71,971 584 70,450 570
New engagements® HAAO 5,275 78 6,157 65
Acquisitions U B - - 3,991 30
Terminations®? RIEe (5,232) (49) (8,627) (81)
As at end of year FR 72,014 613 71,971 584
Notes: (T
(1) In relation to properties the Group manages, new engagements (1) HAEBEMREENYEMS  FELOTEBLREY
primarily include service engagements for new constructions ERREEENABZESBEBENOREEY &
developed by property developers and service engagements for EEVEFTRBEVETEQNRNRESY -
residential properties replacing their existing property management
companies.

(2 Including the contracted GFA and the number of properties the (2) BERAEETHEENYESHSIERLAER
Group ceased to manage, which were primarily due to non-renewal LHE TERATEELETYEEERESHLRER
of certain property management contracts and mutual termination BEERREMATEEKLLE -
prior to expiration for commercial reasons.

SALES ASSISTANCE SERVICES 1t 55 AR %5

The Group provides property developers with sales assistance AREEAYERREBIZEGHERE  KEHISZE
services by deploying on-site staff at the sales centres to maintain T R|$EEROLEER O WEHEHEBREDF
the conditions of the centres and provide timely assistance to  FEBIEFIREHE) o —RIGR T - NEBE R 7
facilitate various aspects of the sales process. The Group generally A A EME BB YEMESESNEE Y
continues to serve the property developer clients after the EZERREFRHERE - BiEAWEEIERSE
expiration of the sales assistance contracts by entering into BEBEHNEELR -

preliminary property management contracts. Sales assistance

serves as an important source of business for the property

management services.

20 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLEANING AND GREENING SERVICES

The Group provides property developers and property owners with
a series of indoor and outdoor environmental cleaning, greening
and maintenance. This business division also provides services to
the property developers and property owners of the property
management business division. Accordingly, segment result of
cleaning and greening division is evaluated by the Group’s
management on services as subcontracted from the property
management business division.

REAL ESTATE AGENCY SERVICES

The Group provides property developers and property owners with
agency services on the leasing and sales assistance of residential
properties and retail units.

OTHER BUSINESS

Other businesses comprise shuttle bus, security guard and
maintenance services in the PRC, engineering services, catering
services and the sale of engineering spare parts.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group will continue to maintain its own advantage as an
independent property management company and compete with
counterparts in the market by its high quality service and
operational efficiency. The Group will actively establish stable
partnerships with leading property developers and/or property
management service providers in all regions and explore potential
projects under development. The Group will strive to develop new
business relationships from its existing customer base and own
network in order to provide strong organic growth to the Group.
The Group also targets to expand its portfolio of customers by
pursuing properties with established owners’ association.
Furthermore, when right opportunities arise, the Group will
accelerate its expansion by expanding its business scope and
coverage in China by means of acquisitions and cooperation.

BB R am B AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R am B AT

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement entered
between the Group and the vendors in July 2016, the Group will
acquire the remaining interests in Yongcheng in four tranches of
7.5% each at a price of RMB22.5 million for each of the subsequent
acquisition if the adjusted net profit of Yongcheng for each of the
four financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019
will not be less than RMB32.0 million. Since the net profit of
Yongcheng for the financial year of 2019 has met the profit
guarantee provision provided to the Group, the Group entered into
acquisition agreements with the vendors on 22 June 2020, to
purchase the last tranche of 7.5% of the registered capital of
Yongcheng at a consideration of RMB22.5 million.

Upon completion of the above acquisition, the Group holds 100.0%
of the registered capital of Yongcheng. Yongcheng becomes a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its financial results
have been fully consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. The Directors are of the view that the
Group's increase in shareholding in Yongcheng will further
consolidate the profit base and provide a stable return of
investments to the shareholders.

In January 2020, the Group acquired 60% equity interest in Jindun
Zhengan, a company established in the PRC with limited liability,
for an aggregate consideration of RMB68.0 million. Jindun Zhengan
is principally engaged in provision of security services and variety of
outsourcing security services in the PRC.

In January 2020, the Group entered into the property transfer
agreement with LT IB/E[ERA AR RIEEE R BR AR (Foshan
City Shunde District Chencun Town Kangying Investment
Management Company Limited®), to acquire a three-storey office
building situated at L7 IB12E & PR AT S A F ¥ SR 3001501
5% - 16015% 2170158 (Number 1501, 1601 and 1701, Pacific
Dingwang Commercial Center, Chencun Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, the PRC*) with a total gross floor area of approximately
3,672.72 square metres at a total consideration of RMB46.1 million.

In June 2020, the Group acquired 51% equity interests in
Guangdong Huarui, a company established in the PRC with limited
liability, for an aggregate consideration of RMB40.0 million.
Guangdong Huarui is principally engaged in provision of cleaning
services, greening services and maintenance, and outdoor wall
cleaning in the PRC.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In June 2020, the Group entered into a Cooperation Agreement
with Greentown Service, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2869), pursuant
to which the Group and Greentown Service agreed to cooperate
comprehensively in areas such as life services and property services
business. Greentown Service is a leading high-end residential
property management service provider in the PRC with a diversified
portfolio comprising property service, consulting service and
community living service.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Company and
Greentown Service agreed to jointly establish the JV Company with
registered capital of RMB5.0 million, which shall be owned as to
30% by the Company and 70% by Greentown Service. The
Company will inject RMB1.5 million and Greentown Service will
inject RMB3.5 million into the JV Company and Greentown Service
undertook to provide life services products, technology, service
systems and professional resources to the JV Company.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, it was further agreed
between the parties that (i) for any property services businesses
that Greentown Service decides not to undertake by reasons of,
among others, its service position and cost structure, Greentown
Service agreed to give priority to recommend such businesses to
the Company; (i) within 6 years from the date of the Cooperation
Agreement, Greentown Service agreed to give priority to consider
the Company and its affiliates for undertaking Greentown Service's
outsourcing businesses, such as the provision of cleaning, security,
maintenance and elevator maintenance services, on the basis that
the terms offered by the Company and its affiliates shall not be less
favorable than those offered by independent third parties to
Greentown Service and provided that the Company and its affiliates
possess the requisite professional qualifications, the quality of
services to be provided shall reach the quality standard required by
Greentown Service and the service fees to be charged shall be in
line with the prevailing market prices; and (i) commencing from 1
July 2021 and subject to fulfilment of the foregoing requirements
and the relevant requirements under all applicable laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules, Greentown Service and the
Company and/or its affiliates shall enter into the relevant property
services agreements for engaging the Company and/or its affiliates
to provide the above property services with turnover of the relevant
business services of not less than RMB300.0 million per year and
with an increment of RMB200.0 million every year since the third
year of cooperation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In July 2020, the Group acquired 70% equity interests in
Guangdong Xunhua, a company established in the PRC with limited
liability, for an aggregate consideration of RMB40.0 million.
Guangdong Xunhua is principally engaged in provision of
intelligent system solutions engineering services in the PRC.

In August 2020, the Group purchased 100% equity interests in Jinan
Express Service at a total consideration of RMB39.7 million. Upon
completion, Jinan Express Service has become a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Jinan Express Service is principally
engaged in indoor cleaning, outdoor cleaning and greening
services, shuttle bus, catering, security guard and maintenance
services in the PRC.

In December 2020, the Group purchased 100% equity interests in
Guangzhou Nuodeng at a total consideration of RMB5.1 million in
full settlement by 49% equity interest in Ningbo Yongdu. Upon
completion, Guangzhou Nuodeng has become a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Guangzhou Nuodeng is principally
engaged in installation, repair and maintenance of elevator in the
PRC. This acquisition is subsequently completed in January 2021.

It is expected that (i) acquisition of Jindun Zhengan can extend
security guard and maintenance services; (i) acquisition of a new
property can have a better working environment to capture the
majority of the business lines staff together; (iii) investment in
Guangdong Huarui will capture more extensive size cleaning
services projects in the PRC; (iv) strategic cooperation with
Greentown Service can break through a new era for the Group to
step into a higher position in the industry; (v) investment in
Guangdong Xunhua can extend wisdom engineering services; and
(vi) investment in Jinan Express Service and Guangzhou Nuodeng
will further extend more value adding services on indoor cleaning,
outdoor cleaning and greening services, shuttle bus, catering,
security guard and maintenance services and installation, repair and
maintenance of elevator in the PRC for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB1,752.3 million, representing an
increase of 15.3% over the year 2019.

Increase in the Group’s revenue was primarily attributable to the
growth in property management business revenue from
approximately RMB1,138.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB1,242.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 and represented 9.1% increase over the
corresponding year. In addition, the Group’s revenue generated
from real estate agency business has increased by approximately
RMB52.0 million, from cleaning and greening business has
increased by approximately RMB52.0 million and from other
businesses has increased by approximately RMB25.4 million.

Breakdown of revenue by business line and services
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2020 2019 Change
2020 F 2019 4 &

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
AR TR AR%®TT AR®KTT %

Property management business S EREE
— Property management services — MEEERG 1,242,251 1,138,745 103,506 9.1
— Sale assistance services — %R 40,351 40,361 -10 -0.1
Cleaning and greening business BB R AR T 83,567 31,595 51,972 164.5
Real estate agency business EiERIEESE 237,863 185,913 51,950 27.9
Other business HER 148,285 122,868 25,417 20.7
1,752,317 1,519,482 232,835 15.3
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R am B AT

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

The Group's property management business includes the provision
of property management services, sales assistance services and
other services. Details of analysis of each service are as follows:

Property management services

Revenue from property management services increased by
approximately RMB103.5 million or approximately 9.1% over 2019
primarily due to increase of property management services revenue
of approximately RMB68.0 million from &/ T X [E @ 12 E ¥ s &
B B 2 7l (Suzhou Industrial Park House Construction Property
Development Company Limited*) (“Suzhou House Construction”)
and of approximately RMB10.0 million from kAR B 18 {2 ¥ 5 AR 75
B B 2 a8 (Guilin Hengxin Property Services Company Limited*)
(“Guilin Hengxin”), those were newly acquired during 2019.

Sales assistance services

Revenue from the sale assistance services for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB40.4 million, which was
similar to that of approximately RMB40.4 million in 2019.

Cleaning and greening business

Revenue from cleaning and greening business for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately RMB83.6 million, comparing
to approximately RMB31.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB52.0 million or 164.5%. The increase was
primarily due to acquisition of Guangdong Huarui during the year.

Real estate agency business

Revenue from real estate agency business for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB237.9 million, comparing
to approximately RMB185.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB52.0 million or 27.9%. The increase was mainly
due to the full year count of revenue in 2020 instead of cut off count
of eight months revenue since its acquisition in April 2019.

Other businesses

Revenue from other businesses increased from approximately
RMB122.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB148.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase of approximately RMB25.4 million or 20.7% over
the year was mainly due to the revenue generated from newly
acquired subsidiaries during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

The Group's cost of sales and services primarily comprises (i) sub-
contracting costs, representing the expenses paid to sub-
contractors for various services under the property management
services and sales assistance services; (ii) staff costs; (iii)
depreciation expenses associated with equipment and property
used in providing services; (iv) costs of other services and sale of
goods such as salaries cost of the technicians in the provision of
elevator engineering services and weak-current engineering
services; costs of the spare parts sold and operating costs in
running the catering services and (v) costs of cleaning and greening
products and utensils as well as commission paid for the real estate
and property agency services.

Cost of sales and services increased by 17.4% from approximately
RMB1,116.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB1,310.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was due primarily to the growth of the Group’s
business and the corresponding increase in the labor costs and
sub-contracting costs.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The tables below sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross
profit margins by services for the years indicated:
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For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 F

% of % of
RMB’'000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
AR%ET T HlE% ARETIT 1 ES %

Property management business M EIRETS
— Property management services — MEEERE 330,189 26.6 295,572 26.0
— Sale assistance services — %R 11,973 29.7 8,511 21.1
Cleaning and greening business VBB MER TS 11,715 14.0 19,553 61.9
Real estate agency business EiERIEEE 61,847 26.0 59,568 32.0
Other business HER 25,917 17.5 20,237 16.5
Overall e 441,641 25.2 403,441 26.6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB441.6 million, comparing to RMB403.4 million in 2019,
representing an increase of RMB38.2 million, or 9.5%. The Group's
gross profit margin decreased from 26.6% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to 25.2% in 2020.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The Group’s other income and gains for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB54.9 million, comparing to
approximately RMB33.8 million in 2019, representing an increase of
approximately RMB21.1 million, or 62.4%. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in government grants of
approximately RMB23.7 million for subsidy to subsidiaries to face
the challenge under the Covid-19 epidemic.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The Group's selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2020 were approximately RMB12.6 million, comparing
to approximately RMB13.5 million in 2019, representing a decrease
of approximately RMBO0.9 million, or 6.7%. The decrease was
primarily due to decrease in remuneration to sales personnels of
approximately RMB2.0 million.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB238.4 million, comparing
to approximately RMB192.3 million in 2019, representing an
increase of approximately RMB46.1 million, or 24.0%. The increase
was primarily due to the net effect of (i) the employee remuneration
increased by approximately RMB38.1 million for the newly acquired
businesses; (ii) higher depreciation charge of fixed asset items of
approximately RMB3.9 million; (iii) office expenses increased by
approximately RMB2.3 million for expansion of the Group's scale;
and (iv) higher advisory fee of approximately RMB2.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group's net impairment losses on financial assets were
approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, comparing to net impairment losses on financial assets of
approximately RMB26.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of approximately RMB4.0 million in
the provision for impairment losses on financial assets which was
primarily due to improvement of trade receivables ageing.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's net finance expenses amounted to approximately
RMB18.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 comparing
to net finance expenses for year ended 31 December 2019 of
approximately RMB21.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB3.4 million or 15.8%. The decrease was primarily
due to lower interest expense of approximately RMB5.6 million
imputed on consideration payable.

INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax expense for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB51.8 million. The Group's effective tax
rate increased from 23.5% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
25.6% in 2020.

GOODWILL

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded goodwill of
approximately RMB380.0 million, representing an increase of 53.0%
as compared with that of approximately RMB248.3 million as at 31
December 2019. The increase in goodwill of the Group was
primarily due to goodwill in relation to a number of the acquisition
transactions during the year. The goodwill primarily derived from
the expected future business development of the above acquired
companies, increase of market coverage, expansion of service
portfolio, integration of value-added services and improvement of
management efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables mainly arose from property management services
income and real estate agency business.

As at 31 December 2020, total trade receivables of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB374.2 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB41.9 million compared to
approximately RMB332.3 million as at 31 December 2019. The
increase was primarily due to (i) the expansion of the Group's
business scale; and (ii) the increase of trade receivables after the
acquisition of a number of subsidiaries in 2020.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments and other receivables primarily comprise payment on
behalf of customers to utility suppliers, prepayments, deposits paid
to utility suppliers and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's prepayments and other
receivables amounted to approximately RMB303.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB15.4 million compared
to approximately RMB288.2 million as at 31 December 2019. The
increase was primarily due to increase in other receivables by
approximately RMB16.9 million mainly due to increase of prepayments
and other receivables of newly acquired businesses.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB15.0 million mainly represented the fair value of the options to
dispose the acquired equity interest in the newly acquired
subsidiaries to the non-controlling equity holders. Increase in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss from
approximately RMB2.5 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB15.0 million as at 31 December 2020 was mainly
due to further acquisition of a number of subsidiaries during the
year.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables primarily comprise payables to sub-contractors of
the Group’s property management services. Trade payables
decreased from approximately RMB136.9 million as at 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB72.4 million as at 31 December 2020.
This was primarily due to less utilisation of third party value adding
services after acquisition of related subsidiaries during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals primarily comprise receipts on behalf
of community residents for utilities, contract liabilities, received in
advances, accruals, deposits received and other payables. Other
payables and accruals increased from approximately RMB645.1
million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB836.2 million
as at 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily due to the net
effect of (i) the increase of approximately RMB62.3 million in other
payable and accruals; (ii) the increase in amounts due to non-
controlling equity holders of a subsidiary of approximately
RMB139.1 million; and (iii) the increase of approximately RMB27.1
million in other tax payables.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial position. The
Group's principal sources of funds to finance the working capital,
capital expenditure and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As at 31 December 2020,
net working capital (calculated as current assets less current
liabilities) was approximately RMB99.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB24.5 million from approximately
RMB123.7 million as at 31 December 2019. The current ratios
(calculated as current assets/current liabilities) are 1.1 times as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: 1.1 times).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings were
denominated in RMB except for unsecured borrowings amounting
to RMB20,071,000 (31 December 2019: RMB42,235,000) which were
denominated in HKD. A non-controlling equity holder of a
subsidiary of the Company provided a personal guarantee in
respect of certain bank loans granted to the Group up to
RMB7,750,000 (31 December 2019: RMB35,000,000) at nil
consideration as at 31 December 2020. The bank borrowing
balances of the Group bore interest at floating rates, except for
bank and other borrowings of RMB58,200,000 at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: RMB88,300,000) that bore interest at fixed
rates. The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their fair values.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group principally focused on the operation in the PRC. Except
for the cash, bank deposits and bank borrowings denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group was not subject to any other material
risk directly relating to the foreign exchange fluctuation. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, despite the depreciation of RMB
against USD and HKD, the Directors expected any fluctuation of
the RMB exchange rate would not materially and adversely affect
the operations of the Group. The management will continue to
monitor foreign currency exchange exposure and will take prudent
measures to minimise the currency translation risk.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings add amounts due
to non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary and net of bank
balances and cash divided by total equity. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group was in a strong financial position with a net cash position
amounting to approximately RMB251.8 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB301.9 million). Accordingly, no gearing ratio is
presented.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2020, investment properties of approximately
RMB54.2 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB146.4
million) were pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted to
the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 9,735 (2019:
9,065) employees. In order to enhance the morale and productivity
of employees, employees are remunerated based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practices.
Compensation policies and packages of management staff and
functional heads are being reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition
to basic salary, performance related salary may also be awarded to
employees based on internal performance evaluation. Moreover,
the Company adopted a share option scheme in April 2015 and
share award scheme in June 2017 in order to retain elite personnel
to stay with the Group and to provide incentives for their
contribution to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group also invests in continuing education and training
programmes for management staff and other employees with a
view to upgrading their skills and knowledge. These training
courses comprise internal courses run by the management of the
Group and external courses provided by professional trainers and
range from technical training for butlers to financial and
administrative trainings for management staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In December 2020, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Guangzhou Nuodeng at a total consideration of RMB5.1 million in
full settlement by 49% equity interest of a subsidiary of the Group.
Upon completion of the acquisition, Guangzhou Nuodeng
becomes a subsidiary of the Group. This acquisition is subsequently
completed in January 2021.

On 26 March 2021, the Board has resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HKD3.00 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HKD2.75 cents) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 8 June 2021. Subject to the approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the "AGM"), the final dividend is
expected to be payable on or about 2 July 2021. The aggregate
amount shall be paid out of the Company’s share premium account
if the payment of the dividend is approved by the shareholders at
the AGM.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

SEENSREEELT

DIRECTORS
MR. LIU JIAN

Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 53, is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first members of the
Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao Property
Management Company Limited (“Zhong Ao Property”) with Ms.
Chen Zhuo in September 2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the sole
director of Zhong Ao Property in September 2005 and has been
primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Liu plays a key
role in the Group's business development and has led its business
expansion from Guangdong province to other parts of China. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd.
(EMAE SRR JE B BR A F)) from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last
position held was manager. From September 1994 to March 1999,
he worked at Guilin Royal Gardens Hotel Co., Ltd. (e %288 /55
[R/AR]) and his last position held was manager. From 1999 to
December 2003, Mr. Liu served as general manager of Guangzhou
Olympic Garden Property Company (BEMEMIC & EE YA A)
and from February 2004 to June 2005, as general manager of
Nanguo Aoyuan Property Company (FIE 2 E ¥ % A 7)), both
companies being subsidiaries of Guangdong Yabo Property Service
Company Limited (BEREEWEREBR A F) (“Guangdong
Yabo"”). Mr. Liu graduated from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology (EEH 12 T KZ) with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu attained a master’s degree in
business administration from Asia International Open University
(Macau).

MS. CHEN ZHUO

Executive Director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 43, is a vice president of the Company and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5 January
2015. Ms. Chen joined the Group as vice president when Zhong Ao
Property was established in September 2005. As a founder and a
member of the core management team of the Group, she has been
primarily responsible for financial management, strategic planning
and business development. Ms. Chen served as deputy general
manager of Guangdong Yabo from August 2002 to March 2005. Ms.
Chen received a college degree from Sun Yat-sen University ({1 [LX
2 in 1999, majoring in business management. Ms. Chen obtained
the qualification of a property management manager in 2000 from
the Ministry of Construction of the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. LIANG BING

Executive Director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 49, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5
January 2015. Mr. Liang joined the Group as vice president in
September 2005. As a member of the Group's core management
team, he has been primarily responsible for overall operation and
management, strategic planning and business development. Mr.
Liang served as deputy general manager of Guangdong Yabo from
May 2002 to June 2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a
bachelor’'s degree in environmental engineering from Hunan
University (88 A22) located in Hunan, the PRC in July 1996. He
later obtained a master's degree in business administration for
senior management from Sun Yat-sen University (LK) in 2013.

MR. LONG WEIMIN

Executive Director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 58, is a vice president of the Company and
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 5
January 2015. Mr. Long joined the Group as vice president in June
2008. As a member of the Group's core management team, he has
been primarily responsible for overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development. Mr. Long has 14
years of experience in the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Long served as a deputy general manager at Guangxi
Nanning Fenghuang Lodge (EFam % BB & £F) from November
2001 to January 2004, as a deputy general manager at Purui
Hotspring Hotel (I8 5B E) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general
manager at Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co. Ltd. (/&[5 #3#]
BIBRERJE B PR A &) from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Long graduated and
attained a diploma from Guangxi Radio and TV University (E7HE
HEALKRE) in 1982,
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E=ZNEREEERNT

MR. WU ZHIHUA

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Zhihua, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 29 June 2020. Mr. Wu has been executive
director of Greentown Service (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2869) since 27 November 2015.
On 23 March 2018 and 4 August 2018, Mr. Wu was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Greentown
Service respectively. He also served as a director of Greentown
Property Management Co., Ltd. (B RIFEBBR A F], an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Greentown Service) since 7
August 2015.

Mr. Wu graduated from Zhejiang University (4T A2 in Hangzhou,
the PRC with a bachelor’'s degree majoring in tourism management,
and obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (/8 T AXZ) in Hong
Kong.

MS. JIN KELI

Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Keli, aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive Director of
our Company since 17 July 2020. She has been the Chief Operating
Officer of Greentown Service since 23 March 2018. She is
responsible for management work in relation to the overall
operation of Greentown Service as well as for management of
administration and human resources. Ms. Jin joined Greentown
Service in May 2006, and served as administrative president of
Lvcheng Property Group and executive general manager of
Shanghai Xinhu Lvcheng Property Services Company Limited from
January 2012 to January 2014, and from January 2014 to July 2017,
respectively. She also worked as the assistant to president, vice
president and president of Greentown Property Management from
February 2015 to July 2017, from August 2017 to March 2018 and
from March 2018 to present, respectively. Ms. Jin graduated from
China University of Political Science and Law (REIBUEKZ), with a
bachelor's degree majoring in philosophy.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. ZHANG WEILUN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Weilun, aged 48, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 5 November 2015. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked as an assistant project manager and project manager at
Shimizu Corporation (BKERKI 24L) from June 1996 to
November 1997 and from December 1997 to May 1998 respectively.
During 1999 to 2004, he successively served as a general manager
of Nanguo Olympic Garden (F§BIEEMIC 52 EE]) , a president, vice-
chairman and director of Wuhan Chengcheng Cultural Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (BUEHA LR ESERNHBER A A (now
changed to Bestsun Energy Co., Ltd. BJII82RARMD AR A F)) (stock
code: 600681), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
an executive vice president and a director of Aoyuan Group Limited
(BEEEHBRZAF). Mr. Zhang has been the chairman and general
manager of Guangzhou Willsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (B/NEHREZ
BBR A7) since 2005. Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan University
of Hydraulic and Electrical Engineering (BZ/KFIE JRKE now
changed to Faculty of Engineering Wuhan University) with a
bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering in 1993.
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MR. CHAN WAI CHEUNG, ADMIRAL

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, aged 47, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2017. Mr. Admiral Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Honours) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Admiral Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting and
auditing fields. Mr. Admiral Chan is an executive director of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 353), an independent
non-executive director of SFund International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1367), an independent non-executive director of China Water
Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 855) and an independent non-executive
director of China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8132). He was an independent non-executive director of Carnival
Group International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 996), from 10 December
2014 to 30 April 2019 and a non-executive director of China
Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company previously listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8306), from 1 June 2015
to 31 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. CHAN KA LEUNG KEVIN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin, aged 52, joined the Company and was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2017. Mr. Kevin Chan, holds a bachelor of
science degree in accounting and a master of science degree from
the University of lllinois of the United States of America. Mr. Kevin
Chan has extensive experience in corporate finance. He is currently
a responsible officer of a corporation licensed under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
"SFO") to conduct type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity. Mr. Kevin Chan has been an independent non-executive
director of Teamway International Group Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1239) since 21 June 2019 and China Futex Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8506) since 18 January 2021. He was an
independent non-executive director of Greens Holdings Ltd, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1318) from 8 January 2015 to 12 November 2015.

MR. HUANG ANXIN

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Anxin, aged 58, joined the Company and was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 3
October 2017. Mr. Huang obtained a master degree in
management from Central China Normal University in 2000. He is
currently the professor of Guangzhou Open University and Deputy
Director of Human Resources Development Committee of China
Property Management Association. He has over 32 years of
experience of teaching in the People’s Republic of China and in
particular, the subject of corporate management and
administration. He also has intensive knowledge in other areas such
as property management, economic management and
administration and community governance.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. CHAN KONG

Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 71, joined the Group as a vice president in April
2008. Prior to joining the Group, he served as an executive
housekeeper at Guilin Riverside Resort, China (B4 & £8) from
February 1987 to February 1988. From February 1988 to January 2002,
Mr. Chan worked with Macau CTS Hotel Management (International)
Limited (RPIF R (FBR) JBEEIEHBRAF]). He joined as a project
coordinator in 1988 and was later assigned by a secondment to Hotel
Universal Guilin in the capacity of an executive housekeeper. He was
subsequently promoted and served as general manager of Hotel
Universal Guilin and general manager of Hotel Metropole, Macau (2
P9 EBEJE) and Xi'an Eastern Haojing Hotel (FA% B 5 /REEE).
From 2003 to 2004, he served as a general manager at Man Wah
Dongguan Hotel (REZEEEAE).

MS. XIANG YAN
Assistant to CEO

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 35, joined the Group in October 2005. She is
currently the Assistant to CEO of the Group. Ms. Xiang graduated
from Jinan University (@ K2) and obtained a diploma in
property management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. SIU KAl CHUN

Financial controller and company secretary

Mr. Siu Kai Chun (with former name Siu Kwok Yee), aged 52, is
appointed as the financial controller and company secretary of the
Group. Mr. Siu is primarily responsible for the overall financial
management, corporate governance, investors relationship and
financial operations of the Group. Mr. Siu has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, finance and accounting. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Siu was the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Moody Technology Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1400) from
May 2013 to June 2019. Mr. Siu graduated from the City University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in business studies in
December 1994, completed the executive master of business
administration programme at Lingnan (University) College, Sun Yat-
sen University, Guangzhou, China in November 2003 and obtained
the master of science degree in Finance from the University College
Dublin, The National University of Ireland in October 2016. Mr. Siu
is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Siu was a senior manager at Ernst & Young
Transactions Limited from June 2012 to May 2013. Mr. Siu was the
financial controller from June 2003 to March 2005 and the chief
financial officer from April 2005 to March 2012 at CHT (Holdings)
Ltd., a company engaging in the manufacture and sale of adhesive
tapes, respectively. Mr. Siu also worked as a senior auditor at Ernst
& Young from 2000 to 2003, a senior accountant at Debbie Morgan
Trading Limited in 1999 and a tax accountant and auditor at
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1994 to 1998. Mr. Siu was an
independent non-executive director of China Nonferrous Metals
Company Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8306), from June 2015 to May 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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PEEIRMS

The board ("Board”) of directors ("Directors”) of the Company is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance of the Company to ensure that
formal and transparent procedures are in place to protect and
maximise the interests of the shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Company applied and complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code except for code provisions A.2.1 and
A.4.1, and explained with considered reasons for such deviation.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

o To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

o To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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(i)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to Directors and employees; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. There is a strong
independent element on the Board, to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board's decision making
process as well as the thoroughness and impartiality of the
Board's oversight of the management.

The Board possesses, both as individual Directors and
collectively, appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to
discharge its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In
addition, the Board collectively has adequate knowledge and
expertise relevant to each of the material business activities
that the Company pursues and the associated risks in order to
ensure effective governance and oversight.

Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business, professional
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.

The Board members have no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
with each other.
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(iii)
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The Board of the Company currently comprises of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Zhihua
Ms. Jin Keli

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral

Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Board meetings (ii)
During the year ended 31 December 2020, eleven Board
meetings were held. Prior notices convening the Board
meetings were despatched to the Directors setting out the
matters to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed and
approved. The company secretary is responsible for keeping
minutes for the Board meetings.

Responsibilities of the Board and management (iii)
The executive Directors, with the assistance from the senior
management, form the core management team of the
Company. The executive Directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) and the senior management
personnel are responsible for supervising and executing the

plans of the Group.
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(iv) Independence of independent non-executive

(V)

Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate and
sufficient diversity, industry or finance experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of the Shareholders. One of the independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the
independent non-executive Directors has submitted a written
statement to the Stock Exchange confirming their
independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent
change of circumstances which may affect their
independence. In addition, the Company has also received a
written confirmation from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence. Based
on such confirmations, the Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Induction for Director and continuous
professional development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he or she has a
proper understanding of the Company's operations and
businesses as well as his or her responsibilities under relevant
status, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
provides Directors with regular updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The company secretary of the Company
has from time to time updated and provided written training
materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, each Director,
namely Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing, Mr. Long
Weimin, Mr. Wu Zhihua, Ms. Jin Keli, Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr.
Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral, Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin and
Mr. Huang Anxin, has participated in continuous professional
development by reading relevant materials on regulatory
requirements and/or attending training sessions or seminars
organised by the Company or externally.

(iv)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key aspects of the
management of a company. Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership for the board and management of the board while chief
executive officer is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Clear division of these responsibilities should be in place
to ensure a balance power and authority. The code provision A.2.1
of CG Code which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian ("Mr. Liu”) is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation from
the code provision A.2.1 of CG Code.

The Company considers that having Mr. Liu acting as both the
chairman and chief executive officer will provide a strong and
consistent leadership to the Group and allow for more effective
strategic planning and management of the Group. Further, in view
of Mr. Liu's experience in the industry, personal profile and role in
the Group and historical development of the Group, the Group
considers it is to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects
that Mr. Liu continues to act as both the chairman and chief
executive officer after the Listing. Therefore, the Company currently
has no intention to separate the functions of chairman and chief
executive officer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code requires that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term until termination by the notice period
as stipulated in the respective appointment letter in writing served
by either the Company or the respective Director. They were,
however, subject to the requirement of retirement and re-election
at least once every three years at the annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Company's articles of association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures were taken to ensure that the Company'’s
corporate governance practices were no less exacting than those in
the code provisions of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 5 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rule and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The audit committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr.
Chan Ka Leung, Kevin, all being independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral is the chairman of the
audit committee with the appropriate professional qualifications.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, five audit committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each Director
is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

At the meetings, the members of audit committee principally
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company
about the Group's annual results and audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim
review scope and process for the Group’s result for the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and audit scope and process for the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and assessment, financial
reporting process and internal control system, respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee four members, namely
Mr. Zhang Weilun, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
and Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin. Mr. Zhang Weilun is the chairman of
the remuneration committee. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and approve
recommendations on management remuneration.
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The remuneration committee meets to determine the policy for the
remuneration of Directors and assess the performance of executive
Directors and approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts. In determining the remuneration for Directors, the
remuneration committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three remuneration
committee meetings were held and the individual attendance of
each Director is set out in the section "Directors’ Attendance
Records At Meetings”.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 5
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
nomination committee has four members, namely Mr. Liu Jian, Mr.
Zhang Weilun, Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral and Mr. Chan Ka
Leung, Kevin. Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman of the nomination
committee. The primary duties of the nomination committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, three nomination
committee meeting was held and the individual attendance of each
Director is set out in the section “Directors’ Attendance Records At
Meetings”.

NOMINATION POLICY
I.  Objective

1.1 The nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and
selection of Directors, including the appointment of
additional Directors, replacement of Directors, and re-
election of Directors.
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Il. Policy Statement

2.1

22

The Company recognises the importance of having a
qualified and competent Board to achieve the Group
corporate strategy as well as promote shareholder
value.

The Company believes that a Board that possesses a
balance of skill set, experience, expertise and diversity
of perspectives enhances decision-making capability
and the overall effectiveness of the Board. The Board is
committed to ensuring that proper nomination and
election processes are in place for the selection and
nomination of Directors.

Ill. Selection Criteria

3.1

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the
Nomination Committee shall consider the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee shall consider the following
selection criteria and such other factors that it may
consider appropriate for a position on the Board:

()  Attributes Complementary to the Board: The
candidate should possess attributes that
complement and expand the skill set, experience
and expertise of the Board as a whole, having
regard to the current structure, size, diversity
profile and skills matrix of the Board and the
needs of the Board.

(i) Business Experience & Board Expertise and
Skills: The candidate should have the ability to
exercise sound business judgment and also
possess proven achievement and experience in
directorship including effective oversight of and
guidance to management.

(i) Awvailability: The candidate should have sufficient
time for the proper discharge of the duties of a
Director, including devoting adequate time for the
preparation and participation in meetings, training
and other Board or Company associated activities.
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(iv)

Motivation: The candidate should be self-
motivated and have a strong interest in the
Company'’s businesses.

Integrity: The candidate should be a person of
integrity, honesty, good repute and high
professional standing.

Independence: Independent non-executive
Director candidates must satisfy the independence
requirements under the Listing Rules. The
candidate shall be independent in character and

judgement and be able to represent and act in the

best interests of all Shareholders.

The above criteria are for reference only and are not

meant to be exhaustive or decisive. The Board shall take

into consideration the benefits of a diversified Board

when selecting Board candidates.

IV. Nomination Procedures

50

4.1 Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

0]

If the Board determines that an additional or
replacement Director is required, it will deploy
multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from Directors,
shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of
potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will shortlist candidates for consideration by the
Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The
Board has the final authority on determining
suitable director candidate for appointment.
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42 Re-election of Directors and Nomination from
Shareholders

() Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election, the Board shall consider
and, if consider appropriate, recommend such
retiring Director to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will
be sent to shareholders prior to a general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(i) Shareholder(s) may nominate a candidate to stand
for election as a Director at a general meeting in
accordance with the “Procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director of
the Company” published by the Company from
time to time.

V. Review and Monitoring

5.1  The Board will from time to time review this Policy and
monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining an effective Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. The Board has adopted the Board
Diversity Policy with an aim to promote broad experience and
diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

The Board has reviewed, through the Nomination Committee, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board as well as the
nomination and appointment procedure of Directors during the
year.
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A
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT

MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various meetings held

during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the table

EENEBNHELTE

TERESINZSEENEHE2020F12831BIEFE
NFTRITSESHMN L ERE

below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Board

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
Name EREEE FMESEE REEEE EEg [ &
£1B =f ] =f ] =f ] =f ] BEXRE
Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman) N/A N/A 4/4 11/11 11
BsREE(EE) T E A A iE A
Ms. Chen Zhuo N/A 4/4 N/A 11/11 1/1
PRE 2+ i A i A
Mr. Liang Bing N/A N/A N/A 1M/ 11
RESEE T EA A TEA
Mr. Long Weimin N/A N/A N/A 1M/11 11
BEARLAE AN iE A N iE A ANiE A
Mr. Wei Zhe®" N/A N/A N/A 5/5 1/1
BHETED i i A NEA
Ms. Wu Qimin®@ N/A N/A N/A 6/6 1/1
Riggzr L@ i A A T EA
Mr. Wu Zhihua® N/A N/A N/A 5/5 N/A
REEFLEO i A N3 i A i A
Ms. Jin Keli® N/A N/A N/A 4/4 N/A
SRBZT® A iE A T E A iE A iE A
Mr. Zhang Weilun 5/5 3/3 3/3 1M/11 11
SRAE R A
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral 5/5 3/3 3/3 1M/11 11
PRIEELE
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin 5/5 3/3 3/3 11/11 11
BRRREE
Mr. Huang Anxin N/A N/A N/A 1M/1 11
BELOGE i A AN i A
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m Mr. Wei Zhe has tendered his resignation with effect from 29 June
2020.

2 Ms. Wu Qimin has tendered her resignation with effect from 17 July
2020.

(3) Mr. Wu Zhihua has been appointed on 29 June 2020.

(4)  Ms. Jin Keli has been appointed on 17 July 2020.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
Ernst & Young are set out below:

PEERWSE

(1) HEELECREGES - B2020F6 29 BAEM ©

(2 REPEZTCERLFER B202067/817884E
W e

(3) REFERLEN2020F6H29BESR(T -

@)  SREBLER2020F7 A17 BESE -

BB &

BE2020F12A3ALEFE L KSAME
B mASERERZBIFRBRBEN BN
HERAEHIIT

RMB’'000
ARET T
Type of services: RIS R -
Audit services EZRE
Audit of the annual consolidated financial BZFELGEPTERE
statements (3,000)
Interim review of financial results for the six months & Z 2020 € 6 B 30 B 1F /5 B B 5 #4485
ended 30 June 2020 FERERZ (1,400)
Other assurance services H Az B R % (100)
(4,500)
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare
the accounts of the Group and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and the management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’s independent external auditor, Ernst
& Young, about their reporting responsibilities is included in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the chairman, Board and Board
committees by developing good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The company secretary of the Company was an
employee of the Company and the Company did not engage an
external service provider as its company secretary. The company
secretary took no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing its
effectiveness, while the management and other personnel are
responsible for implementing and maintaining the internal controls
systems that covers governance, compliance, risk management,
financial and operational controls to safeguard the Group's assets
and stakeholders’ interests. The system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Review

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
following is the summary of the Internal Control and Risk
Management Report.

This report summarises our assessment and procedures for
the Company'’s risk management, and its internal control is
considered to be sufficient and at low risk. This report also
aims to assist the Company to recognise its internal control
weakness in relevant financial procedures, systems and
internal controls area.

Our assessment commencing from assessing the over
compliance system and risk management control, the financial
reporting and disclosure control, and the operating controls
of the Company. Approaches include interviews with
management, reviewing on relevant documents,
walkthroughs of processes, tests on selected operating
samples, and a follow-up assessment after implementation of
recommendation on internal control issues.

We have performed annual enquiries, reviewed of company’s
documents, and on-site inspection to identify and understand
the extent of the risks. The Board of Directors has full
responsibility to set up a strategy when designing a system of
internal controls that eliminate risk and achieve business
objectives. In our findings, an Internal Control and Risk
Management basic framework is established and it consists of
effectiveness and efficiency of operation; reliability of financial
reporting; and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. An Operation Manual is also imposed for
employees to comply with applicable laws and all in-house
procedures and practices.

On an annual basis, the Department Heads review and
update their risk registers; discussion sessions are then led by
the Chief Executive. Control activities are built on top-level
reviews, segregation of duties and physical controls by
documenting all control process in policies and procedures to
limit delegation of authority, identifying the material risks,
planning the action items, and finalizing the budget and
business objectives through variance analyses. The company
secretary and legal advisor are also responsible to review
adherence to the laws, while the Board is responsible to
delegate roles and authorities to the Board members and
senior management and ensure they understand them.

A
TEEARE

A EREERABEZES

HE2020F12A3MBLEFERN EETYH
REBERKEIE RN EAE RGN A RIEE
TTFERT - LT AZREBREERANIPE
TRRETRE -

ARBEE T RAB AR B RERE A
NIEF - MERBEZERERSEHAER
@ o NIRE TN E E B AR RIRERE £ AER
IR - RS R MBS BT S 0G RO R BPER
g9 e

I RHE TERERHE A R R ST R R R
b B IR - MR IRE AR B S R ST
BATF - HEFEEERAEEEENR  FH
MHEXH  EBRF - HEELEERERD
A ARG BT AR IR B A
AIRERERT A

BIVETTFESH  ARXGERNEM
A5 NEBBIY THREREE -EFEH
2 E & {5 E SR B A R B — 8 ADH R A
WREEHER B ROAMEIERL - R
MEAGERT - AEREIE KA b B B A AE
REKHEY  HhEE2EAWERME
PR ER N - ARETERERERN
BRME - TARBELETMHERER - K
BiE BB THEMAARER LA ANBEFM
FR o

BAXEeSFRIYEHREARELMH
RREITHARRBETNHRETW - EHES
BERBERN BESTREGES (A
At RRER PR BUR AR ERORE SRR - 1
MRS T - BRIEARR - RETH
HE BRI EDTREREREBKBR -
RAMEMERBRTEERRBELTE
mMEFSMaEsRAERETESTEN
BREHRERE HERSABAD -

PREKEEFRAF
2020 4 ¥ 55



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PEEBRE

o6

For employee risk management, the Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics are set out; training sessions are regularly
held to reiterate the Company'’s zero tolerance approach to
bribery and proper business ethics.

Internal Audit Function

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has an internal audit department which consists of
2 employees to monitor the daily operations of the Group.
Besides, the Company also appointed an internal control
advisor (the “IC Advisor”) to perform internal audit for the
Group during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
The IC Advisor reported to the Audit Committee and to the
Company’s management. The IC Advisor conducted its
internal audit review activities according to the endorsed
internal audit plan during the financial year ended 31
December 2020. The IC Advisor reported the internal audit
findings and recommendations to both the Audit Committee
and the management of the Group. The management of the
Group agreed on the internal audit findings and adopted the
recommendations by the IC Advisor accordingly.

Management’s confirmation on risk management

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal audit
review activities mentioned in the aforementioned
paragraphs, the management of the Group had provided a
confirmation to the Board that the Group had maintained an
effective risk management mechanism and internal control
system during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

No significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, internal audit, risk
management and internal controls functions of the Group
were identified. There is no material weakness in the internal
control of the Company identified.

The Board and the Audit Committee, continue to evaluate
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the Group’s accounting and financial reporting and
internal audit functions, as well as that function’s training
programs and budget. Based on its annual review, the Board
and the Audit Committee are not aware of any material
deficiencies in the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
consider them effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")
and putting forward proposals at EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of the requisition the Board fail to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

The annual report and the Company’s website provide the contact
details of the Company. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders may
also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Cayman Islands
Company Laws or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to convene an EGM for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of transparency
in communicating with shareholders and investors through
diversified communication channels, including (i) printed copies of
corporate communications (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports, notice of meetings, circulars and proxy
forms) required under the Listing Rules, and shareholders can
choose to receive such documents using electronic means through
the Company’s website (www.gdzawy.com); (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise questions with
the Board: (jii) the Company’s website contains the announcements,
latest data and information of the Group, so that the shareholders
and investors can access and inspect the information of the
Company in a timely manner; and (iv) analyse briefings are arranged
from time to time to update shareholders and investors on the
Group's performance.

The Company has not made any changes to the Company'’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association on or after the Listing
Date. A latest version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association is also available on the website of the Company and
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Information on Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follow:

(1) Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

—  Appointed as an independent non-executive director of
China Futex Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
8506) since 18 January 2021.

(2)  Mr. Huang Anxin
—  Currently being Deputy Director of Human Resources

Development Committee of China Property
Management Association.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual report together
with audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property
management services, sales assistance services, provision of
cleaning and greening services and provision of real estate agency
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020,
and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of this annual report. The above
sections form part of this report.

During the year, the Company has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to reducing emissions and minimizing
negative environmental impacts through the implementation of the
environmental management system (“EMS”) across our properties.
The Group’s EMS is certified to the international standard
ISO14001. Apart from complying with all relevant international and
local regulations, the Group regularly identify potential
environmental risks and strive for continuous improvement. The key
environmental concerns from the Group’s operations relate to
resource use and waste management. The Group have
implemented relevant initiatives, such as implementation of
metering systems to monitor the energy and water consumption,
installation of LED lighting and energy efficient water pumps. The
Group also promote environmental protection awareness to its
employees and property owners through posting reminders and
providing recycle bins.
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The Group obtain the certification from OHSAS18001 occupational
health and safety management system. The Group prides itself on
providing a safe, effective and congenial work environment and it
values the health and well-being of its staff. Adequate
arrangements, training and guidelines have been implemented to
ensure its working environment is healthy and safe.

The Company’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
regarding the same year covered in this annual report, will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
within three months from the publication of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained a good relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers:

Employees: Employees are the most valuable asset for the
Group. The Group therefore strive to create a
motivated workplace by providing employees a
safe and healthy working environment, and a fair
workplace with a prospective career. The Group
also emphasis on its employees’ work-life
balance, and organised various activities
throughout the year.

Customers: The Group is committed to upholding excellence
in its service quality in each and every part of the
services, and providing a feel-at-home experience
to build customer connection. Various
communication channels are set up to listen to its
customers’ opinions.

Suppliers: The success of the Group highly depends on the
quality of products and services obtained from
them, hence, the Group developed procurement
procedures to select and assess its suppliers
carefully.

More details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which will be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company within three
months from the publication of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on page 82 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.00
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Proposed
Final Dividend”) (2019: HK2.75 cents) to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on 8
June 2021.

Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM"),
the Proposed Final Dividend is expected to be payable on or about
2 July 2021. The aggregate amount shall be paid out of the
Company's share premium account if the payment of the dividend
is approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY
I.  Purpose

1.1 The dividend policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation
to the declaration, payment or distribution of its profits
as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

Il Principles and Guidelines

2.1 In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be
a balance between retaining adequate reserves for the
Group's future growth and rewarding the shareholders
of the Company.

2.2 The Board shall also take into account, among other
things, the following factors when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends:

—  the Group's overall results of operation, financial
condition, expected working capital requirements
and capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position and future expansions plans;

—  the amount of retained profits and distributable
reserves of the Company;
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25

— general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group's business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

—  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company is subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association, the Listing
Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a
reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its
future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Review of the Policy

3.1

The Board will continually review the dividend policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and modify the dividend policy at any
time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

past five financial years is set out on page 240.

DONATIONS

The Group had no charitable donations during the year ended 31
December 2020.

LOANS

Please refer to note 30 to financial statements of this annual report
for details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2020.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the Group's property
and equipment are set out in note 14 to financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman Islands, distributable
reserves of the Company as of 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB324.7 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB325.2 million).

DIRECTORS

The following is the list of Directors during the year and up to the
date of this annual report.

Brief biographies of the current Directors of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
of this annual report.

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhe®
Ms. Wu Qimin®@
Mr. Wu Zhihua®
Ms. Jin Keli®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung, Admiral
Mr. Chan Ka Leung, Kevin

Mr. Huang Anxin

Notes:

M Mr. Wei Zhe tendered his resignation with effect from 29 June 2020.
@ Ms. Wu Qimin tendered her resignation with effect from 17 July 2020.
@ Mr. Wu Zhihua has been appointed on 29 June 2020.

@ Ms. Jin Keli has been appointed on 17 July 2020.
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Mr. Wu Zhihua and Ms. Jin Keli were appointed as non-executive
Directors with effect from 29 June 2021 and 17 July 2021
respectively. Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed as addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. Wu and Ms. Jin shall retire from office as Directors
at the Annual General Meeting and they, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election in the Annual General Meeting. Mr. Wu
and Ms. Jin will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company at least once every
three years.

Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Zhang Weilun and Mr. Huang Anxin
shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors throughout the
year 2020 and as at the date of approval of this Directors’ report,
pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the
Director in connection with any legal proceedings in which he/she
is involved by reason of being a Director, except in any case where
the matter in respect of which indemnification is sought was caused
by the fraud or dishonesty of the Directors. The Company has
maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis. During the year 2020, no claims were made against
the Director.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
holding company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such confirmations, the
Company still considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or which otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

()  Long position in Shares

BMFHITESHMRR

ARA BB Z B IFRITESRIBER P85
EFBRANT Em AR ) 5 31363 0B 7 11 58
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EERRSTHRAERRKRG - HER
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HE2020F12A31H  EERHEBMEAREARD
AISEMAREEE (E& R BB EFIES71 EFESH
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B () M EH T A RIEE S KA E &5 352
BT EMZRMATLE:  RE ETRAIFTEH
BT AEFETELSISNRESTAENE
PIN/NETD SR 0L Z s (N

a

RAR B I MARRER D et s

(i) ROPHEFRE

Approximate

Capacity in which interests Number of percentage
Name of Director were held shares of interest
EEnR BEEZNS 7 &g 4=] BAEZB DL
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, Interest
in controlled corporation 435,820,000 51.0%
2L FREFEINA » AR
Note: MI5E -

1 Dawngate Limited (“Dawngate”) holds 40% of the issued
share capital of Qichang International Limited (“Qichang”) and
is taken to be interested in all the shares of Qichang and all the
Shares of the Company held by Qichang for the purposes of
Part XV of the SFO. The issued share capital of Dawngate is
held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets (PTC)
Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of
the Liu Family Trust, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in all the
Shares of the Company that the Liu Family Trust is interested
under Part XV of the SFO.
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As of 31 December 2020, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debenture of the Company or any associated corporations.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As announced by the Company on 20 June 2017, the Board
resolved to adopt a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) which has taken effect immediately.

The purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by certain employees of the Group and
to provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The maximum number of shares that may be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme during its term is limited to 3% of the issued
shares capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date of 20 June
2017. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, new Awarded Shares may be
allotted and issued to the Administration Committee or the Trustee
under general mandates granted or to be granted by the
Shareholders at general meetings of the Company from time to
time and be held in trust for the Selected Persons until the end of
each vesting period. The issue price of such new Shares shall be at
the nominal value of Shares. When the Selected Person has
satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of
making the Award and become entitled to the Awarded Shares, the
Administration Committee or the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
Awarded Shares to that Selected Person.

During the year 2019, a total of 6,516,000 Awarded Shares were
granted to 14 eligible employees of the Group by way of allotment
and issue of 6,516,000 new shares with nil consideration. Further
details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to
financial statements.

Unless otherwise defined in this section, the capitalized terms used
in this section shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements made by the Company on 20 June 2017 and 22
June 2017 relating to the Share Award Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into with any individual, firm or body corporate during the
year 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year 2020, no Directors had an interest in any business
which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the "Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. Liu Jian, Dawngate Limited and Qichang
International Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”)
in favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure any
of its/his associates and any company directly or indirectly
controlled by he/it (not include any member of the Group) not to
either on his/its own or in conjunction with any body corporate,
partnership, joint venture or other contractual agreement, whether
directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry on, participate
in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate, or provide any form of
assistance to any person, firm or company (except members of the
Group) to conduct any business which, directly or indirectly,
competes or may compete with the business presently carried on
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other business that
may be carried on by any of them from time to time during the
term of the Deed of Non-competition, in Hong Kong or China and
such other places as the Company or any of its subsidiaries may
conduct or carry on business from time to time, including but not
limited to provision of property management services, residential
community O20 business and other related services.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-

Competition for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO recorded
that the following entities, other than the Directors of the Company,
had an interest in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

as follows:

Long positions

¥
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Shares/ Approximate
Capacity and underlying percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interest Shares of interest
B2, 18 & BAOER
BEREER B8 B RESEMEE BHEE Bokk
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 435,820,000M 51.0%
ZEEA
Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation 435,820,000@ 51.0%
TBEBFRAA T LB R
Qichang International Limited Beneficial owner 435,820,000 51.0%
REBRERAA ExEEA
Greentown Service © Beneficial owner 162,381,300 19.00%
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Notes:

m

The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15% by Mr. Liu and
85% by Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited as trustee of the Liu Family Trust,
a trust with Mr. Liu as founder and established in accordance with the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries of the Liu
Family Trust include Mr. Liu and immediate family members of Mr.
Liu.

Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of Qichang and is
taken to be interested in all shares of the Company held by Qichang
for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment
Limited, Signgain Limited and Onsure Limited, being the wholly-own
investment holding company of Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and
Mr. Long Weimin respectively, holds 20% of the issued share capital
of Qichang.

The Company placed 36,928,000 shares by general mandate at
HK$0.90 each to Greentown Service on 19 June 2020. On 23 June
2020, Greentown Service also acquired 81,452,650 shares from
Central Oscar Holdings Limited. On 17 July 2020, Greentown Service
acquired 41,190,650 shares from Decision Holdings Limited.
Greentown Service further acquired 360,000 shares and 2,450,000
shares from the open market on 20 July and 21 July 2020 respectively.
As at 31 December 2020, Greentown Service held in total 162,381,300
shares on hand.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not enter

into

any connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions which need to be disclosed in this annual report under
Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group's major suppliers are sub-contractors providing relevant
services for the Group's property management and sales assistance
business lines. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 2.3% (2019: 13.5%) of
the Group's total purchases, and the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 6.2% (2019: 27.7%) of the Group's
total purchases.

The major customers of our property management business line
include property developers, property owners and property owners’
associations, while the major customers of the sales assistance
business line include property developers. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group's largest customer accounted for
approximately 1.1% (2019: 1.1%) of the Group's revenue, and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 4.2%
(2019: 4.0%) of the Group's revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share
capital had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing market rate.

The remuneration committee of the Company reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board on terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors
and senior management. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
9 to financial statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
pro-rata basis to existing shareholder.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no shares were
repurchased.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed herein, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young as
the auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EY:

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong
Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 82 to 239, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters

BEETEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AWM AEESPEERRETER

Impairment of trade receivables and other receivables

B 5 FE WA K E A B R R BB E

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of trade receivables
amounted to RMB490,156,000 and the related provision for
impairment amounted to RMB115,954,000. In addition, the
balance of other receivables amounted to RMB268,112,000
and the related provision for impairment amounted to
RMB30,736,000. For the trade receivables, management
recognised an impairment provision based on the expected
credit loss (ECL) model under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) 9 Financial Instruments. The
measurement of ECLs requires the application of
management'’s significant judgement and estimation, such
as the existence of disputes, historical payment record,
forward-looking factors and any other available information.
Meanwhile, for the other receivables, management
recognised an impairment provision based on the general
approach. The measurement requires management to
assess whether there is any significant increase in credit risk.
Therefore, we identified it as a key audit matter.
R2020612A318 EZRBURBEEHRRARE
490,156,0007T - T AREIHYRUER & A R ¥ 115,954,0007T
IESI - EL A R USRI B A s A R 268,112,000 7T KR (B HY
MR E R AR 30,736,0007T - BLE S EWHKIAEMS © B
BEREEAMGREERN([ERMBREERNDFEIR2
MIAIETHRAGEEE (FRHEEER) EXERRE
BiE - AERMEEEER EEEFTERBEXRAEKG
Al BESFESRS  BENNRLE  FIEERE - U
REMEMAIGER - R - tEMEYRENS - EBE
RIF—RITERRBERE - FFERREEEFEEERR
REREABEEEM - At - EFR 2 RAREBRFIE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4, 23 and 24 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BB EMNAGE BTSRRI ES 4> 23 %24 -

We checked the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables and other receivables and assessed the
assumptions applied, including existence of disputes,
historical payment records, historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking factors. We obtained
and tested the historical observed default rates
prepared by management. We also assessed the
adequacy of the Group's disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

HMRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AEMAEES P RERARETSE

Valuation of investment properties

REMENEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties
amounted to RMB188,951,000. The Group recorded a net
fair value gain of RMB696,000 for the year, which has been
determined with reference to the valuations performed by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers using
the market approach. The valuation of the investment
properties involves significant estimates and key
assumptions on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

R2020612A31E EXEENREVER/RARE
188,951,000 - EHRBEHFEARAFELR T RHERE ARK
696,0007T * H2EXBIUEX S ERMGEMITERATISE
FTETTIREMETE - REMENGES ERMAILLBWE R
MISEREFRENER G RERRR -

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
appropriate similar properties, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition or
|location, less active market transactions and discounted
cash flows of rental income.
ERRABEMENERTISNHETERBEALT X E5EEZE
BREZETRIRENER  BEIRMLE - GREICIED
MERERTIS  RERTHERX S REEWAFTRAER

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

HEAREAASRAMBHRERMEI 42150

76 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

We examined the objectivity, independence and
competence of the external valuers. We checked the
property related information and involved our valuation
specialists to assist us in reviewing and assessing the
underlying assumptions adopted by the valuers in their
valuations, such as the selection of comparable
properties, market price and discounted cash flows of
rental income.
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Key audit matters

BEETEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AWM AEESPEERRETER

Impairment of goodwill

AENRE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB379,984,000 as at 31
December 2020 arising from the acquisitions of businesses.
R20205F12A310 - EREBBURBEBOBEARY
379,984,000 7T °

Management is required to assess goodwill impairment on
an annual basis. The impairment reviews performed by the
Group's management include a number of significant
judgements and estimates including those regarding the
identification of cash-generating units (“CGU"), operating
profit forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
Changes in these assumptions may have a significant impact
on the impairment assessment.

EREATGFNGRHEBRE  AREEEEETHRERS
BREETERAE MM ERAHERSEAEN((REE
£BM DR - 2ERNTER  KBERERUEE - %F
BROBB AT RENGEEEATE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 4 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MHERARBEAAGRE M BEHRRMES 4217 -

We obtained an understanding of management's
impairment model for goodwill and reviewed the key
assumptions adopted by management, including those
regarding CGU identification, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
We tested the mathematical calculation of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’s impairment
model and compared management’s estimate of the
recoverable amount with the carrying amount of each
CGU.

AFFRERE T REAREREEA YRR EEEMREM
BMRERR  ERZSAHRNReELE N K25
BRI KABRRRIFME - KA T IR LB E
RERERERAPOHBETE - WiGEIEE LA KA
RN REESRSELBUMNKREELR -

We compared short and long-term growth rates with
the historical trends. We also considered the results of
management's prior period forecasts. We involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the
perpetuity growth rate and discount rate for each CGU
by comparing with past performance and relevant risk
factors. We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed
by the Company’s management on the impact of
changes in the key assumptions.

KA REARMERXERLBILER - AAXERE
BREEHEANNGER - AT MAGEER BT ES
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 15 to 33, which we obtained prior
to the date of this audit report, and the other sections of the Annual
Report not including the consolidated financial statements and the
auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Sections”), which are
expected to be made available after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

B Az BURD R
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Ng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

fi_‘ = N\ /
meEmE

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 2020 12 A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 2019
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T ARET T
REVENUE & 6 1,752,317 1,519,482
Cost of sales and services $HE KRG AN (1,310,676) (1,116,041)
GROSS PROFIT EF 441,641 403,441
Other income and gains H At A R feas 6 54,909 33,844
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO EMAY (12,580) (13,455)
Administrative expenses TR (238,401) (192,296)
Net impairment losses recognised HeREEREAREBRTE
on financial assets (22,837) (26,763)
Other expenses HAitnF sz (4,855) (10,195)
Finance costs B TE A AR 8 (18,064) (21,501)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE AT FIE K 518
Joint ventures B 2,595 1,438
Associates /N 211 466
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& %4 A 758 7 202,619 174,979
Income tax expenses PSR X 11 (51,839) (41,059)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFHE 150,780 133,920
Attributable to: AT A&
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=IN 13 131,509 108,568
Non-controlling interests JEIE PR RE RS 19,271 25,352
150,780 133,920
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE R AR EEREE AE L
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BRAER
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted EARKE#S
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FRABARET) 13 0.157 0.133
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ARE A HE WA

TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 20204 12 A 31 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AERETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRHE 150,780 133,920
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip 2 mda
Other comprehensive income that may be A& EHR A fEEF D IEE B LK
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent  Efth 2 EUIE ¢
periods:
Revaluation gains on transfer from property #¥1% M EEE =R EWEMNEH R
and equipment to investment properties 1,373 -
Income tax effect st s (343) -
Net other comprehensive income that may REBHAE A D EE B
be reclassified to profit or loss in Hih 2 E W FRE
subsequent periods 1,030 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMZEKE (NERHE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1,030 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEBREARE
FOR THE YEAR 151,810 133,920
Attributable to: LA AR -
Owners of the parent B ATIHA A 132,539 108,568
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE RS 19,271 25,352
151,810 133,920

FRIRKREFIRDT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fre MR

As at 31 December 2020 7220204 12 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 &
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR¥T T AR®ETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment EYNE T 14 112,232 55,228
Investment properties wEMZE 15 188,951 183,309
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 32,687 46,769
Goodwill EES 17 379,984 248,315
Prepayments for acquisition of properties U BB ) 2 B TR ZRIE 18 15,634 55,839
Investments in joint ventures REZDPEMNKRE 19 4,230 3,166
Investments in associates REEE QAR E 20 4,789 4,578
Other intangible assets Hihmip&E 21 75,600 89,176
Long-term deposits EHiR S 4,657 4,984
Deferred tax assets RETIAE = 22 50,395 60,360
Total non-current assets kRBEELAE 869,159 751,724
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories ER | 11,820 2,224
Trade receivables Z S EWRIE 23 374,202 332,260
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRI8 K E At fE W R IR 24 303,570 288,232
Contract assets BHEE 25 - 59,650
Financial assets at fair value through EATEFABRNSREE
profit or loss 26 15,008 2,536
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEZEYD 27 495,773 458,000
Total current assets HREEEHAE 1,200,373 1,142,902
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S E IR 28 72,357 136,890
Other payables and accruals H b e~ FE M BB A 29 836,234 645,147
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ B R17 R H Ath &K 30 53,952 82,965
Lease liabilities HERE 16, 30 30,033 24,518
Deferred liabilities RIEEE - 3,820
Tax payables JERT AR IR 108,587 125,871
Total current liabilities REEHEAER 1,101,163 1,019,211
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 99,210 123,691
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #BEERGBAE 968,369 875,415
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSIT

ON
e MBIRE

As at 31 December 2020 720204 12 B 31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES e h=R i
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 22 24,842 26,848
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ &2 8R17 R E M E R 30 25,319 47,570
Lease liabilities HERE 16, 30 8,193 22,773
Other long-term payables Hibh REAE RIE 18,589 40,299
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEELRHE 76,943 137,490
NET ASSETS BEEFE 891,426 737,925
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BARHEE AELER
OF THE PARENT
Share capital A& 7R 31 7,082 6,745
Reserves HE 33 807,244 671,686
814,326 678,431
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR AE == 77,100 59,494
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 891,426 737,925
Liu Jian Liang Bing
= RE
Director Director
EFE EF

FRIRKREFIRDT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 2020 12 A31 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

RAREE AER
Capital Share Non-
Issued Share redemption  Statutory Other Special option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
ERER ik
BETRE  RbEE s EERE HftEE KRS & REET Nt FERER &R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TL ARMTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR AREBTR
As at 1 January 2019 R201951418 6,689 444,589 48 32833 14,000 (48,469) 19,879 92,243 561,812 44138 605,950
Profit for the year FRFE - - - - - - - 108,568 108,568 25,352 133920
Dividend declared (note 1)~ BEiRMRS (R 12) - (18209) - - - - - - (18209 (19402 (37610
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR (R 35)
(note 35) - - - - - - - - - 30,522 30,522
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 431 431
Contract to acquire the remaining ] 4148 —RHBA A
interest in a subsidiary HepER - - - - - 21,547 - - 21,547 (21547 -
Recognition of equity-settled  BEAERLEERIR(
share-based payments (note 32) 3% (Hi7£32) 56 4,657 - - - - - - 4713 - 4713
Transfer from retained profits ~ BHBREEF - - - 12,709 - - - (12,709) - - -
As at 31 December 2019 B2019F12A31R 6,745 431,037 48 45,542 14,000 (26922 19,879 188,102 678431 59,494 737925
Attributable to owners of the parent
ALNAREARLR
Capital Share Non-
Issued Share redemption  Statutory Other Asset Special option  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  revaluation reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
E4RE B
BRRE  ROEE fE  tERE  BMRE  4EER  BIRA fE  REEN Mt FERES s
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR
As at 1 January 2020 #202051A18 6,745 431,037 48 45,542 14,000 - (26,922) 19,879 188,102 678,431 59494 737,925
Profitfor the year ERE - - - - - - - - 13509 131509 19271 150780
Other comprehensive income ~ FREM2ARE :
for the year: - - - - - - - - - - - -
Revaluation gains on transfer BNERREERE
from property and REANZFNSR
equipment to investment 63
properties - - - - - 1,030 - - - 1,030 - 1,030
Total comprehensive income ERRENGAE
for the year: - - - - - 1,030 - - 131509 132,539 19.211 151,810
Issue of shares £S5 0) 337 32,684 - - - - - - - 33,021 - 33,021
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR
(note 35) (i3t 35) - - - - - - - - - - 3,720 3,720
Capital invested by FERRRTE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 340 340
Contract to acquire the AHRE-ZHE
remaining interest in RaEGER
a subsidiary - - - - - - (9,131) - - (9,131) 8,290 (841)
Dividends declared BERRE - (20,534) - - - - - - - (0534)  (13584) (34118
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAF - - - - - - - - - - (431) (431)
Transfer from retained profits BRARDEF - - - 15,746 - - - - (15,746) - - -
As at 31 December 2020 #2020F12 4318 7,082 443187* 48* 61,288* 14,000% 1,030  (36,053)* 19.879* 303,865+ 814,326 77,100 891,426
& These reserve accounts comprised the consolidated other reserves of ~ * ZERERERRSEAYBRARNGES

RMB807,244,000 (2019: RMB671,686,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 31 B ILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE AR®TR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RECEETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: MR ATFE - 202,619 174,979
Adjustments for: AT SIEAE -
Fair value gains on investment properties & & ¥ 8 BB 15 (696) (4,052)
Depreciation of items of property MENREEBITE
and equipment 14 22,932 16,553
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 16 23,050 12,026
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 21 13,933 16,157
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items HEYENKREEER
of property and equipment Bi1a, () 7 69 (1,765)
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RYRIERE 23 16,989 13,369
Impairment of prepayments, AR - me REMEK
deposits and other receivables PIERE 24 5,848 11,093
Impairment of goodwill EERE 17 - 3,281
Impairment of property and equipment L EYNE =YD 14 - 456
Impairment of contract assets BRBERE 25 - 1,845
Share of profits of joint ventures JEia LR (2,595) (1,438)
Share of profits of associates iAo /N P (211) (466)
Fair value adjustment of contingent IAREZAFERE
consideration 7 260 174
Finance costs BT R 7R 8 14,557 21,501
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses BN (Was) B5i8 35 7 (2,034) 3,334
Other interest income from financial BRATEFT ABZRR
assets at fair value through profit or loss BRILE EFTS E AR S
WA 6 (2,412) (2,148)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —RM B A Rl ke 36 (1,520) -
Bank interest income RITHREUA 6 (4,559) (2,358)
Share-based payment expenses AR RRD AR F 2
of the Company 32 - 4,713
286,230 267,254
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,937) (669)
Increase in contract assets BHIEEL N (4,9006) (55,996)
Decrease in trade receivables and B 5 e W TR DA R FB S 308
prepayments and other receivables T2 EL At WS FR TR 48,274 30,966
(Decrease)/increase in trade and 2 5 Ik H i e~ 8 L EET
other payables and accruals BB CRD), g (32,645) 70,721
Cash generated from operations REMBHRS 289,016 312,276
Tax paid BEfHIE (71,758) (43,678)
Net cash flows from operating activities REZETHNHESHRETE 217,258 268,598

FRIREEERD A
2020 F 3k
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

s
/Z\,\/\ ﬁ/}lbi%

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE 2020 12 A31 HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR®T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZFDNHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property and HE W REBATS5RIE
equipment 804 8,122
Purchases of items of property and EEMENEEEE
equipment (16,209) (16,990)
Prepayments of items of property and Y5 KR AR B TR IR
equipment (6,469) (46,576)
Purchase of intangible assets ,ﬁ\%g?ﬁ%ﬁfé 21 (357) (1,979)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT E A 35 (35,963) (24,217)
Investment in an associate E’\\\_%H’é?%@ AIE 20 - (490)
Investment in a joint venture R—RELLEKSE 19 (650) -
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRATET AERR
through profit or loss BRVEEE M 26 - (54)
Interest income received EBFE A 3,214 2,358
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE 15 - 3,855
Dividend received from a joint venture WE B —fH& & hERNRE 19 2,181 2,684
Additions of investment properties RBEREMZE 15 (832) (259)
Other interest income from financial assets & A {EzF AEBZEH
at fair value through profit or loss B ELE EFTSEAL R S UWA 6 2,412 2,148
Increase in other receivables H i & Y FRIR IS le] (26,790) (65,056)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEA 36 (2,066) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & ZEfTHABEESREFHE (80,725) (136,454)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RERMEZDNHEERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans FTIERITE 122,000 153,800
Repayment of bank loans BERITEXK (181,701) (165,356)
Interest paid EfFE (2,936) (5,932)
Principal portion of lease payments MENFHAREE S 16 (15,527) (8,904)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W B JE PR AR M 21 (23,341) (22,500)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  FEIEfREZR AT E
interests 340 431
Dividends paid EfRE 12 (20,534) (18,209)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEEE AR AR R B AR B
shareholders (13,584) (19,402)
Issue of shares BAITIRD 33,021 =
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEEfTARESRETE (102,262) (86,072)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

"“'/\

,\/\ i//lbi%%

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=2020F 12 31 B ILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 %
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETIT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRSEEWIEM
EQUIVALENTS HE 34,271 46,072
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FzReRBEEED
of year 458,000 415,795
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, fE R FE B R EIFRE
net 3,502 (3,867)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBEESRRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 495,773 458,000
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBEESESENERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BISAROR R TR & MR &
the statement of financial position ZEY 495,773 458,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REREBRMIRERAE
AS STATED IN THE STATEMENT ZEY
OF CASH FLOWS 495,773 458,000

FRIREEERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR I ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law on 5 January 2015. The registered
office address of the Company is P.O. Box 2681, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° provision of property management services
° provision of sales assistance services

o provision of cleaning and greening services
. provision of real estate agency services

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s immediate and
ultimate holding company is Qichang International Limited
("Qichang”), a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

REAIREEER

FRIREEAR AR (AT ) K215
F1ASEBRBEHRSHERAAEERSHS
At kB A HEREERAR o &N
A A) 7l 9% % 5 &9 3k R P.O. Box 2681,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

FR - AEERETINEEER -

Y X B RS

e A 175 35 AR 7%

REUFRMARAL RS

TRt 5 ot O AR TS

EERA ARAERERRERERRR LR
EEREARAR(THKRE)  ZARA—HAR
KBRS ((RBELHS ) EMKZIH
BRAA °

BREMBARNER
ARREBMBARNFEBNT

follows:
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered AAREEEZADL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
A MR/ BRTLE/ B M TEEH
BERERLY ERBA
Zhong Ao Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands usD1 100% - Investment holding
hERERBR A HBERTEHE (= REZMR
Zhong Ao Property Services Hong Kong HKD1 - 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
("Zhong Ao HK")
RERNERS (FE)BRAF Bt 18T REER
(THREE])
Aidaojia Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands HKD?7.75 - 100%  Investment holding
("Aidaojia Holdings")
EHRERARAF EBERHE 7.75%7C AR

([BRRER])

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

PREIREBER (&)

BEMBRRNER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered AAREMEEEADL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ &L BRTEE/ B B TEER
FRREXRLH AR AR A
Aidaojia Information Technology Hong Kong HKD2 - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited
("Aidaojia Information”)
EAREAMRABRAT B 28T RAZMKR
([BERER])
Eastern Harbour Engineering Hong Kong HKD2 - 70%  Investment holding
Management Company Limited
("Eastern Harbour")
RABEIRERERAA B 28T RAZMKR
([REEHE])
BNBENEREBRAF PRC/Mainland China HKD1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
("Guangzhou Xuji")*
EMBENERBEERAR HE/RERL 1,000,0007%7C BEER
([EMMBE])*
ERFENEEERRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Zhong Ao")* management services
ERPRYXEEERAF HE B R, AR 100,000,000 7T REMEER RS
([RRPR])*
MMNEEHBEREMERBERAT  PRC/Mainland China RMB2,500,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Hangzhou Lvdu")* management services
MM ELEENERBEERDE DB/ HERE AR 2,500,000 70 RENEERRE
(T ])
MMNEEMEEERER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Provision of property
("Hangzhou Huachang")" management services
MMEENEERERAR PE/HER ARH1,000,0007C RENEERRY
([HNEE )
MM EENERBEERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Hangzhou Gaodi")* management services
MM BENERBEERAR B, R, AR 500,000 7C REMEEE RS
(MBS
ALK MEEEER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB 11,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Zhejiang Yongcheng")* management services
LKA EERERAR BB R, A K 11,000,000 7T REMEER RS
([T AR )
FERENEEEER QA PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 70%  Provision of property
("Shanghai Yidong")* management services
LBRRMEERERAF FE/RERL AR 3,000,00070 REMEERRY

(TEFfAR )

PRIAREEMERD A
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PREIREBER (&)

BEMBRRINER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered AAREEEEADL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
A8 MR, BRTEE/ k3 B TEER
BEREXBH AR A
SEBENRERERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Hongtu")* management services
LEBENFERERAAF HE/RERL AR 6,000,0007C REMEEERE
(2 )
B EHEEEMERGE R A PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Ningbo Reston")* management services
EREHBEENERGER AR R E R, AE# 5,000,000 REMFER R
([EREHE])
ERBEYEERERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 78.61%  Provision of property
("Ningbo Yongxing")* management services
ERARNEERERAA HE/ BN AR 1,000,00070 RENEERRSG
([EREAE])
B KHERTREEREAA PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Provision of engineering
("Ningbo Yongdu")* services and sale of
engineering spare parts
BRAHERIERERAR HE/ BN AR ¥3,000,00070 RETRRBRHETR
([ERXKH]) oft
BMNPREXEXERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
("Zhong Ao Shangye")* management services
BEMNRREREXERAF HE /BN, AR 10,000,000 7T RUMEEE R
(TR
MNZENEERERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 75%  Provision of property
("Hangzhou Anjia")* management services
MNEENEERERAR R, AE#3,000,0007C REMEER R
(M=)
SRR S ZREER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Provision of property
(“Foshan Pairuier”)* management services
BRI 2RBERAA B/ B it A 50,000,0007T REDEERRE
([R5 ) *
EBEERRREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 60%  Provision of property
("Shanghai Tangnian”)* management services
LEGERZREERAR B R, A K 500,000 70 REMEER R
(TEEBED)"
EESEE2RBERRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
("Shanghai Tanglei")* management services
E5ERZREERAR R,/ B A A #2,000,0007T REDEERRE

(TEEBE])"
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
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Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

PREIREBER (&)

BEMBRRNER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered AAREMEEEADL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ &L BRTEE/ B B TEER
FRREXRLH AR AR A
EMBERMERBER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
("Guilin Gangshen")* management services
ERERNERBERDR P/ RERL AR 3,000,0007C REmEEERY
([HEMBR )
BENIXEREEYXERERBAF  PRC/Mainland China RMB32,352,941 - 66%  Provision of property
("Suzhou House Construction”)* management services
HNTXERZEVEZERARAA B/ HEAL AR 32,352,941 7C REMEER RS
([EMNERE )"
ERBEE£LARKER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 51%  Provision of real estate
("Huihuang Property”)* agency services
EREEE XEARBERAR HRE B, A K 5,000,000 70 REFHERERY
(BREX))"
ERBEFERAREERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Provision of real estate
("Huihuang Real Estate”)* agency services
BREEF HERARBERAR FE /B, AR 10,000,0007C REEHERERY
(BEEHE])"
EMRRECERBERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 60%  Provision of property
("Guilin Hengxin")* management services
EMhREENERBERAR B, R, AR 500,000 7T REMEEE RS
([EMER )"
BREBEERRLZREERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 60%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Jindun")* management services
BReBEEZRZRBERAF BB R, AK# 10,000,000 7T REMEER RS
((BEREE]*
ERERREIEARAA PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 51%  Provision of property
("Guangdong Huarui")* management services
ERERRETRERAR B/ HEAL AR 20,000,0007C REmEERRY
((ERER])"
BRAZFEREMERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,100,000 - 70%  Provision of engineer
("Guangdong Xunhua")* services
ERAZEERARMERLA hE /RN AR 10,100,0007C RETRRY

(TERAZE])"

PRIAREEMERD A
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

PREIREBER (&)

BEMBRRINER (&)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the Company
registration and registered AAREEEEADL
Name business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
28 AR BRTEE/ B B TEER
BRREXRBE AR A
ERRYREER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100%  Provision of property
("Jinan Kuaiqin")* management services
ERRYRBEERAR B/ HEAL AR 30,000,0007C R EEE R
([ErtRE )

* Guangzhou Xuji, Shanghai Yidong and Foshan Pairuier are
registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
and the registered capital of Guangzhou Xuji, Shanghai Yidong
and Foshan Pairuier has been fully paid up.

# The subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

During the year, the Group acquired Guangdong Jindun,

Guangdong Huarui, Guangdong Xunhua and Jinan Kuaigin.

Further details of the acquisition of the above subsidiaries are

included in note 35 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and other long-term payables which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

() the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

B R A P E
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2.1 WBEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

2.1

926

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework") sets out a comprehensive
set of concepts for financial reporting and standard
setting, and provides guidance for preparers of financial
statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new
chapters on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

98

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it must
include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to transactions or other
events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the period
before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“"RFR"). The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest rate
hedging relationships.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted
and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
monthly lease payments for the leases of the Group's
buildings have been reduced or waived by the lessors
as a result of the pandemic and there are no other
changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected
not to apply lease modification accounting for all rent
concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments arising
from the rent concessions has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of the
lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®¢

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract?
Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Illustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
& As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June
2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23.CHEMEERERNNE BB KR
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING £ (2)

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR.
The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and as at 31 December
2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by
RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical
expedient upon the modification of these borrowings when
the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects
that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a
result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associates or joint
ventures. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associates or joint ventures constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associates or joint ventures. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23.CHEMEERERNNE BB KR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’'s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies
with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in
profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the
date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group

are as follows:

106

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

3.

108

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value and
option payable at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

3.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person'’s
family and that person

@)
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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3.

114

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease
terms 20% to 33'/3%

20% to 33'/3%

10% to 33'/3%

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property and equipment and depreciation”
for owned property and/or accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use
assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property and equipment and
depreciation” above.

3.

BRI 5

31 December 2020 20204F 12 A 31 H
BEAETBERBE w2
VIRRRBEITE (&)

EETREZETHEEMREE  BRA
BAEDREE RS - T ARHEITE - KA
BEZEMFEENERKA - EETERN
BRI RAMEERKER D BREEERNY
EJNE SN

REY=

REWETDEFERNESKRA R SHEE
AIEE GEEEERHRE MR HIETT
BAZ: SRAREGTHE) 2L Rig
FHEm o WEMENFUAKAFTE - BFER
SR o RYIFHERE - WEWMERTIARBR
BEHRERF ZMISBERIRAFEIEE -

RAAFEEHELCREVERE - TI5tA
FIELFEMNBERA -

BRENHEREDENEARE - IR HRE
K EFERIBRARA T AR ©

IWREMEEREERYMENS - WEZA
BREFRENEXNAEEEE A ZAFER
EEMA - HAKEERERZMEERR
BEYE  AAKESRIE [MRRRE
RiTE | EBRAEBMEREEDEA
RE/HRE [ ERREE | BB
FEREEEZMEREBNEAR  BEE
REEEEARLE MYEZERAERXF
ERZAZERZESRE LR [MERR
BERITE | TS BERIREM[AR -

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%

115



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of other intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Software and trademark

Purchased software and trademark are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Acquired property management contracts

Acquired property management contracts are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the sum of
the years digits basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to
15 years.

Customer Relationships

Customer Relationships are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract

is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement

approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and

leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease

liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. The cost of a
right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 2 to 10 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be of

low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

3.

120

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third-party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, other long-term payable and Interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are
satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from the
Group's own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and other long-term payable are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are merchandise goods stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

(a) Provision of property management services

Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

(b) Provision of sales assistance services

Revenue from the sales assistance services is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

(c)  Provision of cleaning and greening services

Revenue from cleaning and greening services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

38

BEASTHEBE &)

)
HME =2
=]

= BHHNES ()
EHFE

Ed=

=8

ﬁ
FEE—ERERD REFREME
m R EE - FBERE NS
Wiz RS ERREE - WERRMBARX
BEIR - HEANMERRREAEEEES
ZEHNBIRERX ST - EANEBRAE
EiEtEe —FNERMBHRNBETD
B RIESOERH M a B R RERN XX
AAEMANABMEEANFERAX - HRE
FAREER B AR MRS 2 A HIE
BFHUATHEY  XZERLTIREXN
BB NFERABT LN BREERES
SEESEREE T AT IAAE -

B 3

(a) RBHRYXEERH
REYEEE RS A KSR AT HE
NESEER - AREFREZKR M
HREAREREHAN S o

(b) RIS
RIS R R RSB RS R
P L MO R R A S B R 4 1
HRE

(c) RHEBEBRFILRT

78 B R AR AL B 55 9 Y a5 10 FiE AR BR AR
% N B P (R  WER BB REAR = B 12 4
B B FERR o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(d)  Provision of real estate agency services

Revenue from real estate agency services is recognised
at a point in time when the service is rendered and the
property buyer has executed the sale and purchase
agreement and made the required payments according
to the terms and conditions stated in different agency
contracts, since only by that time the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the property
developers for the services performed.

(e) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Revenue from other sources

Revenue from the provision of landscaping design and
construction services is recognised over time, using an input
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction
of the service, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced. The input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative
to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction

services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred
to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset
if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at
fair value at the grant date using the Black-Scholes formula,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
instruments were granted (note 32). The fair value is expensed
over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The cumulative expense recognised
for cash-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The liability is
measured at the end of each reporting period up to and
including the settlement date, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 14% to 20% of
its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company'’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of certain subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers:

(i)  Identifying performance obligations in multiple
underlying activities of property management services

The Group provides property management services
which comprised multiple underlying activities to the
customers (i.e., security, maintenance, cleaning,
landscaping, administrative and support services).

While each of these activities are individually capable of
being distinct, the Group determined that they are not
distinct within the context of the contract because the
ultimate objective of the management services is to
perform any activities that are necessary to ensure that
the properties are operating as intended. In addition,
the Group determined that the management services
represent a series of services that are substantially the
same and have the same pattern of transfer to the
customers over the term of the contract. Each distinct
service represents a performance obligation that would
be satisfied over time (i.e., over the length of the
contract, not at a point in time) and has the same
measure of progress (e.g., time elapsed). Consequently,
the Group determined the multiple underlying activities
of property management services to be accounted for
as a single performance obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)  Determining the method to estimate variable
consideration and assessing the constraint for property
management services

The Group gives discount to the customers as a strategy
to improve the cash collection of property management
fees, which give rise to variable consideration. The
Group determined that the expected value method is
the appropriate method to use in estimating the
variable consideration for reductions in property
management services, given that there is a wide range
of possible outcomes which are subject to specific cases
and negotiations with customers.

Before including any amount of variable consideration
in the transaction price, the Group considers whether
the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The
Group determined that the estimates of variable
consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and
the current economic conditions. In addition, the
uncertainty on the variable consideration will be
resolved within a short time frame.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Significant judgements and estimates are involved
in the identification of cash-generating units, operating profit
forecasts, perpetuity growth rates and discount rates.
Changes in these assumptions can result in material
differences in impairment charges or available headroom.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
RMB379,984,000 (2019: RMB RMB248,315,000). Further details
are given in note 17.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value-in-use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer

type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables, other receivables
and contract assets is disclosed in note 23, note 24 and note
25 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or
when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management estimation is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was
RMB94,867,000 (2019: RMB120,622,000). Further details are
contained in note 22 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involved
estimation and assumption on items such as the selection of
comparable properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources for estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash
flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2020 was RMB188,951,000 (2019: RMB183,309,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurements, are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into

business units based on different lines of services rendered in
the PRC as follows:

(a)

148

The Group primarily provides property developers and
property owners with a broad range of property
management services for mainly residential properties,
and commercial and government buildings. Services
provided by the Group include standard property
management services and ancillary services;

The Group provides property management services to
property developers for their sales centres. The services
rendered by the Group include the cleaning, security
and maintenance for their model houses and sales
centres and the provision of general assistance to
facilitate the sales process of the properties;

The Group provides property developers and property
owners with a series of indoor and outdoor
environmental cleaning, greening and maintenance
services. This business division also provides services to
the property developers and property owners of the
property management business division. Accordingly,
segment results of cleaning and greening division are
evaluated by the Group’s management on services as
subcontracted from the property management business
division;

The Group provides property and real estate customers
and investors with real estate information consulting
services, real estate brokerage and consulting services,
real estate marketing planning, house leasing, real
estate investment consulting services as well as agency
services for obtaining property ownerships; and

Other businesses comprise landscaping design and
construction services, consulting services, engineering
services, catering services and the sale of engineering
spare parts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment revenue and profit which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax from continuing operations. The Group
derived service revenue from a related company of a Group's
subsidiary’s non-controlling equity holder for RMB19,643,000
(2019: RMB11,684,000) on mutually agreed terms has been
reported according to the appropriate segment. The adjusted
profit before tax from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group's profit before tax from continuing
operations except that bank interest income, other interest
income from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, changes in fair value of investment properties, fair value
adjustment of contingent consideration, net foreign exchange
loss, share of profits of joint ventures, share of profits of
associates, net foreign exchange gains, non-lease-related
finance income/costs as well as head corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (other than lease liabilities), other long-term
payables, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. BREQIEE (&)

(Continued)
Operating segments e
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TR MR ERSLE DrAREBZE R ¥
revenue and results based on the types of business: BT
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
NEEBER BEEE BARRILER ELEREER Hth¥R @t
EZ2020%12A318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
For the year ended 31 December 2020 1L ARBTR ARET T ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Segment revenue (note 6) 28l (fife)
Sales to external customers AN EFHHE 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Intersegment sales PHREHE 15,790 - 93,162 926 121,747 231,625
1,258,041 40,351 176,729 238,789 270,032 1,983,942
Reconciliation: %
Elimination of intersegment sales P EEIEE A (231,625)
Revenue from continuing operations REESEK M 1,752,317
Segment results PHEE 185,916 11,973 22,303 27,597 12,609 260,398
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income RITHBHRA 4,559
Other interest income from financial BATEABRR
assets at fair value through profitor loss £ BAEMEMF|S
LN 2,142
Changes in fair value of investment RENMENDTEES)
properties 696
Fair value adjustment of contingent FIRAREATEAE
consideration (260)
Net foreign exchange gain I 5 s 2,034
Corporate expenses TERR (55,199)
Share of profits of joint ventures EfhaatErE 2,595
Share of profits of associates bR DA 21
Finance costs (other than interest on BIBRA(REAR
lease liabilities) FEKIN) (14,557)
Profit before tax BREtRIRIE 202,619
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REsHER®)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) L&D (E)
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
NEERER nHES FARBIER RHEREER Hiv¥% @it
31 December 2020 20206127318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Segment assets PREE 1,726,074 46,903 131,188 218,488 248,486 2,371,139
Reconciliation: %7@5 :
Elimination of intersegment receivables O e E (1,073,218)
Corporate and other unallocated assets u;%&,ﬁ\/m* @Eé& 771,611
Total assets BERE 2,069,532
Segment liabilities PHEE 911,638 24,281 60,767 95,199 118,751 1,210,636
Reconciliation: HEE -
Elimination of intersegment payables YD HEENTUE (1,073,218)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities (£ R £t R E & & 1,040,688
Total liabilities afEeE 1,178,106
Other segment information HEtpHEs
Share of profits and losses of: }Efﬁ FERER :
Joint ventures RENE 2,595 - - - - 2,595
Associates E%M"T 211 - - - - 211

Net impairment losses recognised/ RIERMRER/ (E&)

(reversal) in profit or loss BEEREE 19,310 4,299 (605) (1,104) 941 22,841
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH
Unallocated AN 1,401
Segment Vol 20,529 13,611 310 20,438 3,626 58,514
Investments in associates REERRARE 4,230 - - - - 4,230
Investment in joint ventures RAELERE 4,789 - - - - 4,789
Capital expenditure* ERR*
Unallocated AR 2,369
Segment Vol 13,568 830 98 6,085 85 20,666
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and * BARASYBIERNEYEREE  KREWE

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and B A E R EE Y S TR 5E o

prepayments for acquisition of properties.
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5.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REHER )
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) KEDER (&
Property Sales  Cleaning and Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
MEERER WHEER BRARKIER BHERERE Hib%H et
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ 2019512 A31 HLLFE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT
Segment revenue (note 6) A (ko)
Sales to external customers SR EHE 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185,913 122,868 1,519,482
Intersegment sales DEmEE 4133 - 95,927 - 6,275 106,335
1,142,878 40,361 121,522 185,913 129,143 1,625,817
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment sales D EHEEH (106,335)
Revenue from continuing operations SELEEE s 1,519,482
Segment results DEEE 186,204 8,511 14,312 25,745 13,441 248213
Reconciliation: HhE
Bank interest income RITFIBIMA 2,358
Other interest income from BATEHAERNEBEE
financial assets at fair value AE A A
through profit or loss 2,148
Changes in fair value of investment RENMENATEED
properties 4,02
Fair value adjustment of contingent FARBLATEAE
consideration (174)
Net foreign exchange loss e (3.334)
Corporate expenses PERY (58,024)
Share-based payment expense RS (4713)
Share of profits of joint ventures ElERERENHE 1438
Share of profits of associates JE(GEL S A RFIE 466
Finance costs (other than interest BERA(HERRE
on lease liabilities) ) (17,451)
Profit before tax Bt A 174,979
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REsHER @)
(Continued)
Operating segments (Continued) BEDER (&)
Property Sales  Cleaningand Real estate
management assistance greening agency Other
business business business business businesses Total
MEEEER MR RRARGLES RBHEREESR E 3% it
31 December 2019 2019%12A318 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFTT AREFT
Segment assets PREE 1,599,992 37,921 63,678 250,665 85,110 2,037,366
Reconciliation: %
Elimination of intersegment receivables ¥4 % & fE MR (838,616)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ CEREMANRHEE 695,876
Total assets BEEAE 1,894,626
Segment liabilities AHERE 694,890 21,010 22,293 134,144 87,255 959,592
Reconciliation: HEE -
Elimination of intersegment payables YD HEENTUE (838,616)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities (£ R £t R EE & 1,035,725
Total liabilities BEEE 1,156,701
Other segment information HEtpHEs
Share of profits and losses of: }@E FERER :
Joint ventures AErE 1,438 = - = - 1,438
Associates E“ﬁ“" G 466 = = = = 466
Net impairment losses recognised/ RERMRER/ (EE)
(reversal) in profit or loss BEEREE 18,527 4124 (194) 2412 1,894 26,763
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE
Unallocated AN 1,015
Segment Vol 30,280 695 32 12,528 186 437
Investments in associates RBEDNRRE 4,578 = = = = 4,578
Investment in joint ventures NEBPERE 3,166 = = = = 3,166
Capital expenditure* ERR*
Unallocated AR 803
Segment Vol 63928 3913 463 28,673 401 97,318
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property and * BARASYBIERNEYEREE  KREWE

equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and

prepayments for acquisition of properties.

EVARERBYEOBNFR -

FRIAREEERAR
2020 F 3k
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)

Geographical information

Since 100% of the Group's revenue and operating profit were
generated in Mainland China and over 90% of the Group's
non-current assets were located in Mainland China, no

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

REFITER (&)

HIBE R

MU L
‘= /fm

R N £ B 100% W s I 48
A - AAREBEE 0% WIEREEEMR T
BAM - MY BRIFF BV HRELDES

geographical information is presented in accordance with B D2 TR E R o

s - EAbUA R Wi

A EFE

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WER ST :
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

Revenue from contracts with customers KB EEA LI

Rendering of services RELARTS 1,729,266 1,496,455
Sales of goods HEE M 23,051 23,027
1,752,317 1,519,482
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)

6. Wz -

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

H A Rk @)

REFEFENNKE

Disaggregated revenue information (i) CofFk=mER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31HLFE
Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses Total
b IES BER EibE
EREH iE RS BILER REXH AtbsH @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®TR  AR%TR  ARBTR  ARETR
Types of goods or services & RIFHER
Rendering of services AR 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 125,234 1,729,266
Sale of goods HEEM - - - - 23,051 23,051
Total revenue from contracts  RERFA 418U
with customers 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Geographical markets BEMHE
Mainland China FE R 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Timing of revenue WE BN
recognition
Revenue recognised WE— BB RS
over time 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 - 125,234 1,491,403
Revenue recognised at RE - A ERkE
apoint of time - - - 237,863 23,051 260,914
Total revenue from contracts KRB R AN &M
with customers 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
FREREEERAA

2020 F
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Wz - HbWA R WS @)

REEFEHNHKE (&)
(i) EBaRFBmERE)
BZE2019F 12831 BLEEE

Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses
P EEES BREH BRRAES EHEREER i)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETL  ARETR

Total
st
RMB'000

ARETT  ARMTE  ARETT  AR¥TR

Types of goods or services & R R ER

Rendering of services R RS 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185,913 99,841 1,496,455
Sale of goods HEER - - - - 23,027 23027
Total revenue from contracts RERF A D&

with customers 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185,913 122,868 1,519,482
Geographical markets bl
Mainland China A R 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185,913 122,868 1,519,482
Timing of revenue KRR

recognition
Revenue recognised WNE— BB RER NS

over time 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 - 99,841 1,310,542
Revenue recognised at RE—R R BRIk

apoint of time - - - 185913 23,027 208,940
Total revenue from contracts KRB R A#M&ME

with customers 1,138,745 40,361 31,59 185913 122,868 1,519,482
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in

the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. WzH

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

- HtW A R W& ()

REFEFENNWE &)

@i B

DR ER (&)

UTEIREEFA MW ED BE
PR S AR

BE2020F12A31 HIEFE

Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses Total
ks NEEBEY BEER BERSLER EHEABLER Hit R EH
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR AREFR ARETR ARETFR ARETFR AREFR
Revenue from contracts ~ REZF &AMk
with customers
Sales to external customers [N BRFEHE 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
Intersegment sales SUEHE 15,790 - 93,162 926 121,747 231,625
Intersegment adjustments 2B R
and eliminations (15,790 - (93,162) (926) (121,747) (231,625)
Total revenue from contracts  RERFEA A&
with customers 1,242,251 40,351 83,567 237,863 148,285 1,752,317
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019%F 12831 HIEFEE
Property Sales Cleaning Real estate
management assistance  and greening agency Other
Segments business business business business businesses Total
7 MEEBXE WHEER BERRLER FHEREER T 5]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARET T ARET T ARETT AREFT
Revenue from contracts ~ REEFAXHNE
with customers
External customers NEbER 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185,913 122,868 1,519,482
Intersegment sales AEEHE 4133 = 95,927 = 6,275 106,335
Intersegment adjustments A HfEAE R H
and eliminations (4133 - (95,927) - (6,275) (106,335)
Total revenue from contracts REEF A MM
with customers 1,138,745 40,361 31,595 185913 122,868 1,519,482
FREREEERA A
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

158

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:

6. W

xR
(i)

= HWARWRE &)

v

BEF &N &)
EoFREER (F)

FREFNARS BHBRO KIS
B EAAE BIOANAE

2020
2020 F
RMB’'000
ARBT R
Revenue recognised that was included in contract Bt AREHYNE B ENE#ER
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: Uz
Property management services (note 29) Y E B ARES (3% 29) 123,057
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included in contract Ef AREHINEHE BN HER
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: Wz
Property management services )% & T2 AR 5 92,010

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Provision of property management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

Provision of sales assistance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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BHEE
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RHEYFEERE
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ARV EE AR B H BRSO B M EIH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations (Continued)
Provision of cleaning and greening services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing.

Real estate agency services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the services. The property buyer has executed the sale
and purchase agreement and made the required
payments according to the terms and conditions stated
in different agency contracts and payment is generally
due within 60 days from the date of billing.

Provision of landscaping design and construction
services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 90 days from the date of billing. A certain
percentage of payment is retained by customers until
the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over
a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90
days from customer acceptance of delivered goods.

6. Uz

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

H W A R & ()

REFEFENNWE &)

(ii)

BRRE(R)
RIHEZRRILIRE

BHBEER IR ARG ZR - FRIE—
AR B AR B H HAERT 90 B B -

= ith 2 U AR S

BHEERRMNIREHET - MEE
RRVEEHZIRETNARESD
B R RSN R EMN K - B
MFBEEREAHE HHEF0EA -

rRHEMSBIR T RER IR

BAREEERENRERERET
AffFBEERHARZEBMES90H
NeBTADUANNREAEFRE
BEEREHERA/L  DRAEEA
FEPRENRENE THRAER
AR7E B 1877 7 B R W R IR (S 3R Pr
B o

EmEE

BHEEREMIMEER » E—
RREP KRB Z O E miEFH30ZE 90
RAZIE -

\

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Yz - Ht A Rz ()

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REZFEHNHWNE &)

(i)  Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHNEFEE)
Sales of goods (Continued) EREE ()
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining 2020412 A 31 A &2019¢12_ﬂ‘3i1
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially - DRERTRAOBECREITHE

DARBIT) X ZHERAT ¢

unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARETIT

Within one year —FR 123,359 123,057

All the remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration
which is constrained.

B TRAOBERHN —FRHER
EXEENSREL T EEZR AR

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Other income Hib A
Bank interest income RITH EWA 4,559 2,358
Other interest income from BATEFABSNEREENS
financial assets at fair value HibF B U A
through profit or loss 2,412 2,148
Government grants BT Bl 39,969 16,290
Rental income He WA 5,240 7,169
Others HAh - 62
52,180 28,027
Gains g
Fair value gains on investment KEYFE LT ER
properties 695 4,052
Gain on disposal of items of property B E Y N RETE B s
and equipment - 1,765
Net foreign exchange gain M 5 I 25 5 R 2,034 =
2,729 5,817
54,909 33,844
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BR% A1 A
AEBHOBRBAFBENG GIA) THE

(crediting): B :
2020 2019
2020 % 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wi E ARBT R ARBTFT
Cost of services provided B R AR TSR A 1,294,826 1,099,991
Cost of goods sold EEEmAA 15,850 16,050
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERNFAX (TERESER
directors’ and chief executive’s R T A B (FFEE9))
remuneration (note 9))
Salaries and other benefits N N E g 660,843 503,652
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  $RIREFIET B 3K 10,099 15,908
Share-based payment expenses RA R T
of the Company - 4,713
670,942 524,273
Depreciation of items of property YENREEBETE
and equipment 14 22,932 16,553
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 16 23,050 12,026
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hh R & B BH 21 13,933 16,157
Impairment of financial assets, net PREERERE
Net impairment losses recognised on T E 5 R YRR R RE
trade receivables B85 23 16,989 13,369
Net impairment losses recognised on FE At E MR IR BERR YR (E
other receivables 183 24 5,848 11,093
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 25 - 1,845
Impairment of items of property W2 KR IE B RE
and equipment 14 - 456
Impairment of goodwill EESERE] 17 - 3,281
Fair value gains on investment properties &Y% A FE R 15 (696) (4,052)
Gross rental income HEWALRE 6 (5,240) (7,169)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses PE X (Wzs) /E5IB 58 (2,034) 3,334
Lease payments not included in the ATAHEREFENEE
measurement of lease liabilities (BN 16 1,518 577
Fair value adjustment of contingent HARBATEHAR
consideration 260 174
Bank interest income RITHEUA 6 (4,559) (2,358)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEYEE L REIAB R
property and equipment &8,/ (k) 69 (1,765)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERB & 4,500 4,914
Other interest income from financial assets #ZAF AT ABZRHNERIEE
at fair value through profit or loss B At F S A 6 (2,412) (2,148)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMB AR 2 Was (1,520) =
Government grants* BT AR RE * 6 (39,969) (16,290)

Government grants include various subsidies received by the

Company's subsidiaries from relevant government bodies.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to

these grants.

B B B B AR A R R B A AU B AE B IR
RN MHE)  MEEERSHANRE

FAGIFSRABEE R o

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIIERRA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: TSR AR DT
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITHEFN R 9,905 7,248
Interest expense imputed on MEMREMEEN N SFH
consideration payable 4,652 10,203
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNES 3,507 4,050
18,064 21,501
9. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERESTHRAEEMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BB HES EmRA(TETmZA)) - F
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BN aEA 2 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ () & M)A K
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), ANE(BBEEEFNFER) ROIFE 2R ER
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies REEFEEENGEETRAESHMGET -
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
Group
AREHE
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Fees we 9,667 7,868
Other emoluments: H <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AR EYH=S 1,565 1,370
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIHR 20 69
1,585 1,439
11,252 9,307
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

On 20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration
disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

9.

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
EERESTHRAEHM @

201554 A208 Kk 201547 8108 - 5T
EERNERAEERYG  BEAQRNE
IRiERTEVER BARME - & — TR BE NI
®ERWER2 - ZEBRENAE(EREB
RN ERSER)RNEL BHET - Est AKSE
EMBEHRENEBMNALNEERESTH
ABEHBEENA -

(a) BYFHITES
FRENBIFNTESQRSIT :

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFTT

Mr. Zhang Weilun SR At o 157 159
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral REELLE 157 159
Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin BRRR LA 157 159
Mr. Huang An Xin BT AE 157 159
628 636

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

FRMEEMEMNBYIFRATEEN
B4 (2019 4F : 4&) o
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERBESTHRAEHM @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) BITES - kHITESERES
and the chief executive THBAE
Salaries, Equity-settled Pension
allowances and  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
£ =3 ERiE RikSTE
He BNFIR BRERX #“3 FmasE
2020 2020 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Executive directors: HITES !
Ms. Chen Zhuo REZ+ 1,768 456 - 6 2,230
Mr. Liang Bing RESHE 3,282 456 - 2 3,740
Mr. Long Weimin ERREHE 3,282 458 - 6 3,746
8,332 1,370 - 14 9,716
Non-executive directors: FRTEE
Ms. Jin Keli* SRBL L 46 - - - 46
Mr. Wu Zhihua*** REEFE 51 - - - 51
Mr. Wei Zhe* i 50 - - - 50
Ms. Wu Qimin** REGHL L 55 - - - 55
202 - - - 202
Chief executive: SR
Mr. Liu Jian Bl g 505 195 - 6 706
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9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

9. BEERBESITHAEEM =)

Executive directors, non-executive directors b) HITES kHITEERES
and the chief executive (Continued) ITHRAE(#)
Salaries,  Equity-settled Pension
allowancesand  share option scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind expense  contributions  remuneration
e R R EniE BRE5HE
e EnE  BREREX 258 Fles
2019 2019% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETR AREFT ARETFT
Executive directors: HITES !
Ms. Chen Zhuo REZ+ 1,908 456 - 23 2,387
Mr. Liang Bing RESHE 2172 456 = 23 2,651
Mr. Long Weimin ERREHE 2177 458 - 3 2,658
6,257 1,370 - 69 7,696
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Wei Zhe* iy e 106 - - - 106
Ms. Wu Qimin** CoFcte e Gankad 106 = = = 106
Mr. Zheng Dong BRI 63 - - - 63
275 - - - 215
Chief executive: BERTHAS :
Mr. Liu Jian et 700 - - - 700

**

In June 2020, Mr. Wei Zhe resigned as a non-executive
Director of the Company.

In July 2020, Ms. Wu Qimin resigned as a non-executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. Wu Zhihua was appointed as non-executive Director

in June 2020 and Ms. Jin Keli was appointed as non-
executive Director in July 2020 respectively.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the

Directors as (i) bonuses which are discretionary or based

on the performance of the Company, the Group or any

member of the Group; (i) an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group; or (iii) compensation for loss of office
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

* R20206 6 A - HELEEBBHELRR

BIJEMITES -

*  A2020%7 A - REABZIERER

NEFFATESE -

o REFEERESHBZX AR
20204 6 A 20207 A EZERIE

WITES -

REEW E AT ES T AL
EANBIBTEARBIEARR « A&
ERALBEERKEARNKREETE
HITEAL : () IIAAREB S INALREE
% B SZ B ¢ Kk (iii) B = 2020 FF }% 2019
F12 A31 BIEFERABEREE -

FRIAREEERAR
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. AEEEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FALEZ=EEBRE=2EF (20195 :
three directors(2019: three directors and the chief executive), —REENRSTHRAL)  HFEMFEH
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Xt EE9 o REEH R/ A (20194 -
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two — 2R RREENERSITHAEH
(2019: one) highest paid employee who are neither a director EeEENFMEFBOT
nor a chief executive of the Company are as follows:
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fie R EEYA S 3,591 4,864
Pension scheme contributions RIRGETEIE R 14 16
3,605 4,880
The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive HEZRIFEHZSITHAE BHMN FIATE
highest paid employee whose remuneration fell within the BEM&EEH EEMNFMAT
following bands is as follows:
Number of employees
EE A
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 &
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =T & AR 1,000,000 7T 1 -
RMB1,000,001 to RMB5,000,000 AR ¥ 1,000,001 TE AR
5,000,000 7t 1 1
2 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals of the Company as (i) bonuses which
are discretionary or based on the performance of the
Company, the Group or any member of the Group; (ii) an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group; or (iii)
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

11. INCOME TAX 1. FrEH
A provision for PRC corporate income tax (the “CIT") has HE2020F12A31BIEFE  FRCER
been provided at the applicable income tax rate of 25% for SH([EEMER ) BERAEE R
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%) on the A3 B B B 2 B B FE RR R RIS #2 25% (2019
assessable profits of the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland G 25%) E R TSR RTIR S ZARK
China, except for those subsidiaries which enjoyed a lower tax HMEREENMBRARIGRIN o

rate as a benefit.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the R W R 2 A 7R &= B L R e SR A AR IR B
financial statements as no assessable profit was derived from BB MARPERRPREBSFEF(ED
Hong Kong during both years. Rt -
2020 2019
2020 % 2019 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Current — Mainland China: BNER — AR B i, -
Charge for the year FAX 45,944 61,654
Deferred tax (note 22) EFEFLIE (I 5E 22) 5,895 (20,595)
Total tax charge for the year FREBIAZ H 51,839 41,059
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. FrB#H (@)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective
rate is as follows:

RADATE B R 51 53 AR RS AT A E e B8
F X BRI B R A R St E B IE R < 2 SRR 1A
T

2020 2019
20205 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Profit before tax B 25 i B 202,619 174,979
Tax at the applicable tax rate RERMEFERNIRIE 50,655 43,745
Profits attributable to joint ventures BRI E RN TGS
and associates (702) (476)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR A 2 1,790 6,568
Temporary differences recognised from BiBEMRERTR L ERE
previous periods - (16,127)
Tax losses and temporary differences RERMIBEEREREEE
not recognised 2,802 7,056
Tax losses and temporary differences B A A BRI RO A B 1 M E R 1
utilised from previous periods k= (4,510) (1,078)
Withholding tax on distributable profits of 7S5 [# # B [ /& 2 &1 7] 5k A1 E 89
the Group's PRC subsidiaries TR 1,804 1,371
Tax charge for the year FABIEX H 51,839 41,059

The share of tax expense attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to RMB%36,000 (2019: RMB635,000), is
included in “Profits and losses of joint ventures” and
"Profits and losses of associates” in profit or loss.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group has applied an applicable rate
of 5% in 2020 (2019: 5%). The Group will be liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIVIDENDS

During 2020, a dividend of HK2.75 cents per share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2019 was declared by the
directors of the Company and approved in the Company’s
annual general meeting on 29 May 2020. Dividends
amounting to RMB20,534,000 were paid on 15 June 2020
(2019: RMB18,209,000).

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent for the year, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 837,350,658 shares (2019: 817,354,219
shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is

12.

13.

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

RS

20204 * ARAFIEEE IR 2020F 5
RA2OBARAGMRREFAS EHEERE
2019F 12 A31 B IEFEMBRE BFK275
Bl - 20205 6 A 15SHEMRESEE A A
R 20,534,000 7% (2019 4F : A R ¥ 18,209,000
JL) °

FRAE
27

BRESSEAABLER

BREARFECENRAFEGS AR LEE
HEAAEGEFE UARFEFABETYE
8 A% 0 AE F 15 837,350,658 % (2019 £F :
817,354,219 0% ) 5+ & o

AEEBREARNSEIERNTIIEE

based on:
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Earnings Eﬂ
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders & &S EAEF TR A
of the parent, used in the basic earnings LBt m s A AR
per share calculation 131,509 108,568
Shares iavi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &1 & &RREZANZFFT A FAE 1T
in issue during the year used in the basic TR AN 9 £
earnings per share calculation 837,350,658 817,354,219

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did not include the
exercise of the share options of the Company since the
exercise price of the share options was higher than the
average market price of the Company’s shares during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

HE2020F K 2019F 12 A31 BIEFE » &5
RSB R AW EST RN R R B EE
1fF - TARBRENTTEESRARQRK
PREE2020F K 2019F12 A31 B IEFE
AR T IHER -

FRIAREEERAF
2020 FF 3
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. MERZE
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
BF HENERE GAREERE RE Ch
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARBTR
31 December 2020 2020%12A310
Cost B
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 818 29,368 19,840 36,558 20,891 106,657
Additions NE 46,674 6,648 4,891 4,670 62,883
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) Yt Mt B A &) (Ffi7E 35) 155 7 1,583 19,201 20,946
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HeE—FB AR (FiEE36) - - (85) (249) (334)
Transfer from investment properties & B& LM% 931 686 - - 1,617
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZEEREYE (4,061) - - - (4,061)
Transfer to long-term deposits BERERIER (686) - - - (686)
Disposals H&E - (968) (958) (1,174) (3,100)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31 A 72,381 26,213 41,989 43,339 183,922
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE
At 1 January 2020 202061818 (3,474) (11,114) (25,700) (10,685) (50,973)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FERFTEHEITE (3,094) (7,195) (5,932) (6,711) (22,932)
Transfer to investment properties ~ EBEZREYE 389 - - - 389
Disposals HeE - 198 1,069 960 2,227
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36)  H&—RIE AR (FzE36) - - 3 52 55
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31 R (6,179) (18,111) (30,560) (16,384) (71,234)
Impairment HE
At 1 January 2020 R202051 A1 K
and 31 December 2020 20206 12H318 - - (456) - (456)
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2020, net of 2020561818 -
accumulated depreciation HKk 2t E 25,894 8,726 10,402 10,206 55,228
At 31 December 2020, net of R2020%12F318 »
accumulated depreciation HKk2:t0E 66,202 8,102 10,973 26,955 112,232
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. MERFREE)
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Buildings  improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
By HENREE KERETRE RE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTL ARETTT ARBTTT ARETTT ARBTTL

31 December 2019 20194128311
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A 18 21,657 10,113 30,800 17,370 79,940
Additions NE 7,381 7,044 5,351 3,726 23,502
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A Al 8,339 2930 1,995 295 13,559
Disposals & (8,009) (247) (1,588) (500) (10,344)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 128318 29,368 19,840 36,558 20,891 106,657
Accumulated depreciation RitiE
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 (4,020) (5,989) (21,218) (7,180) (38,407)
Depreciation provided for the year ~ FERFTEHRITE (1,810) (5,367) (5,413) (3,963) (16,553)
Disposals & 2,35 242 931 458 3,987
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 128318 (3474) (11,114) (25,700) (10,685) (50,973)
Impairment AE
At 1 January 2019 RN2019F1 518 - - = = =
Additions NE - - (@56) = (456)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 4318 - - (456) - (456)
Net carrying amount BRIERHE
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019F1 818

accumulated depreciation H& 248 17,637 4,124 9,582 10,190 41,533
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019F12A318 »

accumulated depreciation H&2:4E 25,894 8,726 10,402 10,206 55,228
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b e ey
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REME

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETFT

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BREREE 183,309 184,384
Additions NE 832 570
Transfer from owner-occupied property L= N=NEEES 5,045 -
Transfer to owner-occupied property WS g A% (931) (1,842)
Disposal HE - (3,855)
Net gain from fair value adjustments NP ERABW G FE 696 4,052
Carrying amount at 31 December MW12 A 31 BREREE 188,951 183,309

Certain investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, the details of which are included in
note 16.

The Group’s investment properties are all situated in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have
determined that all the investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the market approach, as at 31
December 2020. Each year, the Group’s property manager
and the chief financial controller decide, after approval from
the audit committee, to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s property manager
and the chief financial controller have discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
twice a year when the valuation is performed for interim and
annual financial reporting.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

The Group's investment properties with a carrying value of
RMB54,187,000 (2019: RMB146,431,000) were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as at

31 December 2020 (note 30).

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

15. REWME &)

R2020F12A31H  A5EEREEAAR
¥ 54,187,000 70(20194F : AR 146,431,000
TO)MIREED I UEBR T AREED
—RERTTRE (BIFE30) ©

DNFEEBR

TRERAEERENENQAFEAER

A&

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

FERANUTEER 2020512831 BN A FEE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEBME  EATEE EXTUER
HRE BABE BABE
(5—F) (B=8) (B=E) st
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TR AR¥Tn AR®BTn AR%Tx
Recurring fair value WTEBSEEERATE
measurement for: =
Commercial properties [EE2/ES - - 188,951 188,951
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
ERNTEIER 2019F 12 A31 M AT EH =
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME EAUBE EATAEE
) (E ) \2E & A\ 2R
(F—E) (=) (BF=F) HEt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
Recurring fair value ATHEANEEERTE
measurement for: B
Commerecial properties EELES = = 183,309 183,309

FRIAREEERAR
2020 F
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

15. BEWME &)
NPEER &)

RAFE F-EBEREF_BERZRALER
FEENER  TEQAFEHEBEAE=
BRSNE=—EREDL (2019F : &) -

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PHEERATEERE=ZFNAFEF=Y
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: iR :
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETFT
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BEREE 183,309 184,384
Additions NE 832 570
Transfer from owner-occupied property HEHEERYE 5,045 =
Transfer to owner-occupied property EREGRAYE (931) (1,842)
Disposal HE - (3,855)
Net gain from fair value adjustments NP EFRBEEN N FEE 696 4,052
Carrying amount at 31 December MW12 A 31 BEREE 188,951 183,309

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key input to the valuation of investment properties:

AT RIREYFRGEEMBGERT R MEER
REABURNE -

Range
EE
Significant

Valuation technique unobservable input 2020 2019

fHERD BEATABEGABE 2020 F 2019

Commercial properties Direct comparison Market unit price 7-24 7-24
method (RMB/sg.m.)
REME BEEEE M5B ER

(ANR¥ETT/FFHXK)

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
estimated rental value is accompanied by a directionally
similar change in the rent growth per annum and the discount
rate and an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.
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16. LEASE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

16. HHE
REBEEERBEA

AEERHELEMANSEETHRIAH

used in its operations. Leases of buildings generally have B4 - BFHEMMBAE BN T 2E55F -
lease terms between 2 and 5 years.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

(a) FEMREEE

AREERELE BEERFNE

44

and the movements during the year are as follows: E N
Buildings Total
BF et
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
As at 1 January 2019 R20194%1 H1H 1,637 1,637
Additions NG 14,891 14,891
Acquisition of subsidiaries We RSB N A 42,267 42,267
Depreciation charge wESH (12,026) (12,026)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31 B X
and 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 46,769 46,769
Additions NE 9,488 9,488
Depreciation charge mEXH (23,050) (23,050)
Covid-19-related rent concessions A AR 2019 FEE AR
from lessors RERBEESRE (520) (520)
As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A 31 H 32,687 32,687

FRIAREEERAF
2020 FF 3
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b e ey
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

16. LEASE (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the

16. HE (&)
REBIEAEBA (&)
b) HEERE

movements during the year are as follows:

TR 52 FRE(E (T ASHB R 1T R
HASR ) REAZBIT -

2020 2019
2020 % 2019 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 B ZEREE 47,291 1,637
New leases T E 6,982 14,363
Additions as a result of acquisition E i —RHBARMAE
of a subsidiary - 40,195
Accretion of interest recognised FAATHERRF S35 00 (FHEE8)
during the year (note 8) 3,507 4,050
Covid-19-related rent concessions KEHAARN2019 B EMRRE
from lessors FERATE SRR (520) =
Payment (NEN (19,034) (12,954)
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 A 31 B ZfREE 38,226 47,291
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BNERER 5 30,033 24,518
Non-current portion FEENEREL 8,193 22,773

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 43 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LEASE (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

16. HE (&)

AEEFERERA @
(0 REFPEROBEMBETAMNT -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET R ARETTT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEBEF L (FizEs) 3,507 4,050
Depreciation charge of right-of-use CTREEENTERX
assets 23,050 12,026
Expense relating to short-term leases and  B2%2 HiTH & K &4 N HH EIR
other leases with remaining lease terms ~ 20194F 12 A 31 H 3k 2 Bl [& i &9
ended on or before 31 December 2019  EMAEEENMAYL GIAHEE
(included in cost of sales) FXAS) 9219 205
Expense relating to leases of EEEEEAEHERMMNMAX
low-value assets (included in GFATTERAX)
administrative expenses) 599 372
Total amount recognised in profit or loss #1825 fE 52 5K E 4258 28,075 16,653
The Group as a lessor REBEALHEA

The Group leases its properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms within five
years. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

AEBERBELHERHHEEEDE - %5
HELERNFRARFUR - HEBREHN
FER—RITREEPINREE °

RBEHR - RIFEBPFI LR IATFH
FHI AR K EEE - ARENRES
EHERYGRIEBREIT

2020 2019

2020 2019 4F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFTT

Within one year —&FR 3,342 4,741
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEEFRLF(BIEEEMF) 6,250 1,303
9,592 6,044
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

17. GOODWILL 17. &%
RMB'000
ARET T
As 1 January 2019 20191 H11H
Cost and net carrying amount B R BRE R B 155,456
Acquisition of subsidiaries )= NG 96,140
Impairment during the year FARE (3,281)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 722019412 A 31 H &% 20201 A1 B
and 1 January 2020 BN 2 AR RE 248,315
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U BE B B8 A &) (B 5E 35) 132,537
Exchange realignment M 5 S 6,135
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HE B AR (HizE36) (7,003)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 7420204 12 A 31 A MR A K R FE 379,984
Impairment testing of goodwill [SEVERER: S
Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions is allocated FERFEBWEMBSNEEEDEEE T3
to the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment CELEENV((RESELEEN]) AERER
testing: W
o Ningbo property management service cash-generating o ERYEEHERKASELSM(R
unit ("CGU A"), SELEBNAL
e Nanning real estate agency cash-generating unit (“CGU s HEREHMERERSEAZBN(RSE
B"), ELEMNB))
e  Guangdong property management service cash- s REXRVEEERBHEeELBM(R
generating unit (“CGU C"), SEEEMNC])
e Suzhou property management service cash-generating o HINVEBTERBHASELESBM(HE
unit ("CGU D"), &E£BUD])
e  Hangzhou property management service cash- s MMYEEERBEeELBM(R
generating unit (“CGU E"), SEEBEMNE])
e Huarui property management service cash-generating o EnYEERERBHASEABM(E
unit ("CGU F"), EELEMNF])
e Others cash-generating units ("Others”) o HiReEABM([HM])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

17. BE &)
SEREN I EAC))

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 4F

12A31H 12A31H

CGU A M ELBEMNA 101,083 101,083
CGUB e EESBMNB 74,911 68,776
CGUC HeEESEMNC 83,034 24,929
CGU D WL ELEEMND 20,171 20,171
CGUE HEEAEMNE 14,987 14,987
CGU F WEELEBMF 37,637 -
Others Hh 51,442 21,650
383,265 251,596
Impairment B (3,281) (3,281)
Total BT 379,984 248,315

The recoverable amount of those cash-generating units has
been determined based on a current market value calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15%
and the cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2019: 15% and 2 %).

ux#fﬁﬁfziﬁum—ﬂﬁl@/f%ﬁﬁk?AHT*
HREEFEET  FTEEARBRERRER
B ERENFHRA s MBEEEHNRS
//luii‘g Bl o 3Z3IR &7 = TRRIEE A 15% KM TR
o T F HAfdl 12 A9 IR & m 2 BIlfE A 2% (2019

¢ S 15% K 2%) R R EHEH -
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. & (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the
cash-generating units for 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake an impairment testing of goodwill.

Budgeted revenue:  The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the revenue from the
segment is the average revenue
achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and
expected market development.

Budgeted operating The basis used to determine the values

expenses assigned are the cost of inventories
consumed, staff costs, and other
operating expenses. The values
assigned to the key assumptions reflect
past experience and management'’s
commitment to maintain its operating
expenses at an acceptable level.
Discount rates The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the
unit.

No impairment losses (2019: 3,281,000) during 2020 was
recognised for year ended 31 December 2020.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of the value in use of the cash-
generating units, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would
cause the carrying value, including goodwill, of the cash-
generating units to exceed the recoverable amount.
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18. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF

19.

PROPERTIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had deposits of
RMB15,634,000 (2019: RMB55,839,000) in relation to the
acquisition of properties situated in Mainland China paid to
property developers. The Group has paid RMB6,469,000
(2019: RMB46,576,000) for acquisition of new properties in

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
W BB ) VTR IR

R2020F 12 A31 8 ' AEERYEEER
WHEMRPREANBHYE IT2ES
A AN R #15,634,0007C (20194 : A R #&
55,839,0007C) ° 2020 F AREBE X AR
¥ 6,469,000 7T (2019 4F = A K 46,576,000

2020. 7T) AR USRI % -
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 £
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETIT
Share of net assets L EEFE 4,230 3,166
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: AREFELDENFBOT :

31 December 2020

2020 12H31H

Percentage of

Place of UTFRENEDL
ace o
Paid-up  registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
28 BRER BEREXBY FiEkgR REE  FEE TEEE
BB BENERS RMB1,500,000  PRC/Mainland 60 (a) 60 Provision of property
AR (“Ningbo Disai”) China management services
ERTEREENERS ARE15000007T  RE/HREIR 60 (@ 0 REMFERRS
BRAR([EREBE])
REMERTRNTELER RMB10,000,000  PRC/Mainland 65 (b) 65 Provision of property
AE A7) ("Laibin Chantou") China management services
RETERTRATELEE  ARK100000007T FE/HEAM 65 (o) 65 REMRERRY
BRAR ([ REER])

FRIAREEERAR
2020 F 3k
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)
31 December 2019

19. REELENERE @)

2019412 A 31H

Percentage of

Place of AMEERAAL
ace o
Paid-up  registration Ownership Voting Profit

Name capital  and business interest power sharing  Principal activities

A BRER BRREFHE e SRIE MEsE FEXH

B TREREE RS RMB1,500,000 PRC/Mainland 60 (a) 60  Provision of property
BR2A7 ("Ningbo Disai") China management services

BRmaEBEDERS ARE15000007t B/ FHERKM 60 (a) 60 REDEEERS
BRAR(ERBE])

The above interests in joint ventures are indirectly held by the iR EaErERERTIHARRIBERA -

Company.

(a)

According to the Articles of Association of Ningbo
Disai, decisions on relevant activities require the
unanimous consent and approval of the equity holders.
Therefore, Ningbo Disai is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group.

According to the Articles of Association of Laibin
Chantou, decisions on relevant activities require the
unanimous consent and approval of the equity holders.
Therefore, Laibin Chantou is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group.

Ningbo Disai, which is considered a material joint venture of

the Group provides property management services in

Mainland China and is accounted for using the equity
method.

182

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

—
Q
=

REERABENEABER  BEEY
HVURTE BB A A — R R
JfE o Bk - BRCEETI ARIIERE
VRERE -

RERBEERNABER  BEEZHY
HURTE B REEFTH A R R
o Bt - REERIIARIEARE
VREDRE -

BERBBEREAAKREERSGEDLE  &EF
BRI R E R - WAREARR -



19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Ningbo Disai, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
19. AEELENRE @)
TRERZERHENRZTHER - ERiE

SRR E R MBI BB HER DA
[EREE)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET R ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents Re kHEEEEY 12,553 7,541
Other current assets HhmEhEE 964 1,288
Current assets mENEE 13,517 8,829
Non-current assets EMBEE 391 443
Current liabilities meaE (6,642) (3,999)
Net assets BEFE 5,967 5,277
Reconciliation to the Group's interest HALEREG S ENERLER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE B PTE LB 60% 60%
Carrying amount of the investment REMBREE 3,580 3,166
Revenue Wz 15,808 12,126
Interest income ) BWA 186 219
Depreciation and amortisation e R (27) (22)
Tax TiI8 (1,414) (786)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAMERE2EKALRE
for the year 4,325 2,383
Dividend declared EEIRRE (3,635) (4,473)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received a dividend in the amount of RMB2,181,000 (2019:

RMB2,684,000) from Ningbo Disai.

HZE2020F12A31 B IELFfE - A& B URER
BEERBABENRE A AR 2181,0007T

(20194 : AR%2,684,0007T) °

neskARIA: 183



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 kB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENRE #)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRGEPAREENEELENTIFEREKR
information of the Group's joint venture that is not individually B4R B2 B FE B -
material:
2020
2020 F
RMB’000
AR®TR
Share of the joint venture's profit for the year EEFARE S EENE -
Share of the joint venture's total comprehensive EheEbERATE RS
income -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEERAEEERENEEmE
investment in the joint venture 650
20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REELQRINRE
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 4,789 4,578

1 84 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

31 December 2020 and 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

20. REEE RN TINRE (&)

REBEE QRN BOT -

20205 % 201912 H31A

Registered/  Place of Percentage of
paid up  registration ownership interest  Principal
Name capital  and business attribute to the Group  activities
rEEEEREE
8 it/ BEER EEREKHES BmEAL TEEK
ENREBEERAA RMB7,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40 Provision of sports venue
("Aoye Sports”) China leasing services
EMEEXBEERAA ([RERE]) AR¥7,000000c B/ HEAM REEEF SR SRS
ERARREELLEEEERAA RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 49 Provision of business
("Zhong Ao Zhong") China management services
ERPRAHELEERERAR ARE1,000000c B/ HERM REAREERE
([HhEH])
BN R R EFR AT RMB1,000,000  PRC/Mainland 49 Provision of business
(“Wuzhou Chengtou”) China management services
BEMTRRTEMEERAR(EMER]) ARS1,000000T HE/ SERH REBRERRE
BN TERRBRENEERERAA RMB500,000  PRC/Mainland 49 Provision of business
("Suzhou Shengjian”) China management services
FNIREREENZERERAA AR¥5000007T  #EL/HREIRH REBREERE
([FNEE])
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRAAASEEREE A FMIIEE R ER
information of the Group's associates that are not individually Y AARE BT TS B R
material:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETFT
Share of the associates’ profit for the year  JE{5 4 B & A 7] F)H 211 466
Share of the associates’ total FE(REEE AR R EEWA
comprehensive income 21 466
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's  AN&EREE A B E M A REE
investments in associates 4,789 4,578

PRIAREEMERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 kB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

186

21. Hh\EEEE

Acquired
property Software
management Customer and
contracts  relationships trademark Total
FREVE
BEEN EFH% BHEREE Bzt
31 December 2020 202012H31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR
At 1 January 2020: R2020F1 A 18 :
Cost PR 121,724 7,000 9,460 138,184
Accumulated amortisation Bl (45,188) (1,556) (2,264) (49,008)
Net carrying amount BREHE 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of FR2020% 1 R1BRA
accumulated amortisation bk Rt 8 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
Addition NE - - 357 357
Amortisation provided during the year — F RFT&T 2% 85 (11,960) (481) (1,492) (13,933)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600
At 31 December 2020; R20205 128318 :
Cost B 121,724 7,000 9,817 138,541
Accumulated amortisation 2t (57,148) (2,037) (3,756) (62,941)
Net carrying amount REFE 64,576 4,963 6,061 75,600

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

21. EtEREEE &)

Acquired
property Software
management Customer and
contracts  relationships trademark Total
B ES
EEAY BEBE B R st
31 December 2019 201912 A31H RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019: R2019F1A1H :
Cost KA 118,124 - 5,564 123,688
Accumulated amortisation ST (31,681) = (1,170) (32,851)
Net carrying amount REFE 86,443 = 4,394 90,837
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of 20191 A1 BEA
accumulated amortisation ks 2515 86,443 - 4,394 90,837
Addition NE - - 1979 1979
Acquisition of a subsidiary YR B AR 3,600 7,000 1,917 12,517
Amortisation provided during the year  FRFT&H 12 & 84 (13,507) (1,556) (1,094) (16,157)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F12 4318 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
At 31 December 2019: R2019F128318 :
Cost A 121,724 7,000 9,460 138,184
Accumulated amortisation EST (45,188) (1,556) (2,264) (49,008)
Net carrying amount REFE 76,536 5,444 7,196 89,176
FRIREBERAA

2020 F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 kB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during

22. WEBEARE (AMH)
FRECHEAERBENESHNOT

188

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
2020
2020%
Allowance Loss  Impairment  Depreciation
for doubtful available  of financial allowance in
debts on Fair value for offsetting and excess of Other
Lease trade  change of Tax against future contract related payables
liabilities ~ receivables FVTPL loss profits assets  depreciation  and accruals Total
ESRN  BRATERA S £HR A
FENRE BENATE ARAE ANEE RERERE  EfFER
HERE B 28 HEEE i 7| WE  WEGRE 5 - &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTRn ARETn ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RANE1R1H 11,823 42,053 - 173 16,391 461 1151 - 72,052
Credited/(charged) to the ERNERR
statement of profit or loss A/ ()
during the year (note 11) (FzEn) (2,266) 4,467 168 (173) (16,391) - 319 151 (12,305)
Acouisition of subsiciaries  WEEHBAR (F£35)
(note 35) - 1,346 - - - - - - 1,346
Disposals it - (2,085) - - - (461) - - (2,526)
At 31 December 2020 RANE12ANE 9,557 45,801 168 - - - 1,530 151 58,567

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22 REBREE(BE) @
(Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities EEMBEEE
2020
2020 %
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
investment Intangible  undistributed Right-of-use
properties assets earnings assets Total
REMEN RESE
AYELD BREE BMFENH ERREE ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2020 20205 1A18 (3,593) (20,744) (2,511) (11,692) (38,540)

Charged/(credited) to the  FERRNEHK
statement of profit or loss 408 /(3f A)

during the year (note 1) (Fi3E11) (180) 3,070 - 3,520 6,410
Credited to other FAEMEERR

comprehensive income (343) - - - (343)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YtEE K18 AR (F1735)

(note 35) - (540) (1 - (541)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A 31 H (4,116) (18,214) (2,512) (8,172) (33,014)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %5 kB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22. BEBEBEE (B6) %)
(Continued)
Deferred tax assets RIEMIBEE
2019
19%
Depreciation
Impairment Fair value Loss available Impairment allowance
provision change of for offsetting of financial in excess of
Lease for trade investment Tax  aganstfuture  and contract related
liabilities receivables properties loss  taxable profits assets  depreciation Total
BHEN RANE At 2RR
FERE HATE ARERH ANEE  RBIEENE
HEEFE B 28 hEER  HMEESR e HiERR &5

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT  ARBTT  ARBTn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

At 31 December 2018 R018E12A31R - 30415 1 - - - 513 30929
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 FRAER B8R £8
F 16K E 409 - = - - - : 109

At 1 January 2019 (restated) R09E1A1A8
() a 2415 1 . - - 513 31,38

Credited/(charged) to the ERRNERR
statement of profit or loss HA/ ()

during the year (note 11) (FrzE1) 11414 6,505 (1) (4.980) 16,391 461 638 30428
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAA - 5133 - 5153 - - = 10,286
At 31 December 2019 R2019%5128318 11823 42053 - 173 16,391 [y 1,151 72052

1 90 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22. EEHIBEE (EFE)#®)
(Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFEAE
2019
20194
Fair value Withholding
change of tax on
investment Intangible undistributed Right-of-use
properties assets earnings assets Total
BEMER KD
ATEEE BIEE BTN ERESE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A 31 H (2,624) (21,611) (1,141) - (25,376)
Effect of adoption of FhEBGHREER
HKFRS 16 F16HNTE = = = (409) (409)
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 72019418 1H
(&) (2,624) (21,611) (1,141) (409) (25,785)

Charged/(credited) to the  FERREZRK
statement of profit or loss 40K /(Ff A)

during the year (note 1) (FfizE11) (969) 3,789 (1,370) (11,283) (9,833)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  YtEEHI B A ) = (2,922) = = (2,922)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%F 128318 (3,593) (20,744) 2,511) (11,692 (38,540)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 22 EEBIREE (BE) @)
(Continued)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and MEVNNENMS  HETECHBEBEERAR
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial BRI R P o AT AR TSR R
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax BN EBANEBIRLERIBAERH DN

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE AR R R R AV IR IE
consolidated statement of financial position HIBEEFE 50,395 60,360
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the  FA4RA B TSR KR FE R AR T
consolidated statement of financial position HIEaEFE (24,842) (26,848)
25,553 33,512
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of KA TIE B R RERIBERE

the following items:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 &

12A31H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T AREFT

Tax losses and temporary differences RIERH T IEE 18 & B A [ = %8

not recognised 94,867 120,622
In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses R RBAR B EEER - BRI B A #8518 &

arising in Mainland China could be carried forward for a B n] 45 A HR R A DAY R R FE SR R A o

period of five years to offset against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of KA FTEERRARERIBEAE - BATR
the above item as it is not considered probable that taxable A I8 B A n] A A LA S FE SR A A o
profits will be available against which the above item can be

utilised.

1 92 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020



22.

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities of RMB2,512,000
(2019:RMB2,511,000) have been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. Pursuant to a resolution of the
board of directors of the Company, these subsidiaries will not
distribute any earnings derived up to 31 December 2015 and
75% of the earnings from 1 January 2016 onwards will not be
distributed. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China
for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
was RMB 186,557,000 (2019: RMB176,505,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

22.

23.

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H
EEREBEEE (BFE)@)

R2020F 12 A31 8 ' EAEERFER
P RR BT BB A B AE AR (ZASFEHR) /9
ENBHNHERECHBAGBARE
2,512,00070 (20194 : AR#E2,511,0007T) °
BEARBESE —MRHER  ZZHEA
A AE DRI E2015412 831 B &
Ao B 201641 A1 8 it B8 75% 15
PMED IR o EMERIREH T8 B &/ B R
WBRARKEMPANERZBER
A A R #186,557,000 7T (20194F : A R #&
176,505,000 7%) °

AR BAEBRIRN R EALEAFHIER

B 5 RWRIE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

12HA31H 12H31H

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%ET ARETTT

Trade receivables E S E i Ia 490,156 431,479
Less: Impairment allowance B R AR (115,954) (99,219)
374,202 332,260

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services income. The credit period is generally 90 days for
property owners and property developers upon the issuance
of demand notes. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management and credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

BHREFIAEERBMEEERBUA
REFBMERELR  RERDERREN
EEH—RAB0R - REESRKEHKER
FE W IR R BRIR B - WRSIE B BR 1 &P
FIURIEEERR - BEEHREa SR ERE
R MBEFPHNEERBAESFiR —
IR SRR LA L Pt M AR SR L 5 WOSR IR
RREZRRRZIRATF B - FtWES
RETWEERR - EZREFR/RE -

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%

193



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the date of demand note, net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

B 5 RWFEIEZ)

RBEHRR - REFBNERHAENE S
FEUGRIRHIBR B R BRI R DM T ¢

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T
Within 30 days 30HA 37,180 30,111
Over 30 days and within 90 days HBiE30B X0 BEA 48,797 63,052
Over 90 days and within 180 days B0 H KX 180HA 51,373 68,032
Over 180 days and within 365 days i 180 H &2 365 HA 106,079 74,029
Over one year e —F 130,773 97,036
374,202 332,260
The movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables are B oW IBEEREN ST ¢
as follows:
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
At beginning of year F4 (99.219) (85,850)
Impairment loss, net (note 7) B R FEE (eE7) (16,989) (13,369)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEME A 254 =
(115,954) (99,219)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EFRWRE®)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk IR ANEB (G HAREEEAENE S E
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision WEHIEHEERBER :
matrix:
As at 31 December 2020 A 202012 H31H
Less than 6to 12 Over
6 months months 1 year Total
PR6MERE 6ZF12EA BB 1F et
Expected credit loss rate TBEEEEBIEX 9% 18% 38% 24%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRE4AE (AR T L) 150,202 129,232 210,722 490,156
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ TEHAEEEE(ARKETT) 12,852 23,153 79,949 115,954
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12 A 31 H
Less than 6to 12 Over
6 months months 1 year Total
LR6MEA 6ZE 1218 A HR1E BEt
Expected credit loss rate TBEEEEBEE 8% 18% 41% 23%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREA&E (AREFT) 175,634 90,106 165,739 431,479
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TEHAEEE1E (ARKE T L) 14,439 16,077 68,703 99,219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

24. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. JA{{Zh@E R H it pE Y =g

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019

12A31H 12 A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Payment on behalf of customers REREBEPRIAREFEEER

to utility suppliers 76,439 109,847
Deposits paid to utility suppliers MAREERHERNNZES 53,366 27,573
Other receivables H b fE U FhI8 138,307 121,411
Prepayments TR RRIR 65,315 64,675
Other tax recoverable e IR TR 879 2,470
334,306 325,976
Less: Impairment allowance BB (30,736) (37,744)
Total st 303,570 288,232

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

2020 £ 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETFT

At beginning of year REA) (37,744) (26,651)
Impairment loss, net (note 7) REE R TR (FTE7) (5,848) (11,093)
Write-off i H 6,082 =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—fHREAR 6,774 =
(30,736) (37,744)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent a
performance bond, bidding deposits for contracts and loans
from employees. Expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect
the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31
December 2020 ranged from 3% to 30%. (2019: 3% to 30%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. CONTRACT ASSETS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

. BREE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 4F

12831H 12A31H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Contract assets arising from: THIEEEEXZENEE

Construction services ERARFE - 61,495
Impairment BIE - (1,845)
- 59,650

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from the provision of construction services as the receipt of
consideration is conditional on successful completion of
installation of the industrial products and construction.
Included in contract assets for construction services are
retention receivables. Upon completion of construction and
acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
allowance (2019: RMB1,845,000) recognised for expected
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms
and credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as at 31 December 2019 was all within one year.

BREENIINERRGBREM S W
B RASKEBAFIREMTE LERT
PRIETTATURER © FEUER B & 5t AR ARTSHY
BREEARN - RERTREEFPRKE B
BRLSENEENSRENT D REEHRK
A °

REE2020F12A31BILEE » WERE
NEEEREEEBBERNEE(2019F
AR¥1,8450007T) - AEEEFFHNE S
&R RSB BRI BRI ISR M7t 23 ©

MR2019F12 A31H @ A EERNTEEAT UL
Bl sk A ERRE AR —FR -
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. EBRAVEFABEENERHEE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARET T

Bank financial product RITEEE M - >4
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFFABZNE R EE

profit or loss (a) 15,008 2,482

At end of year FR 15,008 2,536

(a)

198

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 51%
equity interest in Huihuang Property and Huihuang Real Estate
to the non-controlling equity holder in three tranches prior to
the year of 2022. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Huihuang
Property and Huihuang Real Estate in 2019, 2020 and 2021. The
option was classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 60%
equity interest in Guangdong Jindun to the non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Guangdong
Jindun in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The option was classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 51%
equity interest in Guangdong Huarui to the non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Guangdong
Huarui in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The option was classified as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company has a put option to dispose of the acquired 70%
equity interest in Guangdong Xunhua to the non-controlling
equity holder. The fair value of the option will be adjusted
based on the future financial performance of Huihuang
Property and Huihuang Real Estate in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The
option was classified as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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AACIEEREEARE - AR 2022 F gD =
A TFREAZELEBRESERIER
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ARAEHERRAERE - A SEIEIR SR
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B IR HE N SEAE S 7 2020 € ~ 2021 4F % 2022
FIRBERCERARRABRIE T AFHE -
HESEARATFEABSNEREE -

AATHER R ERE - AR IEIERERR
B A S TS B R B EE I 51% O R AE o
BE PR N A G 7 2020 € ~ 2021 4F J% 2022
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HES AR AT EF ABENERMEE -

AR BEAREERE - AR IEE RS
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FIZRERAEN R R ERIE T AR -
S ARATEFABENEMEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

27. RERBEEEY

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 F 2019 £

12831H 12H31H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREF T ARET T

Cash and bank balances IRE RIRITEES 487,236 426,134
Time deposits TE BTER 8,537 31,866
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 495,773 458,000

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB490,849,000 (2019: RMB437,052,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The Group collects deposits from certain community residents
to establish daily repair and maintenance funds in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.

All of the deposits collected are required to be kept in
designated bank accounts under the name of the relevant
subsidiaries of the Group though the deposits collected and
the related interest income belong to the community
residents. Pursuant to the property management agreements
between the Group and the community residents, the
withdrawal and use of the funds are subject to approval by
the community residents. As the monies maintained for daily
repair and maintenance funds are not controlled by the
Group, they are not recorded as bank balances by the Group.
As at 31 December 2020, RMB19,489,000 (2019:
RMB15,475,000) was kept in the daily repair and maintenance
funds on behalf of the community residents.

RI[EHR » AEBNUAREAENES R
R E B A ARE490,849,0007T (20194
AR 437,052,0007T) - AREATAILAR A
HBEMEY - AW - BIERBEAHINE
EHROIRAEE  SERNESERE @ &K
B A S BEREEITINEXEFEHRITIE
ARE RS H B -

AEBERBEFEMERRAERAE THER
FREERS - WRIABHERREES -

BEFMWSERS RE@AFBMATIBILEE
RETHER - FTAMKSEZRSHBNAEERE
BB AR BEFEAETRTERS - B
AREFEHRERTINYVESERHE 12
B REAESAFLRERERIE - ARTFR
EBEHEERREESHIEIEREE T
Bl - BN AE B R ARITERR - 122020
F12ANA - EREZEEBERESARE
19,489,0007T (20194 : A R#15,475,0007T)
BARBHERREES -
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 27. RERBEEEBY &)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITIR S AN T BRITF AN RIZZE X
bank deposit rates. The cash and bank balances and pledged BREA S o RS RIBITHEBR R EERRITLE
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no R T A BT Bl 4050 SR (S BB ZE R IR
recent history of default. 17 °
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B 5 EARE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REMERR - B EAHENE S RN
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: TEHEEER ST :
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Within 60 days 60BN 60,596 122,441
Over 60 days and within 180 days #HiA60H & 180 B A 3,650 5,020
Over 180 days and within 365 days 3@ 180 H & 365 HA 3,967 1,706
Over one year fai|—F 4,144 7,723
72,357 136,890

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and normally
settled on terms of 30 to 90 days.

The fair values of trade payables approximate to their carrying
amounts due to their relatively short term maturity.

200 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HttEARERETER
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
12HA31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETFT
Contract liabilities BHERE (a) 123,359 123,057
Receipts on behalf of community HLABEERALERER
residents for utilities (AN 208,079 238,681
Received in advance TEURIE 6,167 -
Accruals FEETE 177,017 131,120
Other payables H th FE T FIR 40,983 24,527
Deposits received BUIES 65,429 56,210
Other payables for an option E b HA#E FE S 50E - 22,500
Amounts due to non-controlling equity  FE{H /B A B IEIZE I #E 5
holders of subsidiaries B ANRIE 164,677 25,602
Other tax payables H At IR 50,523 23,450
836,234 645,147
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s amounts due to non- 2020512 A31H » AEBESHE R F]
controlling equity holders of subsidiaries included EERER A ANTEBEAERRNZE
outstanding consideration payables in respect of the Group's IEIERE R FEE AN B A R IR R
acquisition of the equity interests in the subsidiaries from MAEERE HAEEER 28 RITER
those non-controlling equity holders which are unsecured, TEETER o

interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

Except for other payables for an option and amounts due to B L Ath B FE AN SR TE I B IR IR B R M HE IR
non-controlling equity holders of Huihuang Property and B EE R IR A FE B A BURRIESN - H AR
Huihuang Real Estate, other payables are non-interest- NmEAERS  FHHRA=M[A -

bearing and have an average term of three months.

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 31 (a) 2020512 A31H %2019 12 A31H &Y
December 2019 are as follows: BRBENFRNAT
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AR¥TT

Short-term advances received BEWEFEREZN

from customers
Property management services (note 6) MEEIR IR (Bt 6) 123,359 123,057
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to EHEEREARBYESE RS mUE
deliver property management services. O RE ERZA R o

smacamzzsy 201
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESRITREMMER

202

BORROWINGS
2020 2019
2020 % 0194
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
EBRIZ (%) HHA  ARMTR  EBAE) IR ARET
Current N
Lease liabilities (note 16 (b)) HEAE(HE160) 4.75-9.06 2021 30,033 475906 2020 24,518
Bank loans — secured ROTER—HHER 3.8-5.85 2021 33,000 4275 2020 60,000
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EHH - - - 5 2020 1,000
Current portion of long term bank ~ REVF{TE HAAHLH 5.22 2021 1,000 522 2020 1,000
loans — secured —E#Hf
Current portion of long term bank ~~ REIF{TEEEESD S HIBOR+1.5 2021 19952 HIBOR+15 2020 20,965
loans — unsecured — B
83,985 107,483
Non-current JEENE
Lease liabilities (note 16 (b)) HEAE (M 160) 4759.06  2022-2025 8,193 475906 2021-2026 2173
Bank loans — secured FOIER—HHA 522665  2022-2024 25,200 522665  2021-2022 26,300
Bank loans — unsecured RITER— BER HIBOR+1.5  2022-2023 119 HIBOR+15 2021 2,210
33,512 70,343
117,497 177,826

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 75k B

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. sTESBTREMBER &)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 20194
12A31H 128318
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Analysed into: DNTA

Bank loans repayable: AR AT EAREREIRITERK
Within one year or on demand —FERFIRENK 53,952 82,965
In the second year FE_F 25,319 27,070
Beyond three years, inclusive =FUE(BEE=F) - 20,500
79,271 130,535

Other borrowings repayable: AR A THAREEHHAMERK
Within one year or on demand —ERYIFRER 30,033 24,518
In the second year CaEmces 8,193 5,463
Beyond three years, inclusive ZFA L (BEE=F) - 17,310
38,226 47,291
117,497 177,826

FRIAREEERAR
2020 F
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

30.

204

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's bank loans were secured by the pledges of the
Group's assets with carrying values at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 as follows:

. 5T 24 HiER &)

AEBRIRTTE AR A S B 7 2020 F
mﬁma&mwimﬂmaTﬂ%@ﬁm
BEERER

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

2020 2019 4F

12A31H 12A31H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Biter ARBTRT ARBTE

Investment properties REM=E 15 54,187 146,431

In addition, certain non-controlling equity holders guaranteed
certain of the Group's bank loans of up to RMB7,750,000 in
aggregate as at the end of the reporting period at nil
consideration.

As at 31 December 2020, all the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB except that unsecured borrowings
amounting to RMB20,071,000 (2019: RMB42,235,000) were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowing balances of the Group bore interest at
floating rates, except for bank borrowings of RMB59,200,000
at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB88,300,000) that bore interest
at fixed rates.

The carrying amounts of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

o - B TFIEE R R AR SRS BRI
ZREERAEEE THETEREREAR
#7 750,000 7T °

R2020F 12 A31H » NEBEFTA BN
AREESTE - AR 20,071,000t (2019
F: AR#42,235,0007T ) B £ K 18 4E XA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
Shares [iE)
Nominal
value of
HKDO.01
each
Number of BREE
ordinary 0.01#& T
shares HKD'000
TEREB FETT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020 and M2020F1 H1B &
31 December 2020 2020912 A 31 H 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRARE :
At 31 December 2019 and MR2019F 12 A31B X
1 January 2020 202051 A1 H 817,622,000 8,176
Shares issued (note (a)) 2T (Mi5E (a)) 36,928,000 369
At 31 December 2020 A 2020512 A31H 854,550,000 8,545
2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Issued and fully paid: BETMER
Ordinary shares =Rl
At 1 January »1A1H 6,745 6,689
Shares issued BT 337 56
At 31 December MW12H31H8 7,082 6,745
(@)  During the year of 2020, 36,928,000 shares were allotted and (@) 20204 - 36,928,000 A& BE 17 LA X B & A

0.98 78 LR 8 & 21T + K {B 436,189,000
BT (FEE R A AR 33,021,0007T) °

issued at consideration of HKD$0.98 each for consideration of
HKD$36,189,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB33,021,000).
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32. SHARE OPTION AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

The Company — Pre-IPO share option scheme

32. BRERKRG RS

ARAR—ERABRBER BRETE
The Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was BN AFRREREIRESTE([512)) iR
AR A HR201564 208 k201567 A 10
HRBEPRERRS  NaAEENES R
SEBEESRHEER RSB - WHRIN 2020
F4R208 % 202047 A 10 B 8 - 1R\
g AAFEESREERTEERGER
EEERE BZEATRBRRARRMG

adopted pursuant to resolutions passed by the Company on
20 April 2015 and 10 July 2015 for the purposes of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group,
and expired on 20 April 2020 and 10 July 2020 respectively.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company is
authorised to grant options to the directors and eligible
employees to subscribe for shares in the Company.

REBFTEIFR LB BT -

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme are as

follows:
Category of Exercise price
grantees Date of grant per share Vesting period Exercisable period
ARSI R B BRITHEE BEH A FAT
Directors 20 April 2015 HKD1.72 20 April 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-20 April 2020
5= 20154 A 201 17287 2015F 4 A20BE2016F 6 A 29 8 2016 6 A30HE 202064 A 20H
20 April 2015-29 June 2017 30 June 2017-20 April 2020
2015F4 A20BE2017F 6 A 298 20176 A30HE 202064208
20 April 2015-29 June 2018 30 June 2018-20 April 2020
2015F 4 A20HE2018F 6 A 29 B 20184 6 A30HE 202064 A 20H
Employees 20 April 2015 HKD1.72 20 April 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-20 April 2020
B8 20154 A 201 17287 2015F 4 A20BE2016F 6 A 29 8 20166 A30HE 202064 A 20H
20 April 2015-29 June 2017 30 June 2017-20 April 2020
2015F 4 A20BE2017F 6 A 298 20176 A30HE 202064 A 20H
20 April 2015-29 June 2018 30 June 2018-20 April 2020
2015F 4 A20HE2018F 6 A 29 B 20184 6 A30HE 202064 A 20H
10 July 2015 HKD1.72 10 July 2015-29 June 2016 30 June 2016-10 July 2020
201547 A10H 1.72%7T 201567 A10HZE 201656 A29 R 201656 A30HZE 202057 A10H

10 July 2015-29 June 2017
201557 A10BE2017F6 A29 H
10 July 2015-29 June 2018
201557 A10HE 20186 A 29 H

30 June 2017-10 July 2020
20176 A30HE 202057 A10H
30 June 2018-10 July 2020
201846 A30 HE 202047 A 10H

7R 2020 4F » 7N 5 B 5 |- it B8 AR A FE 5B 4 B
% (20194 : &) o

In 2020, the Group recognised no expenses in relation to the
above share options (2019: Nil).

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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32. SHARE OPTION AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

The Company — Pre-IPO share option scheme
(Continued)

No share options were exercised in 2020. At the end of the
reporting period, 38,954,000 share options under the Scheme
expired during the year and the Company had no share
options outstanding under the Scheme.

The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-
IPO share option schemes during the year:

32.

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

BRERRKRGEBE 2

RAT—BRAREERBRETE
(%)

2020 F LB AR REITHE « IR HIK - &F
B8 T 19 38,954,000 13 BE AR AEFA 4F OB 8 -
MARERTE] - AND R AR AT HOTEAE -

AT REARARERAFEE R BRE SR
TRITER B E :

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
Exercise price Number Exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
BRiTHEE BRERRE SKOREE  BREHEA
HKD ‘000 HKD '000
BT T4 BT T
At 1 January K1A1H 1.72 38,954 1.72 38,954
Expired during the year FERNE|H 1.72 (38,954) 172 =
At 31 December MW12A31H 1.72 - 172 38,954

TRESKARARAT S}
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 86 of

the financial statements.

(a)

208

Statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the PRC
subsidiaries’ articles of association, each subsidiary
registered in the PRC as a domestic company is
required to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net
profit as determined under generally accepted
accounting principles of The People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC GAAP") after offsetting any prior years’
losses to the statutory surplus reserve. When the
balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years'
losses or to increase capital. However, the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of the capital after these usages.

Other reserve

The amount represented the contribution from Mr. Liu
Jian, the controlling shareholder and director of the
Company, through transferring his 40% equity interest
in Guangdong Zhong Ao, a subsidiary of the Company,
to Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing, both being
directors of the Company and employees of
Guangdong Zhong Ao in 2011.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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33. f#fh
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HEPRYBRRFOANREBREE
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(a) EEfREE

BRABEARERTENEQFAE
BERE SRETHEELRANEART
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Special reserve

The special reserve mainly represent:(i) capital
contribution amounting to RMB258,000 by Mr. Liu Jian
and non-controlling equity holders for the transfer of
75% and 25% equity interests in BN Bi(E SR AR
‘A 7] ("Guangzhou Maiyue") to the Group in April 2015
through structured contracts at nil considerations; (ii)
further capital contribution to Guangzhou Maiyue made
by Mr. Liu Jian amounting to RMB750,000 in 2015; (iii)
the obligation in relation to the acquisition of the
remaining 30% equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng
recognised in the amount of RMB80,630,000 which was
decreased by RMB41,895,000 due to further acquisition
of the 7.5%, 7.5%, 7.5% and 7.5% equity interests in
Zhejiang Yongcheng at 26 July 2017, 22 June 2018 ,3
July 2019 and 7 July 2020, respectively; and (iv)
additional interests in BN REHXEXBER QA
(“Guangzhou Shangye”) acquired by the Group from a
non-controlling equity holder in 2019, with the
difference between the consideration paid and the
additional share of net assets in Guangzhou Shangye as
acquired by the Group amounting to RMB2,111,000
being transferred to the special reserve.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use
from an owner-occupied property to an investment

property.

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

33. f#fE &)

(c)

155l

B RIfEEE B4 () 2015F 4 A 8L L
KRR A ABBABIES OE
fBx & AR ¥ 258,0007T @ MAAIZAEE
EZEERMNEREEREER AR ([EM
B ) 75% K& 25% % #E : (i))20154F 2
EXTEMEMNEBBRBEIEARY
750,000 7T : (jii) e 52 88 pA WL B 4T )L oK Ak
£ 30% A% i /) & 1T A R # 80,630,000
T HAREMN201747 268 - 2018
F6H22H8 20197 A3H K 20204F
7H78 5 B B YT kB 7.5%
7.5% ~ 7.5% K. 7.5% B AE 1w > A R #E
41,895,0007T i M (iv)F20194F » 7K £
A — R I R A AR E N
HEEEEERAR([EMNEX])WEE
SRS - BENREEBNEENEEF
BENASE KB EINGG 2 ErE
%8 A R #2,111,000 7T B 85 5% &= 55 5l
o

EEBLf#E
EEERRFBRERMENREER
REEMEMEL -

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 34.
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-

B I 2 F

BEERFERESNNRIESR

AEEHEAEAFER RSB ARFE

controlling interests are set out below: ;o -
2020 2019
2020 & 2019
Percentage of equity interest held FEEIRERPTIFIRER DI ¢
by non-controlling interests:
Huihuang Property BEEX 49% 49%
Huihuang Real Estate PR IE B 3 EE 49% 49%
Suzhou House Construction BmMERE 34% 34%
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREFTT
Profit for the year allocated to DEEIFERERNFANE :
non-controlling interests:
Huihuang Property EIEE 2,181 3,466
Huihuang Real Estate VEIR B b EE 2,185 2,757
Suzhou House Construction wINEE 6,356 3,154
Accumulated balances of non-controlling s B EFEERE R A R AR
interests at the reporting date
Huihuang Property BEE 8,097 5,916
Huihuang Real Estate VRIS HE 12,814 10,629
Suzhou House Construction wINEE 28,122 21,766

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH M. BEERFERESNBIES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Fft B8 A R ()
INTERESTS (Continued)
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company R e s N (NI Ea =

eliminations:

Huihuang Huihuang Suzhou House
Property Real Estate Construction
BEEX BEEE BNEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 2020 ARETT ARETR ARETTT
Revenue Wiz 106,747 86,909 181,727
Total expenses X @as (102,295) (82,450) (163,031)
Profit for the year FRFE 4,452 4,459 18,696
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMALE 4,452 4,459 18,696
Current assets RHEE 36,632 56,646 176,038
Non-current assets FRBBE 32,332 11,310 2,720
Current labilities nBEE (52,439) (35,201) (95,145)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE - (6,605) (900)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BeFED (A FERLRETE
operating activities (5,370) 17,092 42,142
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZBMARGREFE (619) - (863)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REZYMARERETE (2,000) (16,502) -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BERBASSENRD)  EINFE
and cash equivalents (7,989) 590 41,279
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 4. BEEARFIEREZNHX 2 EE

212

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING K =NGIRE D)
INTERESTS (Continued)
Huihuang Huihuang Suzhou House
Property Real Estate Construction
BEEX EERNE HNER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2019 20194 ARETT AERETT ARETT
Revenue Yz 94,798 70,263 100,174
Total expenses gt (87,724) (64,636) (90,898)
Profit for the year ERFE 7,074 5,627 9276
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMBAETE 7,074 5,627 9276
Current assets MEEE 45,154 73,484 130,498
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,981 18,556 4,632
Current liabilities nHEE (69,061) (63,987) (70,383)
Non-current liabilities ErREERE = (6,361) (729)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEBNEG/ (R RLRETE
operating activities (1,328) 9,467 67,858
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEDMAREREFE (1,111) (2,307) (553)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REZYFMARESREFE - (3,387) 1)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBSSEMEN/ (RD)
and cash equivalents ek (2,439) 3773 67,214
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The major acquisitions of subsidiaries accounted for as
business combinations not under common control are set out
as follows:

In January 2020, the Group acquired a 60% equity interest in
Guangdong Jindun from an independent third party.
Guangdong Jin Dun Zheng An Security is engaged in the
provision of security services and a variety of outsourcing
security services. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to expand its market share of property
management operation in the PRC. The total purchase
consideration for the acquisition was RMB68,000,000.

In June 2020, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
Guangdong Huarui from an independent third party.
Guangdong Huarui Environmental Engineering Company
Limited is engaged in the provision of cleaning services. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand its market share of property management operation
in the PRC. The total purchase consideration for the
acquisition was RMB40,000,000.

In July 2020, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in
Guangdong Xunhua from an independent third party.
Guangdong Xunhua Electric Technology Co., Ltd. is engaged
in the provision of engineering services. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its market
share of property management operation in the PRC. The
total purchase consideration for the acquisition was
RMB40,000,000.

In August 2020, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in
Jinan Kuaigin from an independent third party. Jinan Express
Service Co., Ltd. is engaged in the provision of property
management services. The acquisition was made as part of
the Group's strategy to expand its market share of property
management operation in the PRC. The total purchase
consideration for the acquisition was RMB39,666,000.

B R A P E

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

35. ¥56t

ARINERIE A OF M A B BIEHI OB A
AT EWBEEHIINT

M2020F1 A AEEE—RBIE=FI
BERSENO0%EE - BREEELRE
HERERELIRB R SEINBRERE © 1E
BB A EBARAEREMEEEEET
SEREN—Hy c WENREERES
AR ¥ 68,000,000 7T °

R20205F6 A - AEBE B —HBUE=TTW
BERERA51% B2 - BERERIRTTIZ
BERABNRERMPBZRE - EHKRETIAR
SERFAETBEYEREEEHH SN EERE
M—Bo  WENEBEERKESARE
40,000,000 7T °

M2020%7 A AEEE—RBUE=F
BERAERN70% A - BERAEE R
BRABNEIRE TR - fEHUKREE T
EERFEE P BEYEEIE XS T S0 ERE
H—o  WENABEREAARK
40,000,000 7T ©

R2020F8 A » AEBEBE—RBIUEFE=F W
BERRYNEIRE - BEERIDREER
ARNERHEYESBRE - EHREE TR
& B A 5E B B W) 5 B 18 ZE 75 Th 45 (1) RE ok B%
H—Ho  WENBRBEREAARE
39,666,000 7T, ©

smaannIzE 213



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of all

35. ¥ 80t
BT U B 40 B P B A A Uk B ER RO AT SR

the subsidiaries acquired as at the dates of acquisition were BEHBENHAFEDT :
as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
WA Y
AFE
Total
At
Note RMB'000
Bt aE AREFTT
Property and equipment EISE ] 20,946
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE & 1,346
Trade receivables B 5 RN RIA 50,249
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfT3KIA « & & K H b W GRIE 69,419
Inventories A= 1,659
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEEY 38,703
Trade payables B S ENRIA (19,509)
Other payables and accruals E e IR R FERT B A (106,939)
Financial assets designated as at fair value EERATEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss 12,786
Tax payables e H IR (9.270)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIA S & (541)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATVEFENFHAIEEFEER 58,849
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR e (3,720)
Goodwill on acquisition Wi o g 17 132,537
187,666
Satisfied by: AT HFRAT
Cash RE 74,666
Other payables H A e 5K 113,000
187,666

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables, prepayments and
other receivables as at the dates of acquisition amounted to
RMB50,249,000 and RMB69,419,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB53,149,000 and RMB70,972,000,
respectively, of which trade receivables of RMB2,900,000 and
prepayments and other receivables of RMB1,553,000 are
expected to be uncollectible.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

L)

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

E£Ba6te)

ZE 5 EIGRIE ~ TE RIE K& H b FE UL GRIE R
I & B B2 FE D Bl A A R # 50,249,000
TR AR 69,419,0007T © & 5 e FIE K&
HihEWRIBENEENEE D R AARYE
53,149,000 7t & A & #70,972,0007¢C © H &
E 5 e WK IE A K 2,900,000 7T K T8 {5 5%
TH % H b fE W 3R I8 A R % 1,553,000 70 FE 5T
EE

ERKBHBARNRESRATAT

RMB'000

ARETT

Cash consideration RERE (74,666)

Cash and bank balances acquired BN RIRITER 38,703

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included  #IZXEEBRESABERE MRESZEY

in cash flows from investing activities Fm (35,963)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in KEEESEENRSMEEWIER S A

cash flows from operating activities (996)

(36,959)

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB996,000 for these
acquisitions. These transaction costs have been expensed
and included in administrative expenses in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

Since the acquisition, the subsidiaries contributed
RMB242,788,000 and RMB15,157,000 to the consolidated
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2020,
respectively.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for
the year would have been RMB1,892,626,000 and
RMB172,216,000, respectively.

REBRZSERBEEERIKAARE
996,0007C ° ZER ZKAE I T AR
A BmRNITRAY

BEC R B A RS -

RUBER - BB 2 R s E = 20204 12 A 31
B It EERG A WS R D BB B A R
242,788,000 7t &2 AR ¥4 15,157,000 7T °

WA R ENEIT » REBRAKFEEHURE
N R 48 5 Bl A A R EE1,892,626,000 7T K2 A
R #172,216,000 7T ©

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HE—XKELH

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 29 April 2020, B H& B Bl & 20205 4 A 29 B & i% 10 85 5% 1%
the Group disposed of its 60% equity interest in &5 4 &5k & 7 AEBHEARERERKBEMRERR
HWEBRFTEBERAF("Ming-King-City”) for a HTRAERADT ([#RBE])#60% MHE - 1
consideration of RMB7,300,000. The consideration was B A AR®7300000m KEBEHZER
determined by reference to the fair value of the equity 20204 4 B 30 B W E M R A B A FE T
interest disposed of as at 30 April 2020. B -

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of REEBHNEERBEMNRAIAERT ¢

disposal were as follows:

Note 2020
i = 2020
Net assets disposed of: HEBEFE
Property and equipment EISE 279
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE &= 2,526
Cash and bank balances & RIRITHERR 9,366
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 11,007
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA K H At FE MR IR 7,003
Contract assets BREE 64,556
Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERENREE (66,626)
Accruals and other payables FEETE R & B fth FE ST 5/ (25,151)
Tax payable FETFRIE (3,752)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (431)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,223)
Goodwill on disposal HEZHE 17 7,003
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary B E - B A RS 1,520
7,300
Satisfied by cash LARR & 2+ 7,300
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHALE—FRMBARZER S RESEEY
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: VR EER AT ¢
2020
2020 F
Cash consideration RERE 7,300
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEReRBSER (9,366)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in BHNE—RWBARNRERESEEY
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary T F R (2,066)

2 1 6 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the carrying amounts of trade

receivables and prepayments and other receivables

were offset as payments for acquisition of properties
and payments of RMB46,674,000 (2019: RMB311,000).

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

37. ZEBEERERME

(a) EBFEERSH

FR B S ERFIENARTENRE R
Hip R ENEmES (EAKEY
MRS RA R 46,674,000
JC (20194 : AR ¥311,00078) F M
S o

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BB EFEFIEEEBHNEE
activities
Interest-
bearing
Lease bank Other
liabilities  borrowings payable
HEAE TES|TER HaENLRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TRT AR%TR
At 1 January 2020 7202041 A1 8 47,291 130,535 81,450
Changes from financing AR REELEE
cash flows (15,527) (62,637) (22,500)
New leases HEE 6,982 - -
Foreign exchange realignment SN 2 - 1,468 -
Interest expense (note 8) MBS (MIES) 3,507 9,905 4,652
Covid-19-related rent K8 HFE A B 2019 2 E AR
concessions from lessors RERBEESHE (520) - -
Interest paid classified as ENNEDBER/LLHER
operating cash flows (3,507) - -
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 38,226 79,271 63,602

FRIAREEERAR
2020 F 3k

217



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI TS P ot

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. FREERERME @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RMETEFFEEEENEE (&)
activities (Continued)
Interest-
bearing
Lease bank Other
liabilities  borrowings payable
HERE FFERRTENR HMERNKIEA
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H - 111,841 39,875
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 £ 48E 7 B 75 4l &5 #E 8|
FI6ROTE 1,637 ~ -
At 1 January 2019 MR201951 518 1,637 111,841 39,875
Changes from financing MER S RERELEE
cash flows (8,904) (17,488) (22,500)
New leases RE 14,363 — -
Increase arising for acquisition [ Ug &K B A &) i & 0
of subsidiaries - — 53,698
Increase arising from acquisition & Us &R & 2 &) 2 0
of subsidiaries 40,195 30,250 =
Foreign exchange realignment  hE % - (533) =
Interest expense (note 8) AEFMX (MFES) 4,050 6,465 10,203
Fair value adjustment of SARE AT ERE
contingent consideration - - 174
Interest paid classified as ENMESBEAKERER
operating cash flows (4,050) — —
At 31 December 2019 RK2019% 12431 H 47,291 130,535 81,450

2 1 8 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. MERERBRWEE @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEBRESARHALZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the SFABRSRERANEER S RLA
statement of cash flows is as follows: RN
2020 2019
2020 2019 4F
Within operating activities KERBRN 1,518 577
Within financing activities BEEEA 17,516 12,377
19,034 12,954
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. WARAE
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 HE2020F 12318 AEBEWES KK
December 2020 (2019: Nil). NEE (20194 : £]) o
39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. EXREE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RERE IR - NEBEBUTEARAIE

of the reporting period:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 F 2019 4F
12A31H 128318
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EET4Y - B RFTHERME ¢
Acquisition of property and equipment WM R REREEY %
and leasehold improvements =& 538 2,719
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R T 2 A - 68,000

538 70,719
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. BB T R 5 R A ER

BALANCES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the BRI BRERESEREEN  AEBRFAS

Group had the following related parties’ transactions during LA 52 5 o

the year.

(a) Related party transaction (a) BHELXRZ
A non-controlling equity holder of a subsidiary of the AR R — MR B FE R i s 4
Company provided a corporate guarantee in respect of B ABL2020F 12 A31 A |EER T A
certain bank loans granted to the Group of up to SEMNBETETEREZARE
RMBS5,000,000 (2019: RMB5,000,000) at nil consideration 5,000,0007T (20194 : AR¥ 5,000,000
as at 31 December 2020 (note 30). 7o) IRt 1 AR (FIEE30) ©

(b) Compensation to key management b) BHTFEEEEAENENE
personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during FRNEEBEBAERNEHMOT :

the year was as follows:

2020 2019
2020 £ 2019 4F
Short-term employee benefits i E B A 14,035 16,372
Post-employment benefits 53 g 49 90
Share-based payments &R 5 3R - 396
14,084 16,858
The remuneration of key management personnel is TEEEABNFMIRMEARE R
determined by reference to the performance of MGBEETE -

individuals and market trend.

220 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. €@ T B (3R¥E5R|)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHRem T ARREHROEMENDT
instruments as at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

31 December 2020 202012 H31H
Financial assets LRIEE
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
amortised through
cost profit or loss Total

B HR A BAFE

FHEH FTABEEN
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR®TR AR%TR

Trade receivables (note 23) 2 5 el zaE (fizx23) 374,202 - 374,202
Financial assets at fair value through %A F{ET ABZ=AY

profit or loss (note 26) SR EE (H5E26) - 15,008 15,008
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) R4 MIHE&ZEYW (HF27) 495,773 - 495,773
Financial assets included in T ATET FRIE K E A FE UK

prepayments and other IR B ELE 2 (FI5E24)

receivables (note 24) 237,376 - 237,376
Long-term deposits RHEFER 4,657 - 4,657

1,112,008 15,008 1,127,016
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. €®m T B (3R¥ER|) (&)

(Continued)
31 December 2020 2020412 H31H
Financial liabilities o=
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
12 8 68 R AR
STEN
sREasE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARET T
Financial liabilities included in other sTAEMEAIE M ERTE B
payables and accruals (note 29) SR B E(HE29) 662,352 662,352
Interest-bearing bank and other ST RERTT R E At & 7K (i 5% 30)
borrowings (note 30) 117,497 117,497
Other long-term payables Eofth = EAFE T 5RIE 18,589 18,589
Trade payables (note 28) B SR FRIE (M3 28) 72,357 72,357
870,795 870,795
31 December 2019 201912 A 31 H
Financial assets SREE
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
amortised through
cost  profit or loss Total
TR SE R AN BAFE
FTER FTABEM
TREE SREE HBET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETRT ARETT
Trade receivables (note 23) 5 e aE (fisE 23) 332,260 - 332,260
Financial assets at fair value through &2 {EFT Az
profit or loss (note 26) S EE E (M5t 26) = 2,536 2,536
Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) & MRE&EEW (W:E27) 458,000 = 458,000
Financial assets included in ST ATE FIE & E A fE
prepayments and other TR RE ZE (M5t 24)
receivables (note 24) 221,087 — 221,087
Long-term deposits EHIF 4,984 = 4,984
1,016,331 2,536 1,018,867
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. €®m T B (3R¥ER|) (&)

(Continued)
31 December 2019 2019412 A 31H
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
Financial liabilities at
liabilities at fair value
amortised through
cost  profit or loss Total
REENA R AFERTA
FE R bi=EtE)
THARE TRAE 5T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIE ARETIT ARBTT

Financial liabilities included in other 5+ A H fth &~ 18} fE =t

payables and accruals (note 29) ERNERABE
(Pt 5E29) 476,140 - 476,140
Interest-bearing bank and other FrEIRIT M EMERK
borrowings (note 30) (Ff¥7E30) 177,826 = 177,826
Other long-term payables H i = BAFE T RIE 38,429 1,870 40,299
Trade payables (note 28) B 5 e kI8 (Mf5E28) 136,890 = 136,890
Other payables for an option H A HR i JE <P 5008
(note 29) (Pl £ 29) - 22,500 22,500

829,285 24,370 853,655
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. ¢RI AN AFERALERER
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial GKEEmMEEATESERENSE T A -
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that AEBeRmTANKREBERATFERAT :

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AYE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20195 2020 F 20195

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARBTL

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ

through profit or loss PREE 15,008 2,536 15,008 2,536
Financial liabilities SRAE
Interest-bearing bank and AT ERITREMER

other borrowings 45,271 69,535 45,530 70,559
Other long-term payables HibRHEN A 18,589 40,299 18,497 48,500
Other payables for option Hh BR R pE A 2B - 22,500 - 22,500
Amounts due to non-controlling INERIEPNEIE G £

equity holders of subsidiaries BBATE 49,277 18,651 49,034 19,666

113,137 150,985 113,061 161,225

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEEDHESRESZEEY  BHREK
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial NIE - EHEMARIE st ATEMNEIE - Hib
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other EWFEREMEENSREE st AEAM
assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and FENZERESERANSRAE  ENRR
accruals, an amount due to the ultimate holding company JEA% N BIFRIE L i TR N TR b A A £R
and guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities TIREMNERNALEERFENREER
granted to an associate approximate to their carrying 5 TEHRZET A ZEHHRATE -
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss was based on the expected return rate.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables, lease liabilities, amounts
due to non-controlling equity holders of subsidiaries, and
other long-term payables have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The Group's own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and other long-term payables as at 31 December
2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

Management has assessed that the fair values of the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling
equity holders of subsidiaries, and other long-term payables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the fact
that these borrowings are made between the Group and
independent third-party financial institutions or related
companies based on prevailing market interest rates.

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. €T EWAFERAFEER

(&)

AEERMBEEIENNKHEEEES
MIARARENENBRRER - MBEE
BEEMERMBERERZEGRE - NE
BEAY FHBHIMERTABERZS
VEELEMREZBHABE - (AEHERF
MR NLE - HERERERDEF
HEZEE SN RN - AMER R EEM
BRERE

BAFEFABSNSREEN R FEINE
HAm s R A

FHERITREAMMER - IHAFEFABRD
SEEE « 5T ATE 3B & E A FE U GRIE K
TREE  HESE  EBAHEBARIEER
Rz E ARRIA R E b & B FE S SRIEFERN
HE D R ELE ARG - EER
& K EA T B HAR v T B IRRE 2 IR K538
FARRRESREIIRMETH o R2020F 12
A318 @ NEE2FBRITREMEREE
= B R IR DB AR R 4 T e AT
EX

EEEENEERITREMBR  HAF
B ABSNERMEE  fFARNFEAERE
EMBKENEREE  HERE - BHH
B RAFEBR RS E ANFEN R MR
HIEN RN DA FEEEREE
HE  TEARNGFERBARERE S
=hEREEREERRIRRIRITHEN R
i -
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. €T EWAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Except for the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-
controlling equity holders of subsidiaries, and other long-term
payables, management has also assessed that the fair values
of the Group's other financial instruments approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

Below is a summary of the significant unobservable input to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020 and
2019:

(&)

BRat BIRTT REMAER - A FEF ABR
MEREE 7T ATRN AR EUKRIA
MEREE HERE BB IRIHE
PriE s 15 E AR FRIR A K E Al = B e A< 5R0R
EIEENEARE DN - BIRETRERE - A& H
Hpe@mTANAFEEAREEMES - =
EhRZE LA B RS EIEME -

INTRAERER T EGENE AT ERE A
B B E R 7N 20204 2 20195 12 A 31 H
MELBHEDNT

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fh{ER % BERTUHERAYE &E AFEHBAENSEE
Financial assets at Monte Carlo Discount rate 2020: 14%-15% 1% increase/decrease in discount rate
fair value through simulation (2019: 14%-15%) would result in a decrease/increase in
profit or loss method fair value by RMB150,080

BAVEFAREN RERE ELE RS
TREE RERR

226 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. 4T AN AFTERAFERER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#)

Fair value hierarchy NEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement THREBASESRMIANATETEE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: & -

Assets measured at fair value RAVEFENEE

As at 31 December 2020 R2020512H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERNTBENAFEE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME  EAATHE BEATTER
HRE WABE WABE
(%—-18) (5=88) (B=RE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®T:R

Financial assets at fair value BATER ABRD
through profit or loss BRIEE - - 15,008 15,008
As at 31 December 2019 MR2019%F12 A 31 H
Fair value measurement using
FERANTEHENR T EFTE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERmE  EAUER EATAEHE
HRE ) A SR E NG
(F—) (F=2E) (=) Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETFT ARETT ARETR
Financial assets at fair value AT EGTAERD
through profit or loss TRIEE - = 2,536 2,536
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42,
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2019

EMITENAFERQIFEHER

(%)

NP ERBRE)
BAFEFTENERS
12019412 A 318

Fair value measurement using

ERATHENAFERE

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
AT %

B RME
(B—E)
RMB'000
ARETT

Significant Significant

observable unobservable

inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BAUERE BATAEER
BABE BABE
(F=F) (B=F) &5t

Other long-term payables Hih REAEM A -
Other payables for an option Hh iR 50A
(note 29) (BizE29) -

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT  AREBTT ARETE
- 1,870 1,870
- 22,500 22,500

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the year ended
31 December 2019, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. 4T AN AFTERAFERER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEERER &)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed EREAFENARE
As at 31 December 2020 M2020512H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTHEN A FETE

Quoted
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERME EATHEE BEATTEERE
HRE BWAYE BWABE
(2-18) (B=F) (B=E) @st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR%STR AR®TR AR%¥Tx

Interest-bearing bank and st ERIT REMERK

other borrowings - - 45,530 45,530
Other long-term payables H = B (T 5008 - - 13,468 13,468
Amounts due to non-controlling ERIIENGIE 2

equity holders of subsidiaries BEFA AR - - 37,442 37,442

- - 96,440 96,440
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. ¢ T AN AFTERAFERER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (%)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEERE)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (Continued) BIRBELAFLENERS (&)
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERATHENAFERE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTS EAUER BEATAEE
H3R(E BARE BARE
(5—FE) (5ZF) (F=E) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank and AT RERTT R E AR
other borrowings = = 70,559 70,559
Other long-term payables H iR HEEN B = = 46,630 46,630
Amounts due to non-controlling FENIIENGIER 2
equity holders of subsidiaries R AKTE = = 19,666 19,666
- - 136,855 136,855
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets included in prepayment and other receivables,
trade and bills receivables, other payables, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and other long-term payables.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
set out in note 30.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

43. eRiEREEBERBEE

AEENSRTABREEARAFEFA
BameEE R MREFEY A
BNFELEGEREFENEREE - BS
FEURIA R R R - BN IR - 7T R
RITREMBREE b RIEAFOR -

EERMTANTIZANEAREENEE
B ARBHRAZHEMEMEER

CINEER B EENE 5 R GIAME

SENREZENFA

o o 8

= 5
\
:

i

AEEEMTIAELANTIERRANEE
b SNERMR - EERBRMTEBE SRR o
EXZgREFERYARERELEERBNEK
R ARBRBEDOT -

AR

ARER B AR B T 5 A 2R B B L e 3 22 B
AEI0FTEAEBENRITERER -

TRHUBEREABTREDTAE LS
BRETEOBRT - AEERBAHB(E
T FIE (EREOR ) KBRS -

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

¥  BRHEAFE
LA (T &/ (Rd)

RMB'000

AREFT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F 12831 HLFE 50 (290)
(50) 290

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2019F12A31HLEFE 50 (369)
(50) 369

FRIREMERLD )3
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and
nearly all transactions are conducted in RMB. All of the
Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for those owned by the Company and certain subsidiaries
which are denominated in US dollars and HK dollars.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
USD and HKD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

43. tRiEREEBEERBE &)

HINES L Bz

AEENERBURNTERM - BEFHRAER
FAARKEETT - AEERBEERBEIN
ARBGHE AR RETHEB AR M
BEEIARTTRABTTHERRS) ©

TRIANBERARETTRETERNSIE
AIREE N A b BRFTIENER
T AKEEHAMMNB(REREERAE
MAFEZESTSIE) HRRE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
USD/HKD in profit
rate before tax
ETHEBRT BRBL A
E =R A8
EHCFR) i GEd)
% RMB'000
ARETT
2020 2020 %
If the USD weakens against the RMB BELLARBES 10% 69
If the USD strengthens against the RMB BETLL ARG (10%) (69)
If the HKD weakens against the RMB A TCH AR5 10% (3,429)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB ERTLH ARG (10%) 3,429
2019 20194
If the USD weakens against the RMB BETLIZARBES 10% 616
If the USD strengthens against the RMB BETLLARBER (10%) (616)
If the HKD weakens against the RMB BRI AARBES 10% (2,821)
If the HKD strengthens against the RMB ERBTTH ARG (10%) 2,821
Credit risk EERME

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within

the Group. The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term
deposits, trade and bills receivables, and other receivables
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2020

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December 2020. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial
guarantee contracts.

43.

B S # R SR MY T
31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

tREREEBERBEEK®)

A2020F12A31 A& K&k &
FREERED

TR BEAEECEEIRNEEEERK
FIERANRAEERR - hEZAEHE
BAERE(BAEEEZRARE HENA #
BEMERERIN) - REF RS DR 2020
F12ANBETHE - TZVNSELESHM
BEMLRABLRBERERESVFMARNE
%}—wuuo

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 H
FEER ZHEHEEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
PR 1 e 2 B3 SRz @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETT
Trade receivables* B SR E - - - 490,156 490,156
Financial assets included SAENTEREAM
in prepayments and W I
other receivables THEE
— Normal** — L@ 268,112 - - - 268,112
— Doubtful** — REE _ _ _ _ _
Cash and bank balances Be RIBITiEes 495,773 - = - 495,773
763,885 - - 490,156 1,254,041

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“doubtful”.

© AR EERER AR E B KR

AME @ AREBERRERHNERFER
PATEHRRMIFE 23

= REeREETEAH EVEERELRE
BEE B V2 ERRE SRR A KIEE
B BIA TR BRIE K H b fE IR I 51 AR O

CREEFRARFERA[EB] - B
EREENGEEERRES [RE] -

FRIAREEERAF
2020 F 3k
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

234

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2020 (Continued)

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within
the Group. The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, long-term
deposits, trade and bills receivables, and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables and financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables are
disclosed in note 23 and note 24, respectively, to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

43. S REREERERBE &)

EA2020$12H31 HWER KRR K&
FRFEERE D ()

AEBYEEANEESETRR FHFHE
HWEANAEBEEMEREENEERRE
RRERREEFEY  REEK - BEZRK
TR N R IE A S LAl R URRIR - KR
REMRFNZETENKHEE -

BREASEFAE RN E SRR AR
< RIR B A PR M R O 2 B B EE AT AR Y
EERBNE P EERED FIRERME
HRMEE 23 KT 24 -

RBE TR

AREBN B IRRIAGT SRITREAMETER
BoBUERBEEENTE BEREAT

Tﬂmtﬂ%% °©

AREBER HwEMRRIED AT AERITIRA K
ME B ENSISRRT

On  Lessthan 3to 1to5 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
RER DHH3ER 3Z12M8A E5F S5ENE @t
31 December 2020 2020F12A31H RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTRT ARETR AR®T:R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &8 3R1THE R - 1,196 76,143 23,036 - 100,375
Lease Liabilities HEARE - 7,508 22,525 8,193 - 38,226
Trade payables BHEMTUE - 72,357 - - - 72,357
Other payables and accruals H S 0B R fE AT 209,472 422,882 30,000 - - 662,354

EA

Other long-term payables Hih R EA T8 - - - 20,000 - 20,000
209,472 503,943 128,668 51,229 - 893312
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

43

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

.EREREEEEREE @)

MEE SRR #)

On Less than 3to 1to5 Over
demand ~ 3months 12 months years 5years Total
®ER  PR3EA 3E12MEA 125  SENE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
31 December 2019 201912 A31H
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t BT - 1,762 86,511 49,923 - 138,196
Lease Liabilities HERE = 6,129 18,389 22,773 - 47,291
Trade payables B S EMTE = 136,890 = = = 136,890
Other payables and accruals H e 508 R IERT 57,808 399,681 20,000 - - 477,489
BH

Other Payables for Option H b EARE e TR = = 22,500 = = 22,500
Other long-term payables Hip R EER A = = = 52,600 = 52,600
57,808 544,462 147,400 125,296 - 874,966

Capital management EXREHE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

AEFERNEENER A RERERAEERE
MIFERLEXB MR REOERLE -
A B HEB R RARERTTBIREE -

AEBERBEERRECREREEN AR
FEEEAEAERRELRAE - BRITH
FBEARGERE - A E R BT B M A SRR 3
2B ARFREEARRBITHR - A&
BEAN S TN B ARENR - RNE
ZF20205F12 A31 B &k 8 201912 A 31
BIEFER - EREANEE - BERHIERF

FRIAREEERAF
2020 FF 3
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43. S REREERERBE &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, other
long-term payables, and amounts due to non-controlling
equity holders of subsidiaries less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were

as follows:

EXREE (4)

ARBMAEEABLRERER - AFELXK
RERFERACRBERMERFE - &
FFHEBE B RITREMER - EtbRH
FERROE - ERHEB A RIHERERFAA
HRBERRAERRSEEY - EAREFA
AR AEIGER - RSP RNEERR
HeRnT

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ B8R 77 K E b & 5k (Ff 5 30)

(note 30) 117,497 177,826

Amounts due to non-controlling equity holders FEfHHI B A Al FEILAEEZSIHE A
of subsidiaries (note 29) B A (Y EE29) 164,677 25,602
Other long-term payables H fth &= BAE N /I8 18,589 40,299
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERBeEEY (495,773) (458,000)
Net debt EIHFE (195,010) (214,273)
Total equity i Tt 891,426 737,925
Gearing ratio BEAM/BHE N/A RiEA N/A A3 A
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  44. &2 T B AR R &
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BRAARR RN HREPROABIRREE R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: mr

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property and equipment E S E ] 111 128
Investment in a subsidiary R—KMBRAINRE 175,543 163,992
Due from subsidiaries Y= NGIE /S 194,852 231,716
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 370,506 395,836
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE

Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA K B b MR IR 451 135
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 3,962 1,902
Total current assets MBEERE 4,413 2,037
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Other payables and accruals H A FE A 5RIB R FE ST B 1,466 526
Tax payables e A I8 - 3218
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &t 24877 R H b &5k 19,952 20,965
Total current liabilities mE)BEERE 21,418 24,709
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nBAEFE (17,005) (22,672)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERREBARG 353,501 373,164
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEEF

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t B R17 R E A E R 1,841 21,270
Total non-current liabilities EREEERTR 1,841 21,270
NET ASSETS BEEFE 351,660 351,894
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. KR TR RE 2
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the B RAZR R BIAR S BRI BT ISR o R B &R
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: R : (4&)
(Continued)

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
12H31H 12 31 H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
EQUITY R
Share capital (note 31) A& (Bt 5E31) 7,082 6,745
Other reserves H i@ 344,578 345,149
TOTAL EQUITY e AR 351,660 351,894
Note: BIsE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RRABNFBEREWT :
Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RRE EXAREHE BRERE eS| Mt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 718 444,589 48 19,879 (91,780) 372,736
Loss for the year FREE - - - (14,035) (14,035)
2019 dividend 2019 F [k 2 (18,209) - - - (18,209)
Recognition of equity-settled RAEREEBRID
share-based payments 30 4,657 = = = 4,657
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31B K
and 1 January 2020 2020F1R1H 431,037 48 19,879 (105,815) 345,149
Issue of shares BT 32,684 = = = 32,684
Loss for the year FREE - - - (12,721) (12,721)
2020 dividend 2020 X5 (20,534) = = = (20,534)
At 31 December 2019 R2019612 A31H 443,187 48 19,879 (118,536) 344,578
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

45.

46.

47.

THE COMPANY (Continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited after
the vesting day.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In December 2020, the Group acquired 100% of equity
interests in EM#EEEHRBEBRAF(“Guangzhou
Nuodeng”) at a total consideration of RMB5.1 million in full
settlement by 49% equity interest of a subsidiary of the
Group. Upon completion of the acquisition, Guangzhou
Nuodeng becomes a subsidiary of the Group. The acquisition
is subsequently completed in January 2021.

On 26 March 2021, the board of directors resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKD3.00 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HKD2.75 cents) to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 8 June 2021.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM"), the final dividend is expected to be payable on
or around 2 July 2021. The aggregate amount shall be paid
out of the Company’s share premium account if the payment
of dividend is approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

PLEDGES OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank
loans are included in note 30 to the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021.

BB

31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 H

44. KR TR REK &)

45.

46.

47.

BRERGEED RO ERTEBRENR
E{E (A B mRMF 24 ARN RO E
ATRRATE— S RE) c e BRE N AEE
BREETERE AR GEER - SHBEE
PR iR B 1R HimgoR WRIE AR SR

BREHREE

2020 12 8 » AEBUWEEIMNHEEER
RIS AR AT ([EMER ) M2 IPRE - &
KRB A& A R #5,100,000 7T I JA 7 & & — R
HI B A Bl 49% BB BB - MUK SERK
% BNEERAAEBENHBAR - %K
FEREB I 2021 81 AR ©

R2021FE3A268 EF e RREE
20204 12 A 31 B IE FEIR R B F %
3.0078 1l (20194 : 2.757 1) F 2021 6 A
8HBZIARNRRELMAKRE - FAR
ARREAARIEERFAFAS ([RRE
FARE]) EHER - TEHARERAR B AT R 2021
F7 A28 kA& IRS o 2R RR B &R R
FEREBFERE Lk - BEEEEAAAQR
B i (B AR AR Bt o

EEERA
AR BB ERAT B ARRR IR R 0 H B R B
BA B SRR MIRE 30 o

B HRAALE

PHERREN2021F3 /260 KLEE it
HE R IR RE TS o

FRIRKREFIRDT
2020 5 5%

239



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
ISR

For the five years ended 31 December 2020 & Z=20204F 12 A 31 H It AEFE

Results 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
#& 20164 2017 5% 20184 20194 2020 F
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)

(ANRET) (ARETT) (ARETT) (ARETT) (AR%TR)

Revenue Wzs 635,146 977,552 1,023,011 1,519,482 1,752,317
Cost of sales HEKA (478,408) (680,715) (740906)  (1,116,041)  (1,310,676)
Gross profit E5 156,738 296,837 282,105 403,441 441,641
Other income and gains H A R deas 23,309 20,617 30,809 33,844 54,909
Selling and marketing expenses HERBHRY (29,450) (6,394) (5,539) (13,455) (12,580)
Administrative expenses TREX (99,675) (115,121) (151,065) (192,296) (238,401)

Net impairment losses (recognised)/  (F&:2) /B L& @A E
reversal on financial assets BEBREE (13,434) (29.472) 1,672 (26,763) (22,837)
Share of profits and losses of: FEME AT FIE R EHE

Joint Ventures Bt 2,148 2,645 2,895 1,438 2,595
Associates NG = (111) @ 466 211
Other expenses Hifx (10,675) (10,282) (1,641) (10,195) (4,855)
Finance costs BAFE Ak AR (4,705) 9,512) (1,833) (21,501) (18,064)
Profit before tax B AR AR 24,256 149,207 157,399 174,979 202,619
Income tax expenses FIiERHAS (27,608) (49.919) (50,449) (41,059) (51,839)
Profit (loss) for the year EEFE(ER) (3,352) 99,288 106,950 133,920 150,780
Assets and liabilities 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
EEREE 2016F 20175 2018 20194 2020 &
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)

(ANRET) (AREFT) (ARETRT) (ARETRT) (AR%TR)

(Restated*)
(FE&70*)

Non-current assets ERBEE 437,945 448519 519,681 751,724 869,159
Current assets TEEE 678,256 787,852 821,538 1,142,902 1,200,373
Total assets BEE 1,116,201 1,236,371 1,341,219 1,894,626 2,069,532
Current liabilities mEBE 487,991 561,642 649,974 1019211 1,101,163
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 184,764 128,036 85,295 137,490 76,943
Total liabilities BafE 672,755 689,678 735,269 1,156,701 1,178,106
Net assets BEFAE 443,446 546,693 605,950 737,925 891,426
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